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NOTILE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Kingsgate Cunsclidated Limited

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Noticr: is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the members of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited
ABN 42 000 837 472 {"the Company") will be held on 15 November 2008 commencing at 2:00 p.m. at
the Museum of Sydney, cormer of Phillip and Bridge Streets, Sydney, NSW 2000.

The business ta be considered at the Annual General Meeting is sel out below, This Notice of Meeting should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying Explanatory Membrandum. A Praxy Form also accarpanies this notice.

Ordiniry Business

Annuid Reports and Atcounts
To receive and consider the annual Financial Report, Director's Repont and Auditor's Report to the Sharehalders of
the Company for the year ended 30 lune 2006,

Resolution 1 - Re-election of Mr Peter McAleer

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary resotution:

That [Ar Peler McAleer, a Director of the Company retiring by rotation in accordance with the Company's Constitution

and the ASX Listing Rules, and being eligible and having signified his candidature for the office,
he re-elected as a Direclar of the Company.

Dirgeturs recommend that members vote in Tavour of the re-election of Mr McAleer.
Resolution 2 — Directors’ Remuneration Report
To conzider and, if thought fit, to pass the following ordinary resofution:

That tye Directors” Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 June 2006 is adopted for the purposes of the
Corporations Acl 2001,

Note: This is a non-binding vote by shareholders

Voting Entitlements
In accodance with regulation 7.11.37 of the Corporations Regulstions, all quoted securities of the Company will

be taken, for the purposes of the Annual General Meeling, to be held by the persons who hold them at 7.00 p.m.

Sydney time an 13 November 2006, Only those persons wifl be entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting
on 15 Movember 2006,

By orde " of the Board

A

JFalconr
Company Secretary
11 October 2056




Notes:

1. A member entitled 1o attend and vole ai the meeting has the right to appoint no more than two proxies as his,
her or its proxy to attend and vote on his, her or its hehalf.

2. A member who is entitled to cast two o more votes may appoint two prosies and may specify the proportion or
number of votes each proxy i appointed to exertise.

3.1f the memtwer appoints two praxies and the appointment does not specify the proportion or the number of the
member's votes eath proxy may exercise, £ach prowy may exercise one half of the member's votes If the member
appoints 1w proxies, neither praxy may vote on a show of hands

4. A proxy nee § not be a member of the Company.
5. A Proxy Forra s enciosed.

6. A Proxty Fore1 must be signed by the member or his or her attorney wha has nol received any notice of revocation of
the power of attarney under which he or she was appainted, Proxies given by corporations must be signed by two n
directors or o director and the company secretary, or far 8 proprietary company Lthat has a sole director who is also
the comparrs secretary if any), that director, or under the hand of a duly authorised officer or attorney,

1. 1f the form cf praxy is signed but blank in all other material aspects, it will be taken to mean that it is in favour of the
Chairman of the meeting for full voling rights For the appointment of a proxy to be effective, the Proxy Form rmust
be received Ly the Company at east 48 hours before the meeting,

You are encouraged to forwart your Proxy Form by facsimile to the Security Transfer Registrar Pty Ltd 08 9315 2233 or
by mail to Secarity Transter Registrars Pty Ltd 770 Canning Highway Applecross WA 6153,

Explanatory Notes

Annuat Reporl and Accounts

The Corpaorations Act 2001 requires the Financial Report, Directors” Report and Auditor's Report for the past financial
year to be tabled before the Annual General Meeting, and the Company’s Constitution provides for such Repors to be
received and considered at that Meeting. Neither the Corporations Aot 2001 nor the Company's Comstitution require a
vote of Sharehc kiers at the Annual General Meeting on such Reports The Annual General Meeting provides a forum
for sharehokders to ask questions and make comments on the Company's reports and accounts and on the business and
operations of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2005,

In addition, shaieholders may, at the meeting, ask questions of the auditor in refation to the Tollowing matters:

The conduct ol the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor's repart, the accounting policies adopled by the
company for the preparation of the financial statements and the auditors independence in relation 1o the conduct of
the audit. Mer.bers may submit written guestions to the auditor in relation to the above Jtems. Any written guestiors
16 the auditor inust be. submitied to the Company 5 days before the AGM,




NOTLIE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Kingsuate Consclidated Limited

Re-election of Director (Resolution 1}

Rule 10.3 of the Company's Constitution provides for the retirement by rotatien a1 each Annual Generat Meeting

of one: third of the Directors. ASX Listing Rule 14.4 provides that a direcior must not hold office {withaut re-¢lection)
past the third annual general meeling following the director's sppointment of three years, whichever is the longer.
Mr Peter McAleer retires in accardance with these requirements and offers himself for re-election,

The Tt flowing summary sets oul Mr McAleer's biographical details:

Pete McAleer, 63, is Chairman of Latin Gald Limited and a Director of Kenmare Respurces Pit; [Iretand). Previgusty,
he vias a Directar and Chief Executive Officer of Equatarial Mining Limited, and a Director of Mineral Ei Tesoio
{Chil2). He has been a Director of Kalahari Giamonds Resourees P2 {England), and Executive Director of Whim
Creel: Consolidated NL, Austwhim Resources Nt and The Northgate Group of Companies [Canada). He has heen
invalved in the discovery, andjor successiul development, of over 10 base and precious metal depesits in Europe,
Austialia, South America and North America,

Mr MrAleer is member of the Audit Remuneration and Komination Committees He has no directorships or other
interezts which might affect his independence. He has no relationships vith Directors of Kingsgate, nor with any
custoners or suppliers of the company. Mr McAleer holds interests in 380,000 shares in Kingsgate.

Following consideration by the Nomination Committee {absent Mr McAleer) and their recommendation in
favour of the re-election, the Board {(absent Mr McAleer) recommends that members vote in favour of the
re-election of Mr McAleer as a Director.

Directors’ Remuneration Report (Resolution 2)

The Directors’ Remuneration Report is incluted in the Company’s Annual Regort 2006 on pages 32 10 43. The
Corporations Act provides that at a Tisted company’s AGM, a resglution that the remuneration report be adopted
must b2 put to the vote. Shareholders will be given the opportunity to ask questions about or make comments on the
remungration report at the Meeting.

The vate on the resolution Is advisory only and does net bind the directors or the Company.

Kingsgate Cansolidated Limited
ABN 42 DOO 837 472

Registered Office and Principal Business Office
Level 8, 14 Murtin Place,

Sydney, New South Wales, 2000

Tel +61 2 8256 4800

Foax +81 2 8266 4810

Emall: Ir.fo@kingsgate.com.au

Websit :: www.kingsgate.com.au
KCN:ASX




Kingsgate

s PROXY FORM

SECTION A
Appointment of Proxy
HWe beng 3 memberds) of Kingsgate Consofidated Limited and entitieg to attend and vole hereby appoint:
the Chairman of the Metling ur ]
{rmsrk with X In bRk B vou wishs fo anponat the Chisdeman) [wrile hese he name OF the person you are appinsing i this peesan s someone other than the Chairman uf the Meeling)

or failing the persor named, or if nc person is named, the Cheirman of the Meeling, as myfour Proxy 1o act generally at the meeting on myfour behalf and o vote in
accordante with the foliowing directions for if no directions have been given, as the Proxy sees fit} at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
200 pm on Wednesday 15 Novernber 2006 at the Museum of Sydney, corner of Phiiip and Bridge Streets, Sydney, NSW 2000 and at any adjournment of that meeting.

SECTION B
Yoting directions Lo your Proxy -- please mark to Indicate your directions -
Ordinary Business FOR AGAINS? ABSTAINT

(%) To re-elect Ky Peter McAleer l:l I:l D
Directors recommend that memters vole in favour of this resolution,

[2) Acceprance of Directors Remunciation Report D I:] D
Thig is a non-binding vote by sharcholders.

f you mark the Abstain box for a particular itens, you are directing your Proxy not to vote on your behalf on @ show of hands or on & poll and your votes witl not be
counted in computing the sequired majority on a poll.

SECTION C
Appolntment of a Second Proxy
IfWe wish to appoint 2 second Proxy.

¢
I:I Mark X' il you wish to nesing g seco s Prooy AND OR D Srate the prrreriage of your Wiing righis or the number of securilies for this Proxy fore

PLEASE SIGN BELOW
This section must be signed in accordante with the instruciions overleaf to enatle your directions to be implementad.

Individuat or Security Holder 1 Security Holder 2 Secarity Helder 3

Sale Director and sole Company Secratary Directer DirectorlCompany Secretary

Contact name Contact day Time telephone Date




This is the name and address on the Share Register of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited. If tis information is incarrect, please make catrections on this fom.
Sharehelders sponsored by a broker shoult advise their hroker of any changes. Please note that you cannat change ownership of your shares using this form,

2. Appointment of a Praxy
IF you wish to appeint the Chairman of the Meeting a5 your Proxy please mark %' in the box in Section A, Please also refer 1o Section B of this Proxy Ferm and
ensure you fnark the box in trak section if you wish 10 appoint the Chairmin 45 your Proxy.

il the person you wish [o appoint as your Proxy is sameone other than the Chairman of Lhe Meeting please write the name of that person in Section A if you
leave This section blank, or your nansed Proxy does not attend the meeting, the Chairman of the Meeting will be your Proxy, & Proxy neet ot be a Sharehoider of
Kingsgate Consolidaled Limit d.

3. Directing your Proxy how ta vote
To direct the Proxy how to vote place an X in the apprapriate box against each itemn in Section B, Whese more than ane Proxy is 10 be appointed and the proxies
are to voiz differently, then bwo separate forms must be used 1o indicate veting intentions

4. Appeintment of a Second Pioxy
You are enfitled 10 3ppoing ufi [0 Two pemsens as Proxies 10 attend the meeting and vote on a pafi. If you wish to appoint a second Proxy an addifional Proxy Form
may be obtained by telephoning the Company's Share Registry (08} 9315 2333 or you may photocopy this form.

To appoint a second Proxy you must:

{a) On each of the first Prowy Form and the seeond Proxy Form state the percentage of your voting rights or sumber of seeurities appficable to that form, If the
| appointments do not specily the percentage or number of voles 1hat cach Proxy may exercise, ¢ach Proxy may exercise half of your vokes; and

tb] Return Goth forms in the same envelope,
. Signing Instructions
Individual: where the holdieg s in one name, the Shareholder must: sign.
Joint Holding: where the hold ng is in mare than ene name all of the Sharehoiders must siyn,

Power of Attorney: 1o sign urler Pewer ¢f Attorney you must have atready lodged this document with the Registry. if vou have not previcusly iodged this
document for natation, please attach a certified photacopy of the Power of Aftorney to this form when you return it

Caompanies: where the Company has o sole Director who is also the sole Company Secretary this form must be signed by that person, If the Company (pirsuant to
secticn 2044 of the Corporations Act 2001} does not have a Company Secretary, a sole Direcior may sign alore. Otherwise this form must be signed &y a Director
iointly with &ither ancther Director o Company Secsetany Please indicate (e office held in the appropriate place.

If & representative of the corporation 1s 10 attend the meeting the appropriate “Certificate of Appointment of Corporate Representative” showid be lodged with the
Company befere the meeting o1 at the registration desk on the day of the meeting. A form of the certificate may be cutained from the Company's Share Registry.

Ledgement of Proxy

This Proxy Form {and any power of ttormey under which it is signed) must be received no Tater than 2:00 pm on 13 Navember 20086, being 48 hours before the time
for holding the meeting. Any Proxy Form received after that time will not be valid for the scheduled meeting. Please lodge the Proxy Form with the Company’s Share
Reqistey, You are encouraged 10 submit your proxy by mail or fax 08 9315 2233, The addresses of Security Transfer Registrars is as follows:

By mail: Security isansfer Fegistrars Py Lid
PO Box 538
Applectoss WA 6943

By hand:  Suite 1, 70 Cannig Highway
Applecross WA 8143

By Fax: Fax number + 61 8 9315 2233
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* LOW COST GOLD PRODUCER
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* CONTINUOUS GROWTH 1Moz GOLD/YR
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

2005/06 was another profitable year, with net
profit of $16.7 million (US$12.3 million), up 99%
on last year, with the prospect of higher profits
to come as the Company becomes unhedged

by the end of 2006/07.

Kingsgate promised sohd production, profit and
yrowilh - and delivered angain.

2005/08 was another profitable year, with net
profit of $16.7 million (U5%$12.3 miltion), up
99% on last year, with th prospect of higher
profits to tome as the Co npany becomes
unhedged by the end of 2006/07. The Directors
have announced dividencs of 10 cents per
share for 2005/08 maintaining a 50% payout
ratio of after tax profits, A curmuiative total of
79 cents per share has be2n paid as dividends
since mig-2002.

A decision was made earl in the pasl financial
year to aggressively defiver into the gold hedge
positions to allow investors greater leverage

1o the gold price and mar-age the new AIFRS
accounting standards. The ariginaf gold hedge
pasilions existed due to the original mine
development being 100% debt financed in
200102 when gold prices were US$260-270
per ounce. The gold price was buayant during
the past financial year, tréding between
U5%$419-725 per cunce gnid.

Consistent mine performance, improved
processing capacity and a continued focus on
costs underpinned the great result. This was
achieved in a difficull year where cost pressures
aifected all producers in the resources

sector. The Directors thank all their staff and
contractoss for such a strang commitment to
efficient production using world's best practice.

The Boartl vas pleased ta see a farge black of
exploration leases [SPL's) granted recently in
Thailand. This demonsirated that Kingsgate's
patience ang persistence pays off with time.
The share price rise on the announcement is an
indication of the market uplift which would be
expected once the mining leases are granted

at Chatree North, Many targets previously
identified within the exploration leases are now
available to be drill tested which provides strang
potential for further deposits in the {uture.

The sell down of 51% equity in the Thai
operating company, Akara Mining Limited, i oa
schedude 1o meet the Thai Board of Investment
guidelines by the end of November 2006.
Kingsgate intends to implement a divestment
process that will result in the Company
ullimately receiving market value tor its Thai
investment, Discussions have been held with
Thai investors and financial and legal advisors
have been appointed to complete the process.

Kingsyalte is seeking to expand the Company,
both at Chalree by increasing production and
through discoveries in the recently granted
exploration licences, as well as elsewhese
outside of Thailand. The aim is to become 8
significant mid-tier gold producer with over
500,000 ounces gold produted annually.

Projects and companies continue 1o be
reviewed in South East Asia, Austratia and
South America, with o preference to leverage
the Company's skill set in exploration,
development and operations in other similar
gold districts.




The Directors are
confident that Kingsgate
is well-placed to
advance its strategy

for responsible,
profitable growth.

A takeover for Andean Resounze Limited fitted

these criteria, with a mineralisation style similar

to Chatree where the Campan /s skitls could be
. effectively utilised. Initial frier dly discussions

Key Results

Financiat Surrchiry
Revenue
Net Profit Before Tax

were rebulfed. A disappointing reaction was Tmeome Tax 3000
received Lo 3 very well pricsd Did with the Fiot Proft Atter Tax $000
target apparenily focused on other issues apart Cash Flow from Operations $000
from the clear value in Kingsg.ate's skill set Capital Expenditure 3000
and track record to explore and develop the Exploration and tand Expenditure 3000
project, as well as the obvious upside potential Dividends Paid {Cash and GRP) $000
in Kingsgate. Basic Earnings Per Share Cents

A new management team has been established

Protuction Summaty

over the last 18 months to drive the Company Ose freated Tonnes
forveard, which started with the CEQ, Gavin Ore Grade Angit
Thomas. A new CFQ, Peter Warren, and the Recovery o
appaintment of a Corporate Develapment Gold Poured O
Manager, Stephen Promnilz, complements the Silver Poured O
recent promotion of Phil Mackntyre inlo the Cash Costs per Ounce 53/0z
newly crezted role of COO, and Ron James into Total Cost per Ounce US$joz
the position of GM Exploration a year ago. The Averoge Realised Price (88/az
Directors continue 1o search far the approgriate Average. Spol Price USS/oz

person with Thai experiente for the Board and
to strengthen the Bangkok-based management.

The Birectors are confident that Kingsgate
is well-placed to advance its strategy for
responsible, profitable groveth, The healthy
outlook for 2006(07, with similar production
levels as the previpus year, prevides upside
potential from becoming an uihedged gold .
produscer by June 2007, poteniial exploration _ . High .
success in newly granted leases, the completion By ™" TN e Dividends
of the sell down and anticipat2d granting of ) . :
mining leases at Chatiee North.

AN

Rass Smyth-Kirk
Director

KINGSGATE DELIVERS

Sustainable IRAE
and Safe &%

et 8 e e e (WPl e O




CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S REPORT

Chatree’s results continue to establish Chatree as
a very low cost producer and in the lowest 20%

of producers globally. Exploration will deliver more
Chatree-style deposits in the near future,

Consistent, low cost gold g roduction with world
rlass safety, environmental and workplace
standards underpinned a ‘tracker’ result for
2005/06. Rapid growith in ‘esources continued
and the feasibility study is almost complete for
the plant expansion at Chatree, A farge block of
explaration leases have be.:n granted recently
which cantain drill ready targets and potentiaily
other Chatree-size deposits.

ProductionfOperations

Tatal production at Chatree for the vear was
140,071 ounces of gold and 459,701 cunces of
sitver at a total cash cost of US$208 per cunce
and 1otal production cost of U5$247 per ounce of
gold. These resulis contin e to establish Chatree
& 2 wery low cost produter and in the lovvest
2080 of producers globalty (Source: Global Mining
Researchl). Industry- wide cast pressures were
managed this year with czgh costs being reduced
390 year-on-year, which was a stand-out resuft.

Gold production represen’s an increase of 10.760
on the previous year mair by as a result of higher
plant throughput Tollowir g the full commissioning
of the pebble crusher. The annualised throughput
rate has increased from 1.83 to 2.35 million tonnes
per annum. However, theie is limited opportunity
10 increase this further pr.or fo the plansed

major expansion.

Continuqus improvement initiatives are
continually assessed, with detailed discussions
underway 10 reduce explogives costs by pieparing
bulk explosives adjacent 1o the mine and using
improved blasting methods to potentially reduce
the grindingfenergy cest per tonne in the plant.
Underground mining under the current pits is
being evaluated at present which may increase
quid production marginally.

Sustainability

Kingsgate operates one of the world’s safest mines,
based on our research, with only one losl time
injury ever {in 2003} in nearly § vears of operation
plus a further year far the ariginal constraction
period. No reportable environmemal incidents
have occurred during the same period.

The Company maintained international
acereditations for IS0 300y for Quality
Management, ISQ 14001 for Environmental
Management and OHSAS 18001 for Occupational
Health and Safety Management. The Company

is finglising £SO 17025 acereditation for

the lahoratory which is anticipated to be

granted shortly.

Akars has also applied for certification of the
Chatree operation to the international SA BOOO
accreditation for Social Accountability ang the
Thaei Labour Standard (TLS BOO1) and is awaiting
certification audits for both. These Standards

provide for lsbour protection, welfare, employee
relations and health and safety, as well as the
Conventions of the Internationat Labour
Organksation and United Nations.

Chatree won several major Thai awards for
outstanding heaith, safety and labour relations,
environmental management and business
excellence. The mine strengthened community
relations through a focus on health and education.

Kingstate has maintained its ‘A’ rating for
sustainahility with RepuTex and its high rating
with the DowJones-SAM AUSS! rating system,
both established for ASX listed companies.

The Company has produced its 4th consecutive
Sustainability Report with a Thai version nearing
completion for stakeholders and new investors
in Thailand,

The Company remains intenl on improving its
'model mine' in Thailand, vhich should
demonstrate the Company's ability to expand and
open further mines in the future in a responsible
manner considering 3li stakeholders.

Expansion Growlh

An expansion is planned 1o double gold production
to approximately 300,000 ounces per year and
increase annusl silver production 1o approximately
2 million ounces from 350-450,000 ounces

at present.




Kingsgate operates one
of the world’s sefest
mines, with only one lost
time injury ever in nearly
5 years of operation.

Ausenco are in the process of completing
the upgrade of last year's stoping study Lo 2
full feasibility study on the expa 1sion of the
processing plant to handle 5 milfion tonnes per
. annum of are. Grinding mills with an increaset
capacity of 2.7 million tanne per annum would
be added. Gravity concentration circuits wilt be
installed on both parallel grindir g circuits A
new leach circuit with a modified Merrifl Crowe
eircuit will be added to improve silver recoveries
from around 45% at present up to 708 This
is considered to be very beneficisl since silver
grades are 3 1o 5 times higher a: Chatree Narth
A pil than 1he current Chatree pits The existing
eyanide carbon in leach circuit wJill be retained and
operated in series.

Industry wide cost increases on capital ilems

and lengthened delivery timefre mes, especially

on grinding mills, are expected (0 impact the

final feasibility study, substantialty increasing the
scoping study capital cast estimates of early 2005,

The expansion will be subject 10 the granling
of nine mining leases at Chatrze North, The
Environmental Impact Assessment (E1A}

for Chatree North has been completed by

the Company and is in the final stages of
assessment by the relevant autharities. Once
the HIA is formally approved, t1e mining leases
applications can proceed with'n the Thai
gavernment approval process.

- i,
Exploration Success at GChatree

2000/ 2002/03

F Ore feserves f%ﬁ

;
fineral Resources ., + Mining Depletion = Exploration Spend USSM
3 3

Exploration Growth

Exploration has continued {o increase resources
by around one million ounces of gold per
annum for the last three years at a globally
low cost of USS? per qunce gold. Mineral
Resources now stand a1 3.8 million ounces gold
angd 32 million ounces sitver, with Ore Reserves
of 1.7 million ounces gold. There has been an
increased focus on converting discoveries to
higher categories of mineral resources and

ore reserves, This was demonstrated by a 45%
increase during the year ol resourcesin the
measured and indicaled category.

The limits of the gotd mineralised system at
Chatree have not been found yet, with the A pit at
Chatree North open in all directions Beyond the
mine area, the mineralisation has been extended
over 23 kilometres north and south of Chatree.
Therefare, the exploration budget has been
increased further, Trom US$7.9 million last year to
USS$11 million for 2006J07, with a fusther drill rig
bringing the total to aine available drill rigs.

A farge contiguous block of exploration leases
[SPL's) were granted recently with a further block
expected 1o be granted soon, covering an area
of 1500 square kilometres in the three provinces
of Phitchit, Phetchabun and Phitsanulok. Over
40 targets were identified by non-tisturbance
surtace sampling and geophysics, allowable prior
1o granting. A number of drill-ready targets are
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available for testing. One targel has a surface
anomaly of a similar size to Chatree of around
23 syuare kilometres, Land access agreements
are being negotiated prior to drilling.

Expioration outside of the Chatree district lead
to new exploration lease applications southeast
of Bangkok.

In South America, Kingsgate continues 1o pursue
oppartunities and acquire tenements in Peru,
Chile and Argentina in search Tor gold and sitver
epithermal systems.

Gavin Thomas Chief Executive Officer
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Kingsgate has an excellent track record of superior
share price performance and total sharenolder
returns over the longer term.

Over the last 5 yearsto end FY0B, investing in

Kingsgate delivered:

o A share price increase of 625%
« Total annual rate of return of 53%’

Group Earmings

The net profit after 1ax for the year was

$16.7 million and represents a 9% increase

on the prafit of $8.4 million achieved in

the previous year. The profit is 2quivalent to
US$12.3 million, a significant i nprovement to
that achieved in 2004/05 of US$6.5 million,
Operatignal performance improved over the
previaus financial year mainly due to a 10%
increase in mill throughput at simifar grades and
a stightly lower cash cosl per ounce. The Group
aggressively delivered into hed Je positions {as

it moves to become an unhedged producer)
vehich impacted on revenues b it not profits as
provisions taken in the transilion to AIFRS were
released. In addition, $2.85 mil'ion of exploration
expenditure mainly in South Ainerica was
expensed to profits during the year.

Gotd production for the year was

140,077 ounces. Total revenue amounted to
$74.1 mitlion, an increase of 11% over the
previous year. The increase in revenue resulled
from higher gold production although the
delivery into hedge positions constrained
revenue_ The average gold price received
Guring the year was US$355 per ounce.

The Group continued with its focus on cost
management and achieved unit cash casts
of production of US$206 per ounce and &
total production cost of US$247 per ounce.
Procurement of supplies and services is
increasingly being sourced within Thailand at
internationally competitive prices.

The weighted average earnings per share for
the year amounted to 19.3 cents rompared
with 9.8 cents achieved in the previous year.

Group Cash Flow

The Group's cash flow for the year totalled
$21.9 million despite the pre-delivery of
out-of-the-money hedges. Net investing

cash fiows for property, plant, equipment and
exploration were $36.2 million and included
$15.3 million invested on exploration activities.

Dividends paid during the year amounted 1o
£7.4 million and a further $1.3 million was
expended on the Share Buy Back program,
under vzhich 376,167 shares were canzelled,

The Group has avallable a financing facility of
US$16 million, with 4 banks participating by
means of a revolving credit facility. The facility
vias fully avaitable at year-end.
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Finzncial Position

Shareholders' equity at 30 June 2006 was
$128 million and represents an increase of
5.6% on the previous year,

Income Tax

The Group's operation is located in Thatiand
and operates under spprovals received from the
Royal Thai Board of Investment {BO). Subject
to meeting BO1 conditions, the benefils of these
approvals intlude an exemption from corporate
income tax for 8 years, with a reduction ot
50% of the standard rate available for 5 years
thereafter based on 3 production of 178,416
ounces of gold and 583,731 ounces of sitver
per year. In addition, there are no withholding
taxes applicable an dividends remitted to
Australia during the initial exemption period,

Risk Management

The Group holds a gold hedge book due to the
original mine development being 1008 debt
financed in 2001J02 when gold prices were
US$260-270 per ounce. The principal objective in
managing revenue risk through the use of hedging
instruments i to minimise the downward price
exposure assotiated with the volatile gold market.

The Group constantly monitors the gold market
and hedge hook to actively manage value, A
decision was made early in the 2005/06 financial
year 10 aggressively dediver into the gold hedge
positions with the view to providing, in the
future, an increased exposure L0 spot gold price
in a rising gold price environment. This resulted
in pre-deliveries of out-6f-the-money hedge
positions during the year.

Financial instruments used by the Groug
inctude forwards, puts and calls, of which a
number have down and out barrier levels, As
at 30 June 2008, price limiting positions had
reduced ta 58,780 ounces of gold at US$317
per ounce which represent approximately
4% of the total Ore Reserves

* AFR Smart Investor, July 2006
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A final dividend of 5 centr. per share was paid (e e
4y to shareholders duting the year relaling to the 7 ’
A 7 22 2004/05 year. In additien, an interim dividend e
Wl for 2005006 of S cents per share was paid to ot T i A
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shareholders in April 200¢. The Directors have
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Business Development 2
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During the course of the year, a takeover bid 7 ; ,fz,.-/’}"’f’r’(/,;iﬁ,l
was made for ASX-listed fndean Respurces i 7 e
Limited, which resulted in a 22.4% strategic i 7 uf;j:’»’:é‘/’ Vi /'/"I/fﬂpf'/'f’%r : 7

. . K it 7 il 4 L LI iy ol
pasition, being pooked as a.sseravanable i ”;:/’,/'1 ; Y e v - ‘/’/:,7//;?;/ AAani
for sate. Potential conflict: of interest were Al i Ll B 7k
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managed in accordance with the Company's
corporate governance paficies. Therefore the
. CEO, Govin Thomas, was excluded from any
involviment in the proces: due to his position
on the board of Andean Rusources at that
time. Kingsgate maintained its 19.7% position
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in Goldstar Resources, which is an explorer g
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The Chatree mine was able to maintain costs with
an increase in plant throughput. This demonstrates
the commitment by the 99% Thai workforce to
productivity and to Kingsgate's ability to operate

in different culiures.

Consistent production was .chieved a{ the Chatree
wine, up 1% 0n the previous year. Challenging
conditions persisied of harcer ore and waste rock,
with fonger haul distances, unusually heavy rain
and the new A pit developed at Chatree North,
against a backdrop of higher industry wide costs.

The mine conlinued its wor ¢'s best practice in
sustainability and is considered ta be the world's
safest metallurgical mining operation, based on
publicly available mine safewy records in Australia
and Cznada (Source: MCA, (IMM),

* Gold production: 140,011 cunces (up 115).
* Silver praduction: 459,701 ounces [up 3080).
» Cash costs: US$206 per ounce {down 3%).

» Total production costs: JS$247 per ounce
[down 65},

* Mill throughput: 2.0 million tonnes per
annum (up 1140},

« Mill throughput annualised rate: 2.35 million
tonnes per anaum (up 309%).

* Hours worked without last time incident:
5.4 million.

* Hours worked since start f construction:
7.5 mition, with one lost ime incident - world's
safest metallurgical mine, on data reviewed,

Peicenines is brackets (X&) represenl change year-on-vedr,

The production inciease was mainly due to
increased milt throughput following the full
eommissioning of the pebbli: erusher. Annuatised

nameplate mili capacity was raised from 1.8 to
2.35 million tonnes per annum. However, there is
limited opportunity 10 increase throuthput further
prior 1o the planned major expansich.

Gold grades for the yedr averaged 2.4 grams
per tonne with a wasle-to-ore ralio of 7:1,
both as forecast.

 Costs were kept down at US$206 per ounce gold

due to the benefits of increased scale, the use

af grid power, lower wage pressures due to few
expatriates and the increased sourcing of materiats
in the local Thai market through the Campany’s
‘Buy Thai* policy. Maintaining costs was an
excellent performance given the intreased costs
of fuel, consumables, explosives and Cyanide. Maost
material mined was hard rock requiring additional
drilling, blasting and grinding in the mifls
Increased rock support was required. The largest
cost increase came with intreased fuel prices and
the gradual removal of all Thai subsidies on fuel
during 2005/06, plus the longer haulage distances
from a deeper pit and from Chatreg North,

Mining activities continued mainly in the C-H-P
pit, with minor contributions from the D and S
pit at Chatree, Development of the new A pit at
Chatree North commented in 2008, folloviing
the geanting of one news mining lease. Personned
increased approximately 30% on site, although
mainly among Lthe contractors.

Continuous improvement initiatives are
continually assessed, with detailed discussions
underway to reduce explosives costs through

the wse of bulk explosives This would invalve
mixing bulk explosives close to the mine and using
improved blasting methods to potentially reduce
the grinding/energy cost per tonne 1n the plant.
Underground mining under the current pits is
being evaluated at present which may increase
gold productien marginally.

Sustainability

Kingsgate operates ong of the workd's safest mines,
based on our research, wilh only one lost time
injury ever {in 2003 in nearly § years of aperation
pius a further year for the onginal construction
period. No repartable environmentat incidents
have occurred during the same period.

The annua! external environmental audit
confirmed that the mine continues to operate

1o high standards ard in compliance with its
statutory requirements The Company maintained
international accreditations with 150 standards
on quality, environment and health and safety
Environmental performance ungder the Mineral
Council of Australia's "Enduring Value’ was
assessed with favaurable results Kingsgate became
a founding signatary to the Internationat Cyanide
Maznagement Code for the safe use, handiing and
storage of cyanide.

Warkplace initiatives continued In Thailand
which included a focus on training and self
improvement as well ag women in management,
Employes's individual bonus structure includes
performance measures against safety and
environmenial targets.




Community development programs conlinued
with assistance to tocal villages, onstruction of
two new schools and support of local cultural
activities. Public education reganfing the planned
expansion and future rehabilitation continued.
Community lelations activities v.ere restructured
with plans to devolve some aspe2ts to a Thai NGO.

Akara, the Thai operating entity, ieceived
numerous Thai awards for outstanding
environmental, health, safety anid 2bour relations.
These include:

¢ The Prime Minister's 'Best Practice
Award for Employee Welfare® (for the
4th consecutive year).

* The National Safety Competizion’s *National
QOccupational Health and Saf>ty and
Envirenment Award 2005,

+ The Ministry of Labour's ‘Besl Practice Award
for Labour Relations' {for the 2nd conseculive
year) and 'Zerp Accident Awzrd!

* The 'White Factory' Award ur der the
‘To Be Number One* (anti-naicolics)
campaign in 2006.

* AusCham Thailand's Business of the Year
Aveard 2006, and ‘Environmental Excellence
Aveard 2006

Kingsgate maintained its high raling with glabal
sustainability ratings agencies, intiuding its ‘A’
rating with RepuTex and its high raling with

the Dowlones-SAM AuSSI rating system, both
established for ASX lisked companies.

The. Company has progduced its 4th consecutive
Sustainability Report with a Thai version nearing
completion for stakeholders and néw investors in
Thailand. Kingsgate is the anly miner on the ASX
currently with an ‘A’ rating or be tey, except for Rip
Tinto and BHP.
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Expansion

An expansian is planned to double gold production
to argound 300,000 ounces er year 3nd increase
annual silver production 10 around 2 milfion
ounces from 350-450,000 unces at present.

Ausento, who constructed the original plant, are
in the process of completiny a full feasibility study
on the expansion of the precessing plant to handle
S million tonnes per annumi of ore. The crushing
section of the plant is planned 1o be duplicated,
adding grinding mills with &1 2.7 million tanne per
annum additional capacily. Gravity concentration
tircuits will be installed on lath parallel grinding
circuits A new leach circuit with & modified
Merrill Crowe circuit will be added to improve
silver recoveries from around 4585 at present

to around 70%. This is cons dered 1o be very
beneficial since silver grades are 3t0 S times
higher at Chatree North A git Lhan the current
Chatree pits. The exisling cyanide carbon in leach
circuil will be retained and uperated in series to
handle all production. A nes Tailings Storage
Facility wiill be added to dew ble capacity and a
new duplicate substation wil be required.

Industry wide cost increases. on capital items
and lengthened delivery tirr eframes, especially
on grinding mills, are expec-ed to substantially
increase the capital cost above the scoping study
estimate of early 2005,

The expansion will be predicated an the grant

of the remaining nine minir g leases at Chatree
North. Good progress wiss made during the year
with the submission of the I'nvironmental Impact
Assessment (£1A) for Chatre: North, currently in
the final stages of assessment by the relevant
autharities. Once the EIA is tormally approved, the
mining leases applications can proceed through
the Thai government approval pracess, although a
timeframe is difficult to estimate,

Muap of Chatree Operations

C Pit with A Pit in background







Exploration continues to be well funded, at US$7.9
million in 2065/06 and forscast to be US$11 million in
2006/G7 due to recently granted exploration leases.

Exploration continues (o del ver fow cost growth in:

+ Resources & Ore Reserves growth at Chatyeef

Chatree North

- with TMozfyr resource growth over
3 years at US$7/oz resource,

- with 3 25% increase n Resources to
3.8Moz gold,

- 8 45% increase in the Measored &
Indieated Respurces to 3 2Moz.

+ Additional prospects near mine
discovered with
- mineralisation detect2d over 23 Kilomelres
north-south from Chatree.

& New drill ready regional targets
- with one similar in sive to Chatree
[23 square kilometresi within
25 kitometres of the inine,

Explorgtion continues o be well Tunded at
US$7.9 million in 2005/06 and forecast to be
USE™ million in 2006/07 d se to continuing
suceess 81 Chatree and tecently granted
exploration leases.

The presence of a new world-class gold province
is being demaonstrated in central Thailand,

Chatree/Chatree North

Exploration continued to fotus on developing
resources and ore reserves in the Chatree

mine area and Chatree North. The Company's
sighificant exploration program achievec
continuing success and raised the totat Company
Ore Reserves to 1.7 million ounces of gold as at
31 May 2006, an increase of 220b on

30 June 2005, including mine depletion. Minera)
Resources as at 31 May 2006 amounted to over
3.8 million ounces of gofd, compared with

3.0 miflion ounces 11 months earlier and
represents a 258 increase over 2005,

One of the exploration objectives was to improve
the quality of resources in the ChatreefChatree
North area. Eight drifl rigs were used to upgrade
the tategory of the resources into the Measured
and Indicated Resource category, necessary

for Ore Reserve estimation and mine planning
associated with the planned plant expansion,

Chatree Morth - Conceptusl View of A Pit and Ore Zones

Current A Pit shell at Chatree North showing high grade underground
potential (purpta) 8nd open cut (red) wire frames of gold zones

A HILL

The Measured & indicated Resource cateqory
increased 450 to 3.2 million ounces gald. Over
4.5 million ounces aof gold have been defined at
the Chatree area.

Kingsgate considers that a world class gold
system exists at Chatsee, Greater than

% million gun¢es gold is the common threshold
for defining a world class gold depasit. The
Company’s geologists believe that potenGal
exists for up to 10 million ounces gold. The
geochemical anomaly at Chatree covers

28 square kilometres and other fargets exist with
a similar size anomaly.

The popular arbitrary threshold is 5 million ounces
to define a world-class gold depasit. Kingsgate
geologists befieve the potential exists for 10 million
ounges of gold in the Chatree and nearby region.

Discovery costs continue to be at globaify low
tevels of US$7 per resource ounce gold for
the last three years, Although resources have
been added at a rapid rate, the limits to the
mineralisation at Chatree/Chalree North have
not been reached, with the system open in
virtually every direction. New discoveries have

30m@18.3g/tAu

‘ 12mE30.0g/tAy
&318gft Ag

A

higher grade
‘u‘ derground
potential




been made at various locations north of the
existing operations and this [rend of minera
discovery is anticipated to continue for the
foreseeable future. The gold mir eralisation at
Chatree is closely associated with a ‘resistivity’
geophysical signature and explcratian work
has identified this discernable anomaly for
approximately 23 kilometres in strike fength
nosth and south of the Chatree operations

Duiing the past year, the propost d ultimate pit
shell for the A — A East pit was extended and new
high grade zones were identified; especially in

the central part of the proposed A pit at Chatree
Norih. High grade gold-silver zones intersected

at depth in A East have excellent potential to
develop into underground target s Best results
included intersections of B-12m it aver 1 ounce
per tonne gald and 10-50 ounce: per tonne silver.

Within the carrent pit at Chatre®, new high
grade zones were identified in the H pit and at
C North and C South, which are geologicalty
continuous and are being assessed for
underground development. Immediately 1o the
west of P pit fies J prospect with some exciting
surface gold intercepts. Drilling in the Chatree

pit ensured that new resources more than
replaced the depleted {mined out} ore.

The exploration focus during 2006{07 wil be

to extend the A pit resource westward in an
undrilled area on the hill itself, left previously as
a naise buffer prior to the development of the
newe pit. Near surfate high grade resuits at Q
praspect will atso be followed up, together with
drill testing east of the planned A pit.

Regionat Expicration - Thailand

On 17 August 2006, 51 contiguous exploration
licences (SPL's} that surround the Chatree mine
in the Phichit and Phitsanulok pravinces were
granted. This was the fargest block of exploration
ficences ever granted in Thailand. The remaining
50 exploration licences in Phetchabun province
are anticipated o be granted shorily. This will
allow: for detailed exploration to commence over
& large 1500 square kilometie area in the highty
praspective central gold belt of Thailand where
several drill ready 1argels have been identified.

Since applying for these SPUs almaost three
years ago, Ringsgate's Thailand subsidiaries have
been conducting permissible reconnaissance

exploration including airborne geophysics
{magnetic, radiometric and resistivity surveys),
regionat stream sediment sampling, rock chip
sampling and geological mapping. Across the
three pravinces, 40 targets have been identified
for detailed follovs-up, with 30 of those targets
located by the Kingsgate-Akara team.

The oiher key exploration focus during 2006/07
will be to drill-test some of these exclting diilf
ready targets away from the main Chatree system.

The Chatree Gold Mine has at its disposal

nine drill rigs of wihich seven are dedicated

to exploration, although they are dominantly
tocused near mine. Fhe Company alse has 18
exploration geologists with excellent knowledge
of the area and is recruiting additional personnel
to explore the SPUs,

One drill ready targel has a surface anomaly
similar 1o Chatsee covering approximately

23 square kilometres. Other targets have
potential for significant high gratle gold veins,




Eisewhere in Thailand, Kingsgate's first mover
advaniage helps in selecting other pricrity
targets for exploration licence applications.
Fourteen applications wese made during the
year over an area approxim ately 100 kilometres
south-east of Bangkok, Sarapling has been
ronducted to the north of Chatsee towards Loei
and the Laos border where additional SPLA's are
being considered.

South Ameriea

Kingsqate has been exploring in Peru, Chile

and Argentina for over three years seeking fow
sulphidation epithermat gold deposits simitar
to Chatree, Mines have been developed on suth
leposils but most of the exploration emphasis
traditionally has been for 1z rger, higher grade
high sufphidation epithermal gold deposits or
porphyry copper deposits.

Numerous projects have been revievied for
potential acquisition or joini ventureffarm-in,
Some leases have been abtained over
exploration targets with op a ground available
for applicatian in each of the three countries.

' 0 One prospect in Northern Chile, near Copiapo,

' underwent a detailed drill program and although
gold veins were intersected, the leases were
abandoned due to unsatisfeetory results.
Anather project in the high Andes of Peru will
require substantially more surface exploration
prior to a decision to drill as access is solely by
mule or foot.

The exploration melhodalogy and approach to
project assessment is currer lly being reviewed in
order to maximise cost effectiveness.
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MiINERAL BESOURCES AND GRE RESERVES

o

Mineral fesueroes Intiusive of Ore Reserves a3 af 31 Moy 2006 (> 060/t Au cut off)

. Chatree Mine Total™ -
o '-D_n_CurrmLL:aspm '
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Prelimirary (a1 optimisitions st USS450/02 gold imt:cate 2 0,691 gold eut-off & uppropriste.
The resource Diock maded has been optimistd To compensate for the smalker mining blocks baset on Lhe operationat history of seiective mining ar Chatree.
Using the September 2005 resource cut-off grade of 0.7g)t, Resources are 3.58Moz goltt @1.8gJt & 29Moz sitver @150/t

’ Gre Reserves as a4t 31 May 2006 (>0.7g/t Au cut off)

.+ TCurrent Chatret Lea

e, e

U Sub-toted
T Proved T
- Probae
U Subetotal

e eeeee S‘Mpiks ............... B T

T Kingsgate Total " Total

Huses:
Some reunding of figares may cause rumbers not [o adi correctly,
Mnctudes C,H, D, HS, HW, S and P i 15 3t Chatree Ming cut 1o the May 2006 surface.
Linctudes A, AE, O, KW and KE at Chatree Norh,
#(hatree Mine Lease Notes
“Based on o compasite of the currnt design and *H main' anid 'C south’ cut backs & the 'C North' undeigrommd.
¥Based on & SUSE00Jaz gold price and $US 11/oz silver price, oty at Chatree mine,
#Assumes the remaining containet gold can be forward sold in the medium seem.
fiReserves exclutie the highway 131 coridor and some underground options The September 2005 staterment induded open pit zeserves in The highvedy coridor which
have now been excladed.
<Mining costs an average have inc eased from $US1.07JE to $1.45/¢ tiased on updated assessments of long ferrn tue! COSIS, Consumables, mining contradl tosts nduding
oeilt and Ylast) and georechnicat services.
TExgected increases to mining & processing costs have been aliowed for in the optimisation parameters
“ Chatree Morth Notes
“Based on 4 three yeat average goltt price of $US450foz and 2 silver price of 3USNJoz.
“Based on maditied optimum pit shells inciuding baut road aliowanee in the slopes, long term fucl, corsumables, and mining conrract prices
A Heserves hawve been truncated st the bighveay 1301 corritdar, which has resufted in a retuction of certain reserves contained within the 30 September 2005 announcement.

Chaoteer Gold Mine Ore Bes sove Beconciiistion

Information in this report that relates to geology, drilling, mineralisation 3nd Mineral Resource estimates is based on information compited by Rob Spiers, Ron James and Mike
Garmman who are Compettnt Forsons under the meamng of the JORC Code with respeet to the mineratiation being reparted on. These interim estimates are unaodited by

an independent expert. All the joint a athors of the Mineral Resource Statement are employees of Kingsgate Consatidsted Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Alf hawe
given their consent 11y the Putlic Repirting of these statements concemning geoltygy, drilling and mineratisation in this format.
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KINGSSATE'S RECORD NUMBER OF AWARD
lING SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES




Kingsgate is the only gold mining company on
the ASX to be inzluded in the RepuTex Social
Responsibility Investment (SRI} Index and

achieved an A reting.

Ringsgate conducts its operalion: Lo the

highest standards and with due tgard for the
ecenemic, sotial, governance and envirenmental
considerations for the benedit of ull stakehokders
The Company strives {o achieve a ‘model mine for
a model future!

Highlights for 2006

Kingsgate maintained its excellen: safety record,
strengthened its environmental practices and
completed a number of community
development projects.

The anneal external environmental audit
confirmed that the mine continugs 1o aperate
to high standards and in compliar.ce with its
statutory requirements

Environmental performance unde - the Mineral
Council of Australia's ‘Enduring Velue” was
assessed with favourable results. 'Fnduring Value®
is a Sustaingble Develupment Framework for the
mining industry which fesiers the implementation
of arange of envionmental, econamic and

social initiatives.

The Company became a founding signatory of the
International Cyanide Management Code for

the safe use, handling and storage of cyanide,
placing us among Lhe largest of our peer group
mining companies

Satety performance at Chatree was outstanding
with no lost time injuries for the entire year. On
the basis of publicly available mine safely records
in Australia and North America, Ct atree is believed
to be safest metallurgical mining ¢ peraticn in

the world.

Community development programs conlinued
with assistance 10 local villages, corstruction of
w0 new schools and support of lccal cultural
activities. Community relations aclivities were
restructured with plans 1o devolve some aspects
10 & Thai NGO

External Ratings and Awards

Kingsgate is the only gold mining company gn
the ASX to be included in the RepuTex Social
Responsibility Investment [SRI) Index launched
in Augusl 2005 and achieved an A rating. The
RepuTex SRI Index comprises 44 companies
from the SBPJASX 300 Index. The rating is an
assessment of the exten! to which an organisation
is performing in 2 socially responsible manser
and managing its social risk exposures in terms
of corporate governance, environmental impact,
social impact and workplace practices.

Kingsyate is the only Australian mining company
to be included and have an A rating or higher,
apart from the two major mining groups, BHP
Billiton and Rio Tinto. it is rated similarly 1o

large Australian companies such as Wesfaimers,
Woodside and OneSteel and international
companies such as Kogak, Michelin and Reuters.

Also Kingsgate is one of four gold companies
included in the Zurich based SAM Group
Austratian Sustainabiity Index, which is
affitiated with the Dowlones Sustainability
ratings, that considers companies listed on
the SAPJASX 200 Index that outperform in
relation to economic, environmental and
social considerations.

Akara, the Thai operating company, also
achieved several major awards for its
performance including:

» The Prime Minister's 'Best Practice Award for
Employee Welfare' 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006.

* The 'National Occupational Health & Safety and
Environment Award' 2005,

¢ The Ministry of Labour "Best Practice Award for
Labour Relations' 20085, 2006.

¢ The Ministry of Labour Zero Accident
Award’ 2006

® The Department of Primary Industries and
Mines 2005 Standard Award - Mining Categary
and Metallurgy Category. Akara is the only
rompany 1o have won both categories.

* The ‘White Factory' Award in the "To Be Number
One' [anti-narcotics) campaign in 2006.

* The ‘Business of the Year 2006' Award by
AusCham Thaitand.

* The Environmental Excellence 2006 Award by
AusCham Thailand.

Attaining these awards recognises the
commitment of our workforce and confirms
that Chatree operates at the highest standards
comparable with mining operations anywhere
in the world.

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
Enduring Value is aligned with the principles of
the Glabsl Reporting tnitiative and signatories
are required to report against a number af

@RI indices. In 2008, Kingsgate committed to
report against the full list of GRI indices and
our Sustainability Report shows our progress
to date. We will progressively report against all
the indices over lime through a variety of media
including this and other public Sustainability
Reports, Kingsgate's Annual and Financial
Reports and Lhe Company web site.

People

As 2t 30 June 2008, the Chatree mine had 265
employees, exploration 86 employees, plus 572
long term contractors. 93% of the workiorce
were Thai nationals. Kingsgate employs 22
geologists and 64 associated permanent and
temporary staff engaged in mine site and
regional exploration throughout Thailand. The
contractor workforce increased by 2306 in
2006 due to longer waste haulage distances
and construction activities associated with the
raising of the Tailings Storage Facility.




We have continued to assess ways of enhancing
the value of our operations in Thailand for the
benefit of both countries and we are committed to
a long term partnership with Thailand to develop
the country’s gold resources.

Where possible, local comm ity members are
employed preferentially and local contractors are
commissioned ta undertake work at the ming

or on exploration tenements The local farmers
are relatively poor and Lheir children are often
lorced to seek employment away from home in
Bangkok. The Chatree operation offers alternalive
employment opportunities and regional economic
advancernent, and it helps n:duce migration to
urhan argas The Company kas a policy to improve
the quality of life for women viorkers who
comprise approximately 13% of the workforce
and 20M of the seniar manzgement team. Local
contractors carry out apen pit mining, as well gs
providing employee transpot, cooking and eating
facilities, secunty and other services.

Akara has spplied for certification of the Chatree
operation to the Thai Labour Standard (NS
8001} and is awaiting a cerlification audit. The
Standard provides for labowr protection, welfare,
employee relations and health and safety, as well
as the Conventions of the Internationat Labour
Organisation and United Na‘ions.

Workforee in 2006

994y of workforce are Thai nationals

Safety Performance

Safety in the workplace is integral 1o Chatree’s
operational and sustainability policies and the
mine strives for an incident free environment

for all employees and contractors Chatree has
developed appropriate policies, codes, procedures
and ongoing training Lo help maintain an accident
free work place

All stoff and contractors are required to complete
the Site Safety and Environment Induction before
working on the mine site. All employees are re-
inducted on an annual basis and undergo further
training in selation to their specific oocupations.

The excelfent satety performance of previous years
cantinued in 2006 and Chatree has worked more
than seven million hours with only one lost time
injury up to 30 June 2006. For the year ended 30
Jure 2006, the Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate
(LTIFR) was 0 compared with an industry average of
40 for Australian open cut mines iMinerals Council
of Australia statistics). The mine has achieved an
injury rate in the lowest quartile of international
safety statistics since starl-up and, on the basis of
publicly avaitable safety records [induding the North
American Mining Industry}, is believed to be the
safest metallurgical mining operation in the workd.

Training and Development

Since commenting aperations, the mine has
impemented an extensive range of training
prograrms for its employees. The programs
have been enarmously successful as evidenced
by the safety, environmental and operational
performance of the mine. Pedformance in all
aspects of the pperation has been comparable
with Australian mines and is a credit to the
inherent skills and diligence of the Thai people.

The mine has provided basic training in all aspects
of the aperation but alsc in other areas such as
risk assessment, first aid, fire fighting, chemical
safety and emergency response. Specific courses
are provided in Cross Cultural Management,
Assertiveness and Accountabitity, Performance
Management and Team Building.

In 2006 Chatree employees attended a range of
short coursegfworkshopsfeonferences in Thailand,
Laos, Indonesia, India and Australia as well as
assisting in exploration activities in Peru and Chile,
The courses covered areas such as environmental
management, sustainable development, logistics,
grade control, risk assessment, health and salety,
minesal resource estimation and exploration.

Chatree has an Educational Assistance Program
which encourages emplayees to take job-
related courses thus developing their skills and
potential for promotion, and irnproving their
productivity. Chatree is currentiy sponsoring
eight employees for 3 Master of Business
Administration, one for a Master of Computer
Science and one for a Doctorate in Geology.
Three employees have graduated from the
Chatree sponsored MBA program.

Economic Contribution

Kingsgale conlinues 10 support Iocal business
development and promate 8 ‘Buy Thai' policy.
Since commencing operations we have proactively
sourced more of our goods and services Trom
Thailand in preference 1o importing them from
Austrahia and other countries. More than 80% of
our warehouse items are sourced from

within Thailand.

We have continued to assess ways of enhancing
the vatue of our gperations in Thailand for the
benefit of both countries and we are committed to
a long term partnership with Thailand to develop
the country’s gold resources, We expect to finafise
a divestment gption by Noverber 2006, which
will being Thai investors into the project as an
interim measure prior to an 1P on the Thai stock
exchange in 2-3 years time,

Substantial payments are made in the form of
wages, taxes, royallies, goods and services alf of
which have a major benefit on the local economy.
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in 2006, Chatree spent US$40.9 million on
goods and services of which 19 vias spent in
local provinces and 3 further 67% in the rest of
Thailand. In addition, US$1.50 million veas paid in
rovalties and US$0.8 million in jaxes and duties.

To date the total investment in Thailand &
approxérnately $170 million. A major part of

this investment s our extensive explaration and
evaluation programs that total nearly $70 million.
In 2008, the Company invested $15 million in
exploration and evaluation, with a similar amount
10 be invected in the forthcoming year. We have
commenced development of th: A pit at Chatree
North and regard the Chatree re gion as a potential
new world class gold province. 1We hold 3 large
and highly prospective land paciage, either as
granted exploration licences or .15 applications

for exploration, with the potential to host further
mineral fields similas in seale to Chatree,

The multiplier benefils to the Tt al economy have
been estimated to be 3 1o 6 timas greater than the
direct investment, with over 2010 people gaining
benehit from the mine's activities apart from direct
employees and contraciins.

Environmental Management
Kingsgate is committed to Dest practice
ervironmental management in all aspects of
the operation and has implemented standards
and poficies thal provide the highest degree of
protection for employees and the environment,

Chatree mine's Environmental Managemeént
System {EMS) ts accredited as achieving the

150 14001 standard. The EMS describes the
organisational structure, responsibilities, pracices,
processes and resources {or implementing and
maintzaining environmenta! management,

The Ervironmental Management Plan [EMP)
factlitates compliance with relevant tieences,
legistation and targets {or the site. [t outlines
specific procedures 1o aid the implementation of
the EMP, such as revegetation trials and waste rock
emplacement trials and contains specific plans for
water managerent and waste managemént,

Mining operations at Chatree are controlled by
the approved Environmental impact Assessment
(E1A) which found that there were no pratected
of biodiversity-rich areas within the proposed
area of operation, no wetlands of international
significance, endangered flora or fauna ar other
areas of ecological significance. The region had
been cleared for many years of original vegetation
and is novr predominantly used for farming and
fice growing.

The Company has campleted and continues 10
research revegetation and tree plantings, useful
local flora species, acid drainage prevention, and
groundweater modelling and recharge. Post mining
land use options are being tested to detecmine
pessible final 1306 use types The options along with
30 models of post mining land forms are being
presented to local stakeholders for thelr input.

Climate Changt and Greenhouse

Gas Emissions

Thailang ratified the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) in
December 1984 and the Xyoto Protocol in
Aegust 2002,

Kingsgate acknowledges that climate change
is a real internationai and communitly concern.
We support and endorse various initiatives for
voluntary actions consistent with internationg!
initiatives on climate change. Kingsgate strives
to minimise environmental impacts and uses
the best available technologies to promote
energy efficiency and minimise greenhouse
0as eMmissions,

Al Chatree, the mine has introduced a range of
initiatives to save enecgy and reduce emissions.
These include introducing a site Energy
Conservation Policy, forming a Poveer Smarl
Committee to evaluate n2w energy saving
initiatives and pramating energy management
to all employees and contractors.

Emissions to air are produced from electricity use
and the corsumption of diesel fuel from mining
operations The major consumer of electricity

is the processing ptant, with minor amounts
associated with various administrative activities,

Auditing and Review

Chatree carries out a comprehensive
environmental auditing and review program to
assess compliance with licence conditions, relevant
legislation, EMS abjectives and best practice
environmental management. The progrom s based
on regular internal and external emironmental
audits These sudits are regasded as key feedback
and quality control mechanisms that facilitate
continual improvement of enviranmental
management programs and sysiems. A summary
of Chatree’s envirpnmental audit program is
shown in the table on the fotlowing page.




Akara promotes education through the sponsorship
of educational programs in local schools,

providing scholarships to local students, providing
educational assistance to employees and hiring
students as part of their school training program.

Monthly teports are provided to the Kingsgate
Board of Directors to ensuri: regular review of
management strategies anc potential
envirchmental impacts. The Boasd ensures further
checks and balances by commissioning an annual
independent environmental audit of the

Chatree operations.

The annual independent environmental audit

of the operation was condusted early in 2008,
following the submission to the Thai suthorities
of the annual envicanmentz | monitoring report.
The independent audit consisted of an assessment
of compliance with licence requirements and the
practicality, relevance and pzrformance of specific
environmental management strategies.

Community Develapment

Chatres contributes to a wide range of community
initiatives which seek to stre ngthen relationships
with stakeholders and lead 10 improvements in the
quality of life of local communities and introduce
sustainable benedits and actwities Following

lhe installation of a refiable water supply to two
local villages fast year, the Campany funded the

construction of two schools and educational
facilities in the two villages close to the mine.
Chatree management encourages participation
in local community events and supports a wide
range of cammunity ant cubtural sctivities
including local festivals, national Tamily days and
monk leave for young male employees.

Chatree’s community development program
pravides a range of opportunities for direct and
indirect employment, increased access to health
and education, construction of roads and water
delivery infrastracture, sporting infrastructure,
and financial contributions to local communities
through refigious centres and sporting events.

Akara Mining Limited promotes education
through the spansarship of educational programs
in local schools, providing scholarships to focal
students going on to further education, providing
educational assistance to employees and hiring
students as part of their schoal training program.
In 2006 Akara also funded the building o new
schools at Ban Khao Din and Ban Dong Long.

The schoals were opened an Nationat Children's

Summary of Chatree’s Environmental Audit Program

Audit Seepe

}\ud)! Type {
}

I
P Auditor
v

Day in a special ceremony attended by provincial
and local government officials, community teaders,
teachers and children.

It is impartant that new community development
activities are well-researched and euliuralty
appropriate for Thailand. In 2004105, tva
consultants were engaged 10 analyse and atlvise
on how best practice community development
activities may be implemented at Akara in a way
which is suited to the loral community. Research
includéd interviews with key Thai personnel,
community and provincial leaders

Current regional development goals at the
provincial level were examined and Thai best
practice examples of community development
explosed. Key Thai personnel undestook & site visit
to a leading Thai resources company renowned for
its community development initiatives and initial
meptings have been held with Thai community
development specialist organisations regarding
collaboration in this area.

Frequeniy

internal environmental Compliance with environmental management Chatree Internal Audit Team Quarterly and
audit abjectives and plans annually
External environmental Compliance wilh licence conditions, applicable Independent Australian Annual
compliance audit laws in Thailand and the Chatree Gold Mine environmental consultant

Environmental Policy
Minerals Council Compliance with the Australizn Mineral Industry’s Independent Australian Annual
of Australia Code for Enduring Value environmental consultant
150 5001 Compliance of Quatily Assurance Program with External independent international Semi annual
certification audit 150 9001 Certification Auditors
150 14001 Compliance of the Chatree Gold Mine Environmental  External independent international Semi annual
certification audit Managernent System [EMS) with SO 14001 Certification Auditors
OHSAS 18001 Compliance of the Chatree Gold Mine Safely External independent international Semi aanual

cestification audit

Management Systern [SMS) with OHSAS 18001

Certification Auditors
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The Company's Board of Directors is accountable o
shareholders for the proper and prudent investment

and preservation of shareholder funds.

Xingsgate Consolidated Limited (the Company)
and the Board are committed to achieving and
demonstrating the highest standards of corporate
governance, The Company's frarmewaork is largely
consistent with the ASX Cororate Governance
Council's “Principles of Gooe Corporate
Governance and Best Practice Recommendations?
The Board continues to review the framework

and practices 1o ensure they meet the interests
of sharehofders. The Compar v and its controlled
entities togéther are referrec to as the Group or
Consolidated Entity in this statement.

The relationship between the Board and senior
manhagement is critical (o the Group's long

term success. The Directors aze responsible to
shareholders for the perfarmance of the {ompany
in both the shart and the lorg term and seek fo
balance sometimes competir g objectives in the
hesk interests of the Group as a whole. The focus
of the Directors is to enhance the interests of
sharehaolders and ather key suakeholders and to
ensure the Group is properly managed.

Day to day managemenl of Lhe Group's affairs
and the implementation of the corparate strategy

and policy initiatives are (ormally delegated by the

Board to the Chief Executive Officer and senior
execulives as set oul in the Group's delegations
policy. These delegations are reviewed on an
annual basis.

This Corporate Governance statement
outlines the key components of Kingsgate's
governance frameweark.

Shareholders

Shareholders play an important part in the
governance of the Group by ¢lecting the Board,
whose task it is to govern on their behalf. In
tarrying out this role, the Bozrd recognises that
shareholders must receive tirely and refevant
information of the highest stiundard. The Board
oversees the protocols for investor and media
relations with a view to fatilitating an efficient,
competitive and informed market,

Compos:tion of the Board of Directors -

Under the Corporations Act 2001, the mlmmum number of D:rectors the Company musl have Is

The Board currcntlv has 3 non-executwe members. includmg the (‘hanrman
The names of the Directors in ofﬁce and their relevant details are outlined below

Kingsgate is a publicly listed entity on the
Australian Stock Exchange and is subject Lo
continudus disclosure abligations. tn generai
terms, these ohligations iequire the Company to
notity the market immediately of any infarmation
which a reasonable person would expect to have
a material effect on, or lead 10 o substantial
movement in, the price or value of its securities.

In order to meet these obiectives and satisfy
requlatory requirements, the Board provides
information 1o shareholders and the market in
several ways:

* Significant announcements are released
directly 10 the market via the Australian
Stock txchange and are placed on the
Company web site.

* The Kingsgate web site (www.kingsgate.com.au)
contains further information about the Group
and its aetivities, including Annual, Interim and
Quarterly Reports, and media presentations.

From time to time, investment briefings
ate conducted in arder to promote a better
understanding of the Group,

Site visits are also arranged to give those
who advise investors 3 better understanding
of the Group's operating facifities and
explaration prospects.

* The Annua! General Meeling provides an
opportunity far the Board to comnunicate
with investors directly.

Details of the members of the Board, their
experience, expertise, qualifications, term of
office and independent states are set out in the
Directors' Report under the heading “Information
on Directors”

Directars have 3 broad range of business, finandial,
technical and international experience. This gives
the Directors the range of skills, knowledge,

and experience necessary to govern the Group,
intluding an understanding of the health, safety,
environmental and community-related issues that
it facea

Directors are not appointed for a fixed term

but are subjecl to re-election by shareholders,

at least every three years, in accordance with

the Constitution of the Company. Shareholders
are also required to ratify, at the next Annual
General Meeting, the appointment of any Director
appointed thioughout the year to fill a vacancy,

The Board's Nomination Committee is responsible
for considering the re-nomination of retising
Direttors, having regard ta the contribulion

of their skills and experience 10 the desired
composition of the Board,




independence of

Non-Executive Directors

The Board has considered the incependence of

the 3 non-executive Directors and considers all

of them to be independent of management and
free from any business or other ralationships that
could materially intesfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment.

In the context of Director independence,
“materiality” is congidered from both the
Company and individual Director perspective. The
determination of materiality requires consideration
of hoth quantitative and gualitative elements. An
item 15 presumed o be quantitatively immaterial
if it is equat to or less than 5% of' the appropriate
base amount. 1L is presumed to b2 material {unless
there is qualitative evidence to the contrary) if it
is egual to or greater than 10% cf the appropriate
base amount, Qualitative factors eonsidered
include whether & refationship is strategically
important, the competitive landscape, the nature
of the relationship and the contraclual or other
arrangements governing it and cther factors
which point 10 the actuzl ability of the Director

in question to shape the direction of the.
Caompany's loyaity,

Role of the Board

The Campany's Board of Directors is actountable
to shareholders for the proper ard prudent
investment and preservation of shareholder funds.
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are separated and clearly definec. The Chairman
leads the Board and is responsiblz far ensuring
the effectiveness of governance aractices He is
aise responsible for Lhe conduct 3f Board and
shareholder meetings.

Respansikility for the operations of the Company
is defegated to the Chief Executre Officer who
manages the Company within the policies set by
the Board of Directors. The levels of authority for
management are also document d,

The Baard has atso deleyated some of its
respansibilities to committees Bhrectors hiave

the right, th connection with their duties and
responsibilities as Directors, 1o seek independent
professional advice at the Company's expense.
Prior written approval of the Chairman is required,
which will not be unreasonably withheld. A copy
of the advice is to be provided 10 alf Directors.

There are a nuraber of matters that the Board is
specifically responsible for, These include setting
the strategic direction of the Company, the
appointment of key senior executives, approval
of the financial accounts and environmental
reports, approval of financial policies and the
budget, and averall review of operating results,
risk mahagement, remuneration fevels, succession
planning and significant capitaj expenditure. The
Board is akso responsible for appaintment of the
external auditors.

Board Meetings

There are 10 scheduled Board meetings each

year with further ad hoc meetings held as and
when required. The Board combines 3 visit fo the
Chatree Gold Mine with a Board meeting regularly.
individual Directors are encouraged 10 visit the
mine at their discretion.

The Board receives monthly reports on the
Group's activities and undertakes a full reviews
of them when setting the annual budgets and
approving strategic plans for future years. In
audition, the Board receives specific reparts and
presentations on items of special intesest either
on a regular bacis or as requested. Briefings by
seniof management are a regular feature at
Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Comimittee,
which is comprised entirely of independent
nan-executive Directors, The committee is chaired
by Juhn Falcones, the other members being

Ross Smyth-Kirk and Peter McAleer.

% Sty

In addition, the Chiet Financial Officer and the
pariner responsibie for the Company’s extesmal
audit atiend the meetings

The Audit Committee’s primary funclions are fo:

* Review the financial information provided by
the Board to shareholders and other parties and
ensure that it is {rue and fair and complies with
refevant accounting standards.

-

Ensure that corporate risk management policies
and internal controls are in place and are
maintained in aceordance with appropriate
standards and statutory requirements.

-

Oversee and evaluate the quality of the audits
conducted by the external auditors.

Provide for open communication between
the external auditors and the Board for the
exchange of views and infarmation.

L ]

Recommend to the Board the nomination and
remuneration of the external auditors and
ensure their independence and integrity.

* (versee the Company’s transition 10
International Financial Reparting
Standards (IFRS).

As appropriate, the tommittee feports 1o the
Board on all matters relating to the Company's
financiat affairs.

The Boarg has adopted a policy relating 10
auditor independence. The policy requires the
external auditors to confirm that they hawe
maintained their independence in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001 and the rules

of professional accounting bodies. The policy

also specifies obligations regarding employment
relationships, financial relationships and provision
of non-audit services by the auditors In particutar,
management tonsultancy, IT implementation

and specialist internal audit work will not be
performed by Lhe external auditor.




Operational and financial risks are regularly
reviewed by the Board and appropriate risk
management strategies considered.

Nomination Committe?

Ihe Nomination Committex: is comprised of
independent non-executive Direttors, with

Ross Smyth-Kirk as Chairman, lohn Fafconer and
Peter McAleer as members,

The Namination {ommittes supports and advises
the Beard in fulfilling its responsibifity to ensure
that it comprises individual;; who are best able 10
discharge the responsibilities of Directors, having
regard to the law and the highest standards of
gavernance, by:

o Asgessing the skills required on the Board.

® Reviewing the structure, size and compasition
of the Board.

From time to time assesiing the extent to
which the required skills are represented
on the Board and ensuring appropriate
succession planning is irs place.

¢ Oversee annuaf performance assessment
profjram.

* Prepare and pvaluate for t e identification of
suitable candidates for appointment to the Board.

When a Board vacancy exists or where it is
considered that a Director with particular skills or
experience is required, the Board selects a panel
of candidates with the appropriate expertise

and expenence from which the most suitable
candidate is appointed on merit. This ensures
that the Board continues to have an appropriate
batance of skills and experience,

Remuneration Commiltee

The Remuneration Committe is comprised of
independeni non-executive Directars, with

Ross Smyth-Kirk as Chairman, John Faltoner and
Peter McAleer as members. The commiitee has
the right to seek any infarmation it considers
necessary 10 fulfil its duties, including the right
to obtain appropriste external advice at the
Group's expense.

The Remuneration Committee supports and
advises the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities o
shareholders by:

» Recommending to the Board, with the Chief
Executive Officer, an appropriate executive
remuneration policy.

* Determining the remuneration of Birectors.

* Reviewing and approving the remuneration
of those reporting directly to the Chief
Executive Officer, and other senior executives,
a5 appropriate.

* Reviewing all equity-based plans for approval
by the Board.

Share Ownership and Dealing

Directors and (fficers who wish o buy or

sell Company shares are required to nolify

the Chairman prior to dealing in such shares.
Directars and Officers are prohibited from
short-term trading of the Company's shares

or trading shares while in possession of price
sensitive information. Subject to the foregoing,
Directors and Officers may buy o1 sell shares in
the Company in the four week pediod following
significant announcements by the Company,
including the release of the quarterly repar, half
yearly resuits, the preliminary annuai results angd
the lodgement of the Ahnuail Report. At all other
times the Board must receive prior notice of
transactions, which are subject 1o Board velo.
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Any deatings in Kingsgate shares are reported

1o the Board at its next meeting. The Australian
Stock Exchange is natified of any share deating by
Directors within the applicable time limit,

Internat Control and Risk Management
The Board has overall resporsibiliy for the
Group's systerns of internal contra) These systems
are designed to ensure effective ¢ nd efficient
operations, intluding financial reparting and
compliance with [aws and regulaions, with a view
to managing the risk of failure to achieve business
ohjectives 1t must be recognised * hat internal
control systems can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against tre risk of

material loss,

Areas of apesational and financia risks are
reqularly revieveed by the Board and appropriate
risk management strategies considered, The

risk, control and reperting profiles: are evaluated
and presenied 1o the Buard, together with a

risk improvement program designed to improve
controls and belter manage the overall level of
risk. The Company has implementisd and received
accreditation for S0 9001:2000 on Quality
Control, SO 14001 on Environmental matters and
1S0 18001 on Occupational Health and Safety. In
addition, the Company became a signatory to the
International Cyanide Manageme 11 Code for the
safe use, handling and storage of cyanide.

Kingsgate actively manages its e£posure to
movements in the gold price and foreign
currenty exthange rates through the use of
hedging instruments The principal objective
in managing revenue risk is to minimise the
downward price exposure associated with
valatile markets while endeavouring as far
a3 passible 1 preserve the opparlunity to
participate in upward price movements.

Regular reports are provided to the Board in the
areas of financial exposures, health, safety and
environmental matters

The Company formed a strategic Thai-based
advisory committee of experience business
people who &re in regular contact with the Board

and senior management, The committees focus s
10 provide strategic direction and guitance for the
Company in Thailand,

Kingsgate also operates a company-wite

risk management program which provides a
systematic approach o assessing and addressing
its risks and opportunities for improvement.

This program complements and strengthens

other existing risk management initiatives It

aims to improve the Company's bottom line
through reduced loss and better management

of retained risk, and through reduced insurance
premiums. Major proposals submitted 1o the Board
{or consideration must be accompanied by a
comprehensive risk assessment and management's
proposed mitigation strategies.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee policy &s to appoint external
auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and
independence. The performance of the externat
auditor i reviewed annually and applications for
tender of external audit sefvices are requested as
deemed appropriate, taking into consideration
assessment of performance, existing value and
tender costs. PricewaterhouseCoopers weie
appointed as the external auditors in May 1989.

It s PricewaterhouseCoopers' policy to rotate
audit engagement partners on listed companies at
least every feve years, and in accordance with that
policy a new audit partner will be engaged for the
2006/07 audit,

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors,
including a break-dovin of fees for non-audit
services, is provided in the Director's Report. itis
the policy of the external auditors to provide an
annual declaration of their independence to the
Audit Committee.

The external auditor 5 requested to attend the
Annual Genergl Meeting and be available 10
answer sharehalder questions about the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and content of
the audit repart.

Social and Environmental Responsibility
Kingsgate & committed to meeting high standards
of compliance with respect 10 its health, safety,
environmental and community responsibilities as
these are inteyral to the way in which the Group
conducts its busness

Kingsgate ks subject to significant environmental
regutation with respert to its explaration and
mining activities. Kingsgale is a signatory to

the Austratian Mineral Industry's Code for
Environmental Management The annual external
envitenmental audit confirmed that the mine
continues to operate fo high standards and

in compliance with its statutory requirements.
Environmental performance under the

MCA's ‘Enduring Value' was assessed with
favourable resulls

The Company has developed an effective
Environmental Management Systems (EMS) which
has 150 14001 certification.

Reviews of the Company’s environmental
performance have included:

= External regulatary inspections at the operating
site and exploration areas;

* Internal area inspections at these operations.

= Anannual review of these sites by an
external consultant.

In accardance with the Code, 3 Sustainability
Report is issued by the Group on an annual basis
covering the areas of health, safely, environmental
and community responsibifities.

Kingsgate Code of Conduct

The Group has established a Code of Conduct
which provides an ethical and legal framework
far ali emplayees in the canduct of Kingsgate's
business. The Code of Conduct defines how
Kingsgate relates to its customers, employees,
shareholders and the community in which

it operates




LA
Ron James

Gavin Thomas 7 Stephen Prom Phil Macintyre

The Group has established a Code of Conduct which
provides an ethical and legal framework for all
employees in the conduct of Kingsgate's business.

The underlying principles of the Code are the
values of integrity, respect, lrust and openness,

The Code provides clear directions on conducting
business infernationally, interacting with
governments, communities and business partners
and general workplave behzviour. The Code
provides a commaon behavicural framework for

all employees in the context of a wide range of
ethical and fegal issues. Employees are encouraged
Io take responsibility for their actions, achieve high
perfarmance, defiver on commitments and earm
the trust of those with whom they interact,
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Directors’ Reaort
30 June 2006

Your Directors present the r report on the Group consisting of Kingsgate Consclidated Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during,
the year ended 30 June 2006

Directors
The foltowing persons wer: Directors of Kingsgate Consofidated Limited during the whale of the financial year and up to the date of this report:

Ross Smyth-Kirk (Chairma )
lohn Falconer (Company Secretary)
Peter McAleer

Principal Actlvities

The principal continging activities of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited was mining in Thailand and mineral exploration in Thailand, Chile and Pery. Exploration
has atso commenced in Arcentina, There have been no other significant changes in the principal activities of the Group during the financial year.

Dividends

Dividends paid 10 members during the financial year were as follows:

final 2005 unfranked dividend of § cents per share {2004 - 12 cents] paid cn 27 Septernber 2005
fnterim 2006 unfranked dividend of & cents per share (2005 - 2 cents) paid on 28 April 2006

Tatal dividend payment

In addition to the above dividends, sin¢e the end of the financial year the Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of 5 cents
per share ($4,513,000) to ke paid on 3 October 2006.

Review of Operations ani Results

The table below shows the Group's performance over the [ast 5 years since commencement of operations in 2002. Net profit in the first 2 years was
favourably impacted by high grades and a low strip ratia. Profit has increased from 2005 due to increased ore treated during the year. The Group has
made a major cammitmen: to exploration in Thailand and has been successful in increasing Mineral Resources,

Net Profit After Tax {$'000]
Dividends Paid {Cash & DRP®) [$°000)
Mineral Resources [Gold 0z'000)
Share Price 30 June ($)

Basic earnings per share [Cznts)

Diluted earnings per share [Cents)

The Company continued the Share Buyback program and 376,167 shares were bought back and cancelled up to 30 June 2006 at a cost of $1,268,748.

Significant Change in the State of Affairs

During the financial year the Group acquired 19.64% of Goldstar Resources NL and 13.67% of Andean Resources Limited. There were no other significant
changes in the state of affiirs of the Group that occurred during the financial year not othenwise disclosed in this report or the consolidated

financiat statements.
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Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year

The all-scrip off-market takeover bid for Andean Resources NL [AND) closed on 19 July 2008. One Kingsgate share was offered for every 15 AND shares
Kingsgate has acquired a strateyic 22 38% in AND {or 64,303,104 AND shares) for 4,786,978 Kingsgate shares.

On 17 August 2006 Lhe Company announced that its Thai subsidiaries have been granted 51 of 1he 101 Special Prospecting Licences (SPL currently under
application surrounding the Chatree Gold Mine. A fee of approximately $450,000 is payable at the time the licences are issued and a deposil or security of
approximately $980,005 is aiso Jue at that time.

Except for the above, no other ryatter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 20106 that has significantly affected, or may significantly atfect:
* The Group's operations in luture financial years, of
* The results of those operations in future financial years, or

* The Group's state of affairs in future financial years.

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

The likely developments of the Croug in the subsequent financial year include the continuation of mining operations at the Chatree Gold Mine, secuting
the Chatree Narth mining lease, a continuation of the expanded exploration pragram both near the mine site, regionally within the mineralised corridors
and in South America, and further increases in Mineral Resources and (re Reserves.

Further information on likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected resulis of operations have not been included in this report
because the Directors believe it s/ould be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Graup.

Environmental Regulation

The Group is subject to environmental regulation in respect to its gold mining operations and exploration activities in Thailand, Argenting, Chile and Peru,
For the year ended 30 June 2006, the Group has opérated within all environmental laws and there were no known contraventions at the date of this repart,

Directors’ Attendance at Meetings {1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006)

Meetings Held 10 2 1 1
Meetings Attended:

Ross Smyth-Kirk 1994 Yes 10 2 1 1
John Falconer 1995 Yes 10 2 1 1
Peter McAleer 2000 Yes 1 2 1 i

During the financial year, 10 Boasd meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Nomination Committee meeting and 1 Remunesation Committee meeting
were held, The table above shows information on Board members and their attendance [inciuding attendance by telecommunication} during the year,
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Ross Smyth-Kirk John Falconer Peter McAleer

Infarmation on Directors
Ross Smyth-Kirk, 8 Com, C°A, F Fin, Age: 59

Ross Smyth-Kirk was a founding Director of the former leading invesiment managerment company, Clayton Robard Management Limited and has had
extensive experiente over a number of years in investment management including o close involvement with the minerals and mining sectors, He was
appointed to the Board on 29 November 1994 and has been a Director of a number of companies over the pas! 27 years in Australia and the UK,

Responsibilities:  Chairman of the Board, member of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

John Fulconer, FCA, F Fin, Ane: 58

John Falcaner is a principal of Carbone faleoner & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants practising in Sydney, whase client base includes smalt publicly
listed companies as well as 3 number of successiul family businesses. He is also a Director of TZ Limited.

Responaibilities:  Company Secretary, Chairman of the Audit Commitiee and member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

Former directorship in the fist 3 years: Taragon Properly Fund

Peter McAleer, 8 Com {Honsl, B L {Kings Inns - Dublin - lreland) Age: 63

Peter McAfeer is Chairman of Latin Gold Limited and 3 Director of Kenmare Resources Plc (Ireland). Previously, he was a Director and Chief Executive
Officer of Equatorial Mining Limited and a Director of Mineral El Tesoro [Chile). He has been an Executive Director of Whim Creek Consolidated N,
Austwhim Resources NL anc' The Northgate Group of Companies (Canada), He has been involved in the discovery, angfor successful development, of aver
10 base and precious metal feposits in Europe, Australia, South America and North America.

Responsibilities:  Member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

Former directorship in the fast 3 years: Kalahari Diamond Resources PLC.

Remuneration Report

The remuneration report is sek out under the fallowing main headings:
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration.
B Details of remuneration.

C Service agreements.

D Share based compensation.

E Additional information.

The information provided under headings A-D includes remuneration disciosures that are required under Accounting Standard AASB 124 Related
Party Disclasures. These discl 2sures have been transferred from the financial repon and have been sudited. The disclosures in Section E are additional
disclosures reguired by the Corporations Act 2001 and the Corporations Regulations 2001 which have not been audited.
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A Principles Used to Determine the Noture and Amount of Remunenition {oudited)

The Group's policy for determin'ng the nature and amount of emoluments of Board members and senior executives is sel by the Board's Remuneration
Committee. The Commitiee malies recommendations Lo the Board concerning the remuneration of executive and non-executive Directors having regard
to the Group's stage of development, semuneration in the industry and performance.

The main objective of the Groug’s executive reward program is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and appropriate for the results defivered.
The Board has regard to the foll awing key criteria for good reward governance practices:

« Competitiveness and reasonableness

* Acceptability 1o shareholders

+ Performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation
* Transparency

« Capital management,

In consultation with external reinuneration consultants, the Group seeks to structure an executive remuneration program that is market competitive and
complimentary o the reward strategy of the oiganisation and ensures:

Alignment to shareholders inter2sts including:
* Ecanomic profit as a core cam sonent of plan design.
* Focus on sustained groveth in share price and defivering constant return an assets as well as focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value.

< Attract and retain high calibre executives.

Alignment to program participants’ interests:

o Rewaids capability and experience.

* Reflects compelitive reward fo- cantribution to shareholder growth,

* Provides a clear structure for earning rewards.

* Provides recognition for contrilution,

The program is intended to provide a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a blend of shart and fong-term incentives, as appropriate. As executives gain
seniority with the Group, the balance of this mix shifts to a higher proportion of "at risk” rewards

Non-executive Directors

The aggregate remuneration of Oirectars is sel by sharehoiders in general meeting, in accordance with the Constitution of the Company, with individual
Directars’ remuneration détermined by the Board within the aggregate total. In determining the level of fees, data from surveys undertaken by outside
consultants is taken into account. The aggregate amount of Directors’ fees approved by shareholders on 26 October 2004 is $500,000.

Fees and payments to non-execulive Directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the Directors. the Board atse has regard
to the advice of independent rzmuneration consultants 1o ensure non-executive Directors' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with the market,

The Chairman's fees are determined independently to the fees of non-sxecutive Directors based on comparative roles in the external market.
The Chairman i not present at any discussions relating to determination of his own remuneration,

Retirement Allowances for Dircctors
There are no retirement allowances for non-executive Directons
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Executive Pay
The executive pay and rewsird program is comprised of four components:

* Base pay and benefits.

« Short-term performance incentives.

+ Long-term incentives thmugh participation in an option plas,

* Other remuneration such as superannuation.

The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration.

Base Pay
This is slructured as a total employment cost package which may be defivered as a mix of cash and prescribed non-financial benefits at the
executives' discrétion,

Executives are offered a coinpetitive base pay that comprises the fixed compaonent of pay and rewards. External remuneration consullants provide analysis
and advice to ensure base pay is set to reflect the market for a comparable role. Base pay for senior executives is reviewed annually to ensure
the executive’s pay is competitive with the markel, An executive's pay is alsc reviewed on promotion.

There are no guaranteed base pay increases fixed in any senior executives’ contracts

Benefits
Executives may receive ben 2its including car allowances and car parking.

Short-term incentives

Short-1erm honus payments are made 10 executives at the discretion of the remuneration commitiee, based on exceplional periormance. The
remuneration committee has engaged an independent remunerstion consultant to advise it on formalising a short-term incentive (STI) for all executives
in future years, although this has not been implemented during the year.

Kingsgate Consofidated Employee Option Plan
information on the Kingsgate Consolidated Employee Option Plan is set out on page 35.

B Detaifs of remuneration {sudited}

Amounts of Remuneration

Details of the remuneration of each Director of Kingsgate Consafidated Limited and each of the key management personnel (as defined in AASE 124
Related Party Disclosures) of the Company and Group who received the highest remuneration, including their personally-related entities, for the year
ended 30 June 2006 are set out in the following tables.

The key managemenl perso nel of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited includes the Direclors as per page 26 above and the following executive officers, which
are also the 5 highest paid execulives of the entity:

* Gavin Thomas

* Stephen Promnitz
* Peter Warren

* Niali Lenahan

* Arthur Effis

The key management personnel of the Group are the Directors of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited (see page 26) and those executives that report directly
1o the Chief Executive (ficer. This includes the 5 group executives who received the highest eemuneration for the year ended 30 June 2006.
The execulives are:

* Stephen Promnitz

* Surapol Udompornwirat
* Phil Macintyre

* Ran James

* Arthur Eliis
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Key Management Personnel of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited

Share-based
Payment

2008 Short-term Benefits Post-employment Benefits

Non-executive Directors

Ross Smyth-Kirk 120000 - 1,168 10,800 - - 131,858
John Falconer 60,000 - - 5.400 - - 65,400
. Peter McAleer 60,000 - - - - - 60,000
Total 240,600 - 1,158 16,200 - - 257,358

* Consulting fees of $60,000 (2008 - $60,000) were paid or payable 1o Norwest Mining Consuitants Ltd, of which Peter McAleer is an officer and Director.

Share-based
Post-employment Benefits Payment
- !

"

2006 Short-term Benefits

by

eIy

“w

Other Key

Monagement Personne!

Gavin Thomas 464,000 - 5,519 16,000 - 359,737 865,256

Stephen Promnitz” 294,343 - - 24,083 - 178,954 497,380

Peter Warren™ 41,607 - 75 50,700 - - 92682

Niall Lenahan** 182,839 - 6,882 94,000 70,000 - 383,74

Arthur Ellis 158,397 20,000 - 12,139 - - 190,536
. Total 1,141,186 20,000 12776 216,922 70,000 538,69 1999575

* Stephen Promnitz commenced employment 1 August 2005.
™ Peter Warren tommenced employment 13 March 2006
*** Niall Lenahan resigned 31 January 2008,
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Key Management Personnel of the Group

Share-based
Short-term Benefits Post-employment Benefits Payment

Non-executive Directors

Ross Smyth-Kirk 120,000 - 1,158 10,800 - - 131,958
John Falconer 60,000 - - 5400 - - 65,400
Peter McAleer * 60,000 - - - - - 60,000
Total 240,000 - 1,158 16,200 - - 257,358

* Consulting fees of $60,000 (2005 - $60,000) were paid or payable to Horwest Mining Consultants Lid, of which Peter McAleer is an officer and Director.

Share-based
Payment

Post-employment Benefits

2006 Short-term Benefits

WLy

N o]
w317
.

Other

Key

Manogement Personnel
Gavin Thomas 464,000 - 5,519 16,000 - 359,737 865,256
Stephen Prammitz* 284343 - - 24,083 - 178,954 497,380
Surapol Udompornwirat” 140,325 35,081 3,680 10,047 - - 189,142
Phit Macintyre . 404,495 42468 11,596 - - N4,777 573,276
Ron James 276,255 29,164 8418 - - 41,028 354,865
. Arthur Ellis 158,397 20,000 - 12,139 - - 190,536
Total 1,737.815 126,713 24,222 82,269 - 694,436 2,670,455

* Stephen Promnitz commenced employment 1 August 2005,
* Surapol Udompornwirat resigned 30 June 20086,
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Share-based

Ross Smyth-Kirk 120,000 - 1916 10,800 - - 132,716

John Falconer 60,600 - - 5,400 - - 65,400

. Peler McAleer 60,000 - - - - - 60,000

' John Shaw* 45,000 - - 4050 - - 49,050
Steve Reid"™ EXENED) - - 262N - - 357,385

Total 616,114 - 1916 46,501 - - 664,551

' * Consulting fees of $60,000 (2005 $60,000) were paid or payable to Norwest Mining Consultants Lid of which Peter McAleer is an officer and Director.
™ Yohn Shaw resigned 31 March 2005,
= Steve Reid resigned 24 lanuay 2005.

Share-based
Post-employment Benefits Payment

Other Key

Management Personnel

Gavin Thomas 200,600 - 2,044 - - 22,940 224984

Niall Lenahan 276000 - 1,178 24,000 - 11,225 322,403
!’ Marcus Tomkinson 236.415% - - 11,585 - 3227 253,227
‘ Surapol Udompornwirat 132,13 29,405 29,740 6,920 - 11,225 209,403

Phil Macintyre 182,175 - 102,178 - - 1,225 295578

Arthur Ellis 142,508 - - 12,000 - 5,612 160520

Total 1,171,611 29,405 145,140 54,505 - 65,454 1466115
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C Service Agreements {oucited]

Remuneration and other tetms of employment for the Chief Executive Otficer and the other key management personnel are {ormalised in service agreements
Each of these agreements provide for the provision of performance-related cash bonuses, other benefits including car allowances and car parking, and
participation, when eligible, in the Emplayee Option Plan, Other major provisions of the agreements refating 1o remuneration are set out beiow.

Gavin thomos - Chief Fxecutive Officer
* Term of agreement — 3 years ending 1 April 2008.
* Base satary, inclusive of s perannuation, as at 30 June 2006 of $500,000 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee,

® No termination ar bonus payments.

Stephen Promnitz - Corporale Development Manager {Commenced employment 1 August 2005}
* Term of agreement — No fixed term.

* Base salary, inclusive of sperannuation, as at 30 June 2006 of $350,000 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee.

* No termination or bonus payments,

Peter Warren - Chief Finoncial Officer (Commenced employment 13 March 2006)

* Term of agreement - No fixed term.
* Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, as at 30 June 2006 of $300,000 ta be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee.

* No termination or bonus Jayments,

Niall tenahan - Chief Finar cial Officer fresigned}
« Agreement lerminated on resignation on 31 lanuary 2006.

* Base salary, inclusive of superanauation, tor the 7 manths ended 31 January of $276,839.

Surapo! Udompormwirat - \ice President Akara Mining Limited
. « Employment agreement terminated on resignation on 30 June 2006,
 Base salary, inclusive of scperannuation, far the year ended 30 June 2008 of $150372,

As from 1 July 2006, Surapc! provides consultanty services to Akara Mining Limited,

Phil Mocintyre -Chief Opercting Officer, Generat Moneger, Akara Mining Limited
* Term of agreement - 3 years ending 16 July 2007.

* Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2006 of $458,559 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee,

Ron Jomes - General Monayer, Exploration end Resource Develuvpment
* Term of agreement — Renewable on an annual basis at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

' « Base <alary, inclusive of superannuation, tor the yvear ended 30 June 2006 of $312.837 to be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee,

Arthur Ellis - Financial Controller
* Term of agreement - No fixed term.

* Base salary, inclusive of sulerannuation, as at 30 June 2006 of $170,536 1o be reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee.
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D Shure Based Corapensution (Gudired]
Options

Kingsgate Employees and Contractors Option Plon

On 28 November 2001, sharehol Jers at the Annual General Meeting approved the special resolution to establish the Kingsgate Employees and Contractors
Option Plan 2001, Under this pk n 2,500,000 options may be issued Lo employees and contractors of the Group [excluding Directors of the Company).

This plan has similar aption term s as the aption plan established in 1998 which authorised the Directors to issue up to 500,000 oplions to employees and
contractors of the Group lexclucing Directors of the Company),

The terms of the options issued ursuant to the plan are s follows:
fa} the exercise period for the o tions is three years from the date the options are granted.

{b) each aption will entitle the halder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company and the exercise price for each option will be 108 above the
average viosing sale price of “he Company's ordinary fully paid shares on the Austratian Stock Exchange over the Jive trading days preceding the day
on which options are issued (but in any event not less than 20 cents).

(¢) options are granted under the plan to eligible employees and contractors for no consideration.

{d) options granted under the plin carry no dividend or voting rights,

(e] set out on page 36 are summaries of options granted under the plans,

Full details of the Employee Option Plan are disclosed in the Share Option Plan rules which were approved by shareholders in November 2001,
a copy of which can be abtained from the Campany.
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+

29 lanuary 2004 29 lanhuary 2007 $3.93 $0.49 29 lanuary 2005
1 March 2608 1 Apri! 2010 $2.69 $0.36 1 Aptil 2005
$0.39 36% on 1 Juty 2006,

$0.43 369 on 1 July 2007 and

7 July 2005 1 July 2010 54,00 $0.47 28% on 1 July 2008
$0.25 36% on 1 July 2006,

$0.29 36% on 1 July 2007 and

7 July 2005 1 tuly 2010 500 $0.33 28% on 1 July 2008
$0.77 36% on 1 July 2006,

0.2 369% on 1 Juby 2007 and

7 July 2005 1 July 2010 $6.00 $0.24 288 on 1 July 2008
$on 36% on 1 July 2006,

$0.15 36% on 1 July 2007 and

7 July 2005 1 July 2010 $7.00 $0.18 28% on 1 July 2008

26 October 2005 26 October 2010 $3.00 $1.82 26 October 2005
$1.15 50% on 1 November 2006 and

26 Octaber 2005 26 October 2010 $4.00 $1.24 50% on 1 November 2007
$0.85 50% on 1 November 2006 and

26 Cetober 2005 26 October 2010 $5.00 $0.94 506 on 1 November 2007
$0.63 50% an 1 November 2006 and

26 October 2005 26 October 2010 $6.00 $0.72 508 on 1 November 2007
$1.44 50% on 1 August 2006,

$15) 25% on 1 August 2007 and

26 October 2005 1 August 2010 £3.25 $1.88 25% on 1 August 2008
$1.12 50% on 1 August 2006,

$i.n 25% on 1 August 2007 and

26 October 2005 1 August 2010 $4.00 $1.29 25% on 1 August 2008
$0.80 50 on 1 August 2006,

$0.50 25% on 1 August 2007 and

26 Octaber 2005 1 August 2010 $5.00 $049 25% on 1 August 2008
$0.58 50% on 1 August 2006,

$0.68 25% on 1 August 2007 and

26 October 2005 1 August 2010 $6.00 $077 258 on 1 August 2008
$0.43 50% on ¥ August 2006,

$052 2580 on 1 August 2007 and

26 October 2005 1 August 2010 $7.00 $0.61 25% on 1 August 2008

Details of options over ordir ary shares in the company provided as remuneration to each Director of Kingsgate Cansolidated Limited and &ach of the

key management personnel of the Group are set oul on page 37, When exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary share of Kingsgate

Consolidated Limited. Further information on the options is set out in Note 22 of the financial statements.
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Number of Options Granted
During the Year
%

Name

Other Key Monagement Personnel of the Group
Gavin Thornas

Stephen Promnitz

Niall tenahan

Marcus Tomkinson

‘ . Surapol Udompornwirat
Phit Maclntyre

Ron lames
Arthur Ellis

Number of Options Vested
During the Year

Falr Value of Options Granted

The fair value at grant date is determined using a Black-Schales option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the lerm of the aption,
the share price at grant date, the expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term

of the aption.

The madel inputs for optians granted during Lhe year ended 30 June 2006 included:
(a) Options zre granted for no consideration.

(b} Expected price volatility of th: Company's shares; 400 (2005 - 40%),

(c) Expected dividend yield: 4.4% [2005 - 5%).

(d) Risk-free interest rate: 5.25b | 2005 - 5.2%),

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information,

. Shares Provided on Exercise of Remuneration Options

Details of ordinary shares in the company provided as a result of the exercise of remuneration options 1o each Director of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited

and other key management personnel of the Group are set out below.

Name

Directors of Kingsgate Conscliduted Limited
Peter McAleer

Other Key Management Personne! of the Group
Gavin Thomas

Steghen Promnitz

Niail Lenahan

Marcus Tamkinson

Surapal Udomparhwirat

Phif Macintyre

Ren James

Number of Ordinary Shares Issued
on Exercise of Options During the Year
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The amounts paid per ordinary share by other key management persannel an the exercise of options at the date of exercise were as follows:

Exercise Date Amount Paid per Share
1 January 2006 4293
1 January 2006 $4.44
28 April 2006 $393

Ng amounts are unpaid on any shares issued on the exercise of options.
E Additional information - Unoudited
Principles Used to Determiae the Nature ond Amount of Bemuneration: Relationship Between Remuneration and Compuny Performonce

The overall level of executive reward takes into account the performance of the Group over a number of years, with greater emphasis given to the
current and prior year. Ove- the past 5 years, the Group's profit fram ordinaly activities after income tax has grown at an average rate of 14% per
annum, and shareholder vizalth has grown at an average rate of 1206 per annum. During the same period, average execulive remuneration has grown by
approximately 9% per annum.

Detuils of Remunerytion: Cash Bonus and Options

For each cash bonus and giant of options inclugded in the tables on pages 31 to 33 and 36 to 39 the percentage of the available bonus or grant that

w35 paid or that was vested, in the financial year, and the percentage that was forfeited because the person did nat meel the service and performance
critena is set out belowe. No part of the bonus is payable in future years. The aplions vest aver a 2 o 3 year period and will vest if the executive remains an
ernplovee of the company un the vesting date and the options will vest immediately if the executive’s employment is terminated as a result of 3 change
in control of the campany. No aptions will vest if the above conditions are not satisfied, hence the minimum value of the options et to vest i nil. The
maximurm value of the options yel to vest has been determined assuming the shase price on the date the options are exercised will not exceed $2.82 for
Ihe options Tssued in July 2205 and $4.00 for the options issued in October 2005,

Cash Bonus Options

2006 - - 2007 nil 185,400
Gavin Thomas 2008 nil 221,400
2009 nil 186,000
il nil 2005 100 - - - -
2007 nil 141,875
Stephen Pramnitz 2008 nil 80,313
nil nil 2006 - - 2009 nil 859,062
Surapol Udompomwirat 100 nil - - - - - -
2006 - - 2007 nil 37,000
Phil Macintyre 2008 nil 41,500
100 nil 2006 30 - - - -
Ron | 2007 nil 19,450
0n Sames 100 nil 2006 - - 2008 il 43,500

Arthur Ellis 100 nil - - - - - -
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Share Bused Compensation: Options

The terms and conditions of each grant of options affecting remuneration in this o1 fufure reporting periods are in accordance with the Kingsgate
Employees and Contractors Option Plan and the Kingsgate Executive Option plan, For details of these plans and the valuatien of options, including models
and assumplions used, please refer Note 22

. , |
Gavin Thomas 7 July 2005 2,500,000 415 602,800 - - 502,800

Stephen Promnitz 26 Dex 2006 400,000 360 311,250 - - 311,250
Niall Lenahan - - - - 75,300 - 75300
Marcus Tamkinson - - - - - 90,000 90,000
Surapol Udomparnwirat - - - - 76,400 - 76,400
Phii Macintyre 26 Oct 2005 150,000 200 154,500 - - 154,500
Ron James 26 Oct 2005 80,000 1.6 82,950 - - 82,950

A= The pereentage of the value of remuneration consisting of options, based on the value at grant date.
B= The value al grant date calculated in accordance with AASB 2 Share Based Paymenl of options granted during the year as part of remuneration,
C= The value at exercise date of Jptions that were granted as part of remuneration and were exercised during the year.

D= The value at lapse date of oprions that were granted as part of remuneration and that lapsed during the year.

Shares Under Option

As at the date of this report, theie were 3,660,000 unissued ordinary shares under option {3,260,000 at the reporting date). Refer to Note 22 of the
financial statements for further details of the options outstanding.

Option holders do not have any Hght, by virtue of the option, to participate in any share issu¢ of the Company.
Shares Issued on the Exercise of Jptions

DBuring the financial year, employees and execulives have exercised options 10 acquire 130,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Kingsgate Cansolidated
Limited at weighted average exercise price of $4.13.

No further shares have heen issued since that date and no amounts are unpaid on any of the shares
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Interest in Shares and Options of the Company

As at the date of this repan, the interests of the Directors and key management personnel in the shares and options of Kingsgate Consolidated
Limited were:

Name

Directors of Kingsgate Consofidared Limited
Rass Smyth-Kirk

John Falcaner

Peter McAleer

Key tdanagement Person. el of the Group
Gavin Thomas

Stephen Promnitz

Peter Warren®

Phil Macintyre

Ron James

Arthur Eliis
* The options were issued to Peter Warren on 7 July 2008,

Insurance of Officers

During the financial year, 11¢ Group paid premiums o insure Directors and Officers of the Group. The contracts include a prohibition on disclosure of the
premium paid and nature of Lhe liabilities covered unders the policy.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No material contracts involving Directors’ inlerests were entered into since the end of the previous financial year or existed at the end of the financial
year other than the transactions detaited in the Note 1o the accounts.

Non-audit Services

The Group may decide 1o employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where the auditor's expertise and experience with
1he Company andfor the Group are important.

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor [PricewaterhouseCoopers] for the audit and non-audit s¢rvices provided during the year are set
oul belgw,

The Board of Directors has cansidered the position snd, in accordance with advice received from the Audit Committee, is satisfied that the provision of the
noh-audif services is compatible with the general standard of independence tar auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The Directars are salisfied
that the provision of non-audit services by the auditor, as set out below, did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of the Corparations
Act 2001 for the following reasons:

* All non-audit services havz been revievied by the Audit Committee to ensure they do not impact Lhe impartiality and objectivity of the auditor.

* None of the services undermine the general principles relating (o suditor independence as set out in the Professional Statement F1, including reviewing
or auditing the auditor's own work, acling in a management ar decision-making capacity for the Group, acting as advocate for the Group or jointly
sharing economit risk and rewards.
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Buring the year the following lees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Parent Entity, its related practices and non-related
audit firms:

Consolidated

Assurance Services
Audit Services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Austrilian Firm
Audit and review of the financial reports and other work under the Corporations Act 2001

Related practices of Pricewat :rhouseCoopers Australian Firm

Total remuneration for audit services

Other Assurance Services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Austrzlian Firm

Warkers compensation review

AGM scrutineers
IFRS accounting services
Andean Bidders Statemenl review

Total remuneration for other assurance services

Total Remuneration for Assurance Services

Taxation Services

PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian Firm
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Auditors' Independence Declaration
A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set aut on page 43.

Rounding of Amounts

The Group is of a kind refzrred to th Class Order 38/0100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, refating to the “rounding off®
of amounts in the Directors’ reporl. Amaunts in the Directars’ repart have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand
dollars, or in certain cases, 1o the nearest dollar.

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers vontinues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001,

This report is made in aceordance with a resolution of the Directors.

NN

Ross Smyth-Kirk
Director

Lo

John Falcaner
Director

' . Sydney:
29 August 2006




PRICEVWATERHOUSE(COPERS

Auditors’ Independence Declaration
30 June 2006

and betief, there have been;

b) Mo contraventions of any applicable code of prefessional conduct in relation to the audit,

Peter Buchholz
' Parther

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 T80 433 157

Dariing Park Tower 2

201 Sussax Street

GPO BOX 2650

SYONEY NSW 1111

DX 77 Sydney

Australfia

WWWIWC.COmM/au
Telephona +61 2 8265 0000
Facsimile +61 2 B266 9999

As fead auditor for the audit of Kingsyate Consolidated Limited far the year ended 30 June 2006, | declare that ta the best of my knowledge

a) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

This declaration is in respect of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and the entities it controlled during the period.

Sydney
29 August 2006




Income Statement
For the year ended 30 lune 2006

Caonsolidated Parent Entity

Notes

Revenue from Continulng Operations

Changes in inventories of Tinished goots and work in progress
Direct costs of mining and processing

employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Finance costs

Exploration expensed

Foreign exchange gains { (losses)
Gain / [loss) on derivative financial instruments

Other expenses from ordinary activities

Prafit Before Income Tax

income tax exgense

Profit from Continuing Operations

Net Profit Attributable to Members of Kingsgate Consolldated Limited

Basic earnings per share

Dituted earnings per share

. The above income statements should be read in conjunction wilh the accompanying Notes




Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2006

Consolidated Parent Entity

Notes

CURRENT ASSETS
(ash and cash equivatents
Receivables
tnventories

(ther assets

TOIAL CURRENT ASSETS

MNON-CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Available-for-sate financial assets

Mine praperty, plant and eguipment

Other aasets

Investrments

TOTAL NON-CURRERT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILIFIES

Payables

Pravisions

. Derivative financial instruments

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

Derivative financial instruments

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILIFIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Parent enlity inferest

Contributed equity

Reserves

Retained profits

TOTAL EQUITY

The above balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying netes.




Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2006

Consolidated Parent Entity

Notes

Total Equity at the Beginning of the Financial Year

Adjustment on adaption of AASB 132 and AASB 133:
Retained profits

Reserves

Restated Total Equity at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Avaiiabje-for-sale finantial assets
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges

Exchange differences on translation of fareign operations

Employee share options

Net Income Recognised Directly in Equity
Profit for the Year

Totat Recognised Income and Expense for the Year

Transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders:

Contributions of equity, net of transaction cests

e
-
@E& ;

4 Miﬂ'

Shares bought back on-market and cancelled, inclusive of transaction costs

Dividends paid

Total Equity at the End of the Financtal Year

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




Cash Flow Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers {inclusive of goods and services tax)
Payments to suppliers and employees {inclusive of goods and services tax)
Interest received
Finance costs

Dividends received

NET CASH INFLOW FROM QPERATING ACTMTIES 23
CASH FLOWS FROR INVESTING ACTIVITHES

Paymenits for exploration and land acquisitions

Loans to related parlies

Payments for property, plant and eguipment

Payments for investments

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FRORY ENANCING ACTIMITIES

Proceeds fiom issue of shares

Payrents tor shares bought back

Share issue and buy-back transaction costs

Dividends paid
NET CASH [OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MET INCREASE [ (DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash 31 the beginning of the financial year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The above cash flow statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

it

.
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The financial report of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008 was authorised for ssue in accordance with a resolution of
Directors an 29 August 2006.

Kingsgate Consolidated Limited is a company limited by shares incarporated in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Stock
Exchange using the ASX code KCN,

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounling policies adopted in the preparation of the financial repart are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial report includes separate financial statements for Kingsgate Consolidated Limited as an
individual entity and the Group consisting of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and its subsidiaries.

(a) Basis of Preparation
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Austraiian equivalents ta International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS),
other aulhoritative proncuncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent lssues Group Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001,

As at 30 June 2006 the consolidated entity had 8 working capital deficiency of $12,052,000 (2005: $Nill. The Consolidated Entity generated cash flows
{rom operating activities for the year ended 30 June 2006 of $21,889,00012005: $22,184,000) and net profit of $16,662,000 (2005: $8,391,000).

The Censolidated Entity has access to facilities disciosed in Note 12. The Parent Entity relies upon cash flows of ils subsidiaries to meet i1s liabilities

as they fatl due.

The Directors are of the opinion that this pravides reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the Consolidated Entity will be able to pay their
debts as and when they fall due. This Financial Report has begn prepared on a going concern basis.

Complionce with IFRS

Australian Atcounting Standards include Compliance with AIFRS ensure that the consolidated financial statements and notes of Kingsgate Consolidated
Limised comply with International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS). The Parent Entity financial staternents and notes alsa comply

with 1FRS except that it has elected to apply the reliet provided to Parent Entities in respect of certain disclosure requirements contained in

AASB 132 financiol Instruments: Presentution ond Disclosure and AASB 124 Reloted Purty Disclosures.

Application of AASE I First-iime Adoption of Austrafiun Equivalents to Internatione! Financiel Reporting Standords
These financial staternents are the first Kingsgate Consolidated Limited financial report to be prepared in actordance with AIFRS. AASB 1 First time
Atloption of Austrulian Equivelents 1o Internationol Finuncial Reporting Stondards has been applied in preparing these financial statements

Financial statements of Kingsgate Consplidated Limited until 30 June 2005 had been prepared in accordance with previous Austratian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles [AGAAPR). AGAAP differs in certain respects from AIFRS. When preparing the Kingsgate Consolidated Limited 2006
financial statements, management has amended the accounting, valuation and consolidation methods applied in the previous AGAAP financial
statements to comply with AIFRS as required. With Lthe exeeption of financial instruments, the comparative figures were restated 1o reflect these
adjustments. The Group has taken the exemption available under AASB 1 to anly apply AASB 132 Financiot Instruments: Disclosure and Presentulion
and AASB 139 finoncial Instrttments: Recognition und Measurement from 1 July 2005,

Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of transition from previgus AGAAP to AIFRS on the Group's equity and its net income are given in Note 32,

Historicol Cost Convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets and liabilities [including derivative instruments) at fair value.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited {"Company® or

*Parent Entity") as a1 30 June 2006 and the resuits of all subsidiaries for the vear then ended. Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and its subsidiaries together
are referred to in this financial report as the Group or the Consolidated Entity.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies,
generaily accompanying 3 shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity,

Subsidiaries are fully consofidaled fram the date on which control is transterred to the Group. They are de-consofidated from the date that contral ceases.
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The purchase methad of accaunting is used to account for the acquisition af subsidiaries by the Graup [refer to Note 1 (h)).

Intercampany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are ako eliminated
unless the transsction pravides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary 10 ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

() Segment Reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different lo
those of other business segments. A geagraphical segment is engaged in providing produets or services within a panticular economic environment and is
subject to risks and returns that are different from thase of segments aperating in other ecanomic environments,

(d) Foreign Currency Transtation

Items included in the financial statemenis of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary econcmic environment in which

. {i] Functionul und Presentation Currency

the entity operates ['the functionat currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Kingsgate Consolidated
Limited funttional and presentation currency.

{ii] Transuctions und Balonces

Foreign currency transactions are {ranslated into the funclienal currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Forelgn
exchange gaing and lpsses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and Trom the translation at year-end exchange rates of manetary asseis and
[iabilities denominated in foreign curréncies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualilying net investment hedges,

Translation differentes on non-monetary items, such as equities held at tair value Lhrough profit or foss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss
Translation ditferences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified a5 available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

{iii} Group Companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities [none of which has the currency of a hyperinfiationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currensy as follows:

*  assets and liabilities for each batance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balante sheet;

* income and expenses for each income statement are transiated at average exchange rates {unless this is not a reasonable approximakion of the
cumulative eftect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which £ase income ant! expenses are transtated at the dates of the transactions); and

* all resulling exchange differences are recognised as a separate companent of equity.

On cansolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instrurents designated as hedges of suth investments, are taken to shareholders' equity. When a foreign operation is sold or borrowings repaid, a
praportionate share of such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or 10ss an sale,

Goodwill and tair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated a8 assels and liabilities of the foreign entity and transtated at
the closing rate.

{e) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Sales revenue represents the net proceeds receivable from the customer,
profit or lass on effective gold derivatives less any casts of transportalion barhe by the Group in delivering the product ta customers,

Gold and silver revenue is recognised when the refinery process has been finalised and the sals transaction to a third party has been completed.

(f) Income Tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the national income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and Habilities attributable Lo temporary differences between the tax bases of assels and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused 1ax losses

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences al the fax rates expected 1o apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities
are settied, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted far each jurisdiction. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative
amounts of deductible and taxable temporary ditferences 1o measure Lhe deterred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset ar a liability. Na deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary
differences if they arose in a transaction, other than & business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or
taxable profit or loss
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Deferred tax assels are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only If it is probable that futtre taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not secognised for temporary differences between the earrying smount and tax bases cof investments in controlled
entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.

(g) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and reveards of ownership are classified a5 finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
The cosresponding rental obligatians, net of finance charges, are included in other long term payables Fach iease payment is allocated belween the
liability and finance charges 5o o5 to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to
the incame statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on Lhe remaining balance of the liability Tor each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term.

Leases in which a significan) portion of the risks and rewards of awnefship are retained by the fessor are classified as operating Jeases Payments made under
operaling leases [net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(i)} Acquisitions of Assets

The purchase method of accounting is used Lo accaunt for all acquisitions of assets {including business combinations} regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assels are acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assels given, shares issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where equity instrurnents are issued in an acquisition, the value of the instruments is their
published markel price as at the date of exchange unless, in rare circurnstances, it can be demonstrated that the published price at the date of exchange
is an unrelizble indicator of fair value and that other evidence and vajuation methods provide & more reliable measure of fair value. Transaction costs
arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity.

tdentifiable assets acquired and figbilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values al the
acquisition date, irrespective af the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Graup's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as gootwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement, bul only after a reassessment of the identification and measurement of the nel assels acyuired.

Where settlement of any part of cash cansideration is deferred, the amaunts payable in the future are discounted ta their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rale, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparabie terms and condilions.

(i} Impairment of Assets

Acsets Lhat have an indefinite usefut life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to smortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaunt may not be recoverable, An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asser's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sefl and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairmenl, assets are grouped at the lowest levels far which there are separately
identifiable cash flows leash generating units),

(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquic investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible t0 known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(k) Tradte Receivables

Irade receivables are recognised initially al fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for doubtful debls. feceivables from
gold and silver sales are due for settiement no more than 3 days from the date of recognition. Other receivables are due for seftiement no move than 90
days from the date of recognition,

Collectidility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful
receivables is established when there is objective evidente that the Group will not be abix to collect alf amounts due according 1o the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.
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(1) Inventories

Raw materiaks and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an approptiate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure. Costs are assigned to individual ilems of inventory on the basis
of weighted average costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary vourse of business less the estimated costs of comptetion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

(m) Investments and Other Financial Assets

From 1 July 2004 1o 30 June 2005

The Group has taken the exemption avaifable under AASB 1 to apply AASB 132 and AASB 139 only fram 1 July 2005. The Group has applied previous
AGAAP 1o the comparalive infarmation on financial instruments within the scope of AASB 132 and AASB 139,

Adjustments on Transition Dote; 1 July 2005

The nature of the main adjustments to make this information comply with AASB 132 and AASB 139 are that, with the exception of held-1g-maturily
investments and loans and receivables which are measured at amortised cost [refer befow), fair value is the measurement basis. Fair value is inclusive of
transaction costs. Changes in fair value are either taken 10 the income statement or an equity reserve (refer below). At the date of transition (3 July 2005)
charges to carrying amounts are laken to retained earnings or reserves.

From 1 July 2005

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivabies, heid-to-maturity
investments, and avatlable-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management
deterrmines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

{i] Financiol Assets ot Fair Vulue Theough Profit or Loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit of foss on initial recagnition.
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling Tn the short term or if so designated by management. The
policy of management is to designate a financial asset if there exists the possibility it will be sold in the short term and the assel is subject to frequent
changes in fair value. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assels in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be reslised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

{ii} Louns ¢nd Receivobies

Loans and receivables ate non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that ar¢ not quoted in an aclive market. They arise when
the Group provides money, goods or services directly to 8 debtor with no intzntion of selling the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for
those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-curreni assets Loans and receivables are included
in receivables in the balance sheel,

~

{iii} Hetd-to-muturity investments
Held-to-maturily investments are non-derivalive financiat assers with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group's management
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

{iv) Availobla-for-sole Finoncial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assels, comprising principatly marketable equity securities, are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispase of the investment within 12
months of the balance sheet date.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assers at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity investmenls are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are included in the income statement in the period in which
they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of non monetary securities classified as gvailable-for-sale are recognised in
equity in the available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve, When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the
Group estahlishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include reference 1o the fair values of recent arm’s length transactions, involving the
same instruments or other mstruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and oplion pricing models refined to reflect the
issuer’s specific circumstances.
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The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financiat asset or group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant ar prolonged decline in the Tair value of a security belowr its cost is considered in determining
whether the securily is impaired. I any such evidence exists for pvailable-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss -~ measured as the difference
betwseen the acquisition cost and the cursent fair value, less any impairment loss on thal financial assel previously frecognised in profit and loss - is
removed Trom equity and recognised in the incame statement. Impairment losses recognised in the incame statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement.

(n) Devivatives

From 1 July 2004 to 30 June 2005

The Group has taken the exemption available under AASB 1 to apply AASB 132 and AASB 139 from 1 July 2005. The Group has applied previous AGAAP
in the comparative information on financial instruments within the scope of AASE 132 and AASB 139,

Adjustments on Transition Dote: 1 July 2005

The nature of the main adjustments to make this information comply with AASB 132 and AASB 139 are that derivatives are measured on a fair vatue
hasis. Changes in fair value are either taken to the income statement or an equity reserve [refer below). At the date of transition (1 July 2005} changes in
the carrying amounts of desivatives are taken Lo retained earnings or reserves, depending on whether the criteria for hedge accounting are satisfied at
the transition date.

from 1 duly 2005

Derivatives are inilially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contracl is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value.

The method of recognising the resulling gain of loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as & hedging instrument, and if 5o, the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges).

the Group documents ak the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy far undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception ant on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective in offserting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

{il Foir Volue Hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the incame statement, together with any
thanges in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk,

(i} Cush Flow Hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in equity in the hedging
reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged item will affect profit or loss Hor instance when
the farecast sale that is hedged takes place). However, when the forecast transaclion that is hedged resulls in the recognition of a non-financial asset
or liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the measurement of the initial cost or carrying
amount of the asset or liability,

When a hedging instrument expires or Is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
foss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimalely recognised in the income statement.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected [0 occur, the curulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately iransferred to the
incame statement.

(iii} Derivotives that do nol guaiily for hedge eccounting
Certain desivative instruments do nat qualify for hedge accaunting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement.

{0) Fair Value Estimation
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement o for disclosure purposes

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted markel price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the
appropriate quoted market price for financial fiabilities is the current ask price,

The fair value of financial instruments thal are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variely of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date.
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Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term debt instruments held. Other technigues, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to delermine fair value for he remaining financial instrurnents, The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows. The {air value of (orward exchange contracts is determined using torward exchange market rates at the batance sheet date.

The nominal value fess estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and paynbles are ascumed to appraximate their fair values, The fair value
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the Juture contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that s
available to the Graup for similar financial instruments

(p) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, piant and equipment is stated at histarical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is direetly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost Includes the expenditure directly associated with Lhe purchase and construction of the asset and the estimated future costs
of dismantling and restoring the site on which it is tocated.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
ecanomic benefits assoctated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of Lhe item cin be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation and amortisation of mine buildings, reserves, development, piant, machinery and equipment is provided over the assessed life of the relevant
mine or assel, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation and amorlisation is determined on a units-of-production basis aver proven and probable reserves. In some circumstances, where conversion
of resources into reserves is expected, some efements of resources may be included, For mine plant, machinery and equipment, which have an expected
ecanomic tifz shorter than the lite of the mine, a straight line basis is adopted.

The expectet useful lives are as foltows:
¢ Mine buildings - the shorter ot applicable ming life and 25 years;
*  Plant, machinery and equipment - the shorter of applicable mine tife and 3-15 years depending on the nature of the asset.

The reserves and fife of each mine and the remaining useful life of each class of asser are reassessed at least annually and the depreciation and
amortisation rates adjusted accordingly.

Major spares purchased specifically for a particular plant are capitafised and depreciated on the same basis as the plant to which they relate.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 1)),

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are incfuded in the income statement. When revalued
assets are sold, it is Group policy to transfer the amounts inctuded in other reserves in respect of those assels to retained earnings.

(4) Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

Exploration and evaluation expendituse incurred by or on behalt of the Group is accumulated separately for each area of interest. Such expenditure
comprises direct costs, depreciation and does not include general overheads or adminisirative expenditure not having a specifie nexus with a particular
area of interest,

Exploration expenditure includes funds for 1and purchases agdvanced to Suan Sak Patana Limited, 8 controfled entity Director related campany. Advances
are capitalised in the Group as exploration expendilure to the extent that the acquired [and is used by the Group for exploration purposes. Each area of
interest is fimited to 3 size related to a knowen o7 probable mineral resource capable of supporting a mining operation.

Explaration expenditure for each area of interest is carried forward as an asset provided the rights to tenure of the area of interest are current and one of
the following conditions is mel:

s the exploration and evaluation expenditures are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area of interest,
or alternatively, by its sale; and

« exploration and evaluatian activities in the area of interest have not at the reporting date reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of
the existence or otherwis2 of economically recoverable reserves, and active and significant operations in, or in relation o, the area of interest
are continuing.

L
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Explosation expenditure is written off when it fails to meet at least one of the conditions cutlined abave or an area of interest is abandoned.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairmenl when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of an exploration and
evaluation asset may exceed its recoverable amount. When facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverabie amount
the impairment loss will be measured and disclosed in accordance with AASB 136 impoirment of Assets.

When a decision is made to develop an area of interest, all carried forward exploration expenditure in relation to the area of interest is transferred
to mine properties.

{r} Mine Properties
Mine properties represents the accumulated explaration, evaluation and development expenditure incurred by or on behaif of the Group in relation to
areas of interest in which mining of 2 mineral resource has commenced.

When further developmenl expenditure is incurred in respect of a mine property after commencement of production, such expenditure i carried forward
3s part of the mine property only when substantial future economic benefits are thereby established, otherwise such expenditure is classified as part of
Lhe cost of production.

Amortisation of costs is provided on the unit-of-production method with separate calculations being made for each mineral resousce. The unit-of -
production basis results in an amortisation charge proportional Lo the depletion of the economically recoverable ore reserves. In some Circumstances,
where conversion of resources into reserves i expected, some elements of resources may be included. Development casts still to be incurred in refation
to the current reserves are included in the amortisation calculatian,

{s) Trade and Other Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are ususlly paid within 30 days of recognition.

{t) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amartised cost. Any
difference belween the proceeds inet of transaction costs] and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method,

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

(v} Borrowing Costs
Loan establishment costs are capitatised and written off over the life of the loan. Other bormowing costs are expensed.

{v) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present fegal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more fikely than not that an
oulflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been refiably estimated. Pravisions are nat recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar abligations, the fikelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole, A provision is recognised even if the tikelinood of an ourfow with respect to anyone item included in the same class of obligations
may be small,

Provisicns are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to seftle the present abligation at the balance
date. The discount rate used to determine Lhe present value reflects cusrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

{w) Restoration and Rehabilitation Provision
A provision for restoration and rehabilitation is recognised for the costs expécted to be incurred on cessation of praducing operations and are measured
al the present value of expected future cash flows

The increase in the rehabilitation provision relating to the unwinding of the discount and depreciation on the rehabilitation assel are recorded as a charge.
10 earnings.
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(x) Employee Benefits

{1} Wages ond Sulories, Annual leave ond Sick Leave

Liabilities for wages and salasies, including hon-monetary benefits, annual Izave and accumulating sick leave expected to be settied within 12 months ot
the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up {0 the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected
10 be paid when the liabilities are settied. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the feave is taken and measured at the rates
paid of payable.

{it] Long Service teave ond Severunce Py

The fiabtlity for lang service teave and severance pay is recognised in the provision for empfoyee benefits and measured as the present valug of expected
tuture payments to be made in respect of services pravided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit methed. Consideration
is given o the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using market yvields that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

{ifi} Retirement Benefit Obligations
Contributions to defined contribution funds are recognised as an expense as they become payable.

{iv} Share-bosed Poyments
Share-based campensation benefits are provided to employees via the Kingsgate Employees and Contractors and Executive Option Plans

Shares Options Granted before 7 November 2002 ondfar vested before 1 Junuary 2005
No expense is recognised in respect of these options. The shares are recognised when the optians are exercised and the proceeds received allocated to
share capital.

Shares Options Granted ofter 7 November 2002 and vested ofter 1 Januory 2005

The fair value of oplions granted unter Kingsgate Employees and Contractors Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefit expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised over the period during which the employees become
unconditionalty entitled to the aptions.

The fair value at grant date is determined using a Black-Schales oplion pricing model that tates into account the exercise price, the term of the option,
the vesting and performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the nan-tradeable nature of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price
valatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend vield and the risk-Tree interest rate for the term of the option.

The fair value of the options granted excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditians [for example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in sssumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable, At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimate of the number of options that are expected fo become exercisable. The employee benefit expense recognised each period
takes inio account the most racent estimate.

Upon the exercise of options, the balance of the share-based payments reserve refating to thcse options is transferred to share capitak.

(y) Contributed Equity

Ortlinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs direclly attributable to the issue of new shares or oplions are shown in equity as a deduction,
net af tax, from the proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares o1 options, of for Lhe acquisition of a business, are
included as a charge to equity.

If the entity re-acquires its own equily instrument, £g. as a result of a share buy back, those instruments are deducted from equity and the associaled
shares are cancelled. No gain of loss is recognised in the piofit or loss and the consideration paid including any directly sitributable incremental costs (net
of income tax) is recognised directly in equity.

(2) Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared an or before the end of the year but not distributed at balance date,
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(aa) Earnings per Share

i} Basic earnings per shore

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, extluding any costs of servicing equity other
than crdinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding tluring the year, adjusted for bonus elements in otdinary shafes
issued during the year.

{ii) Dituted Eornings per Share

Diluted earninys per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic carnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of
intere<t and other finaneing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed 1o have been
1ssued for no consideration in velation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(ab) Financial Instrument Transaction Costs

The Group has taken the exemption available under AASB 1 to apply AASE 132 and AASB 139 from 1 July 2005. The Group has applied previous Australian
GAAP |AGAAP) in the comparative information on financial instruments within the scope of AASB 132 and AASB 139. Under previous AGAAP transaction
costs were excluded from the amounts disclosed in the financial statements. Under AIFRS such costs are included in the carrying amounts. At the date of
Iransition to AASB 132 and AASB 139 the adjustment 10 carrying amounis for the Group was immaterial. |

{ac) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurted is not recaverable fram the taxation authority.
In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amounl of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable fo, the
laxation authority is included wilh other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cashflowis are presented on 2 gross basis. The GST component of the cash flows arising from investing or finanting activities which are recoverable from,
or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flow.

(ad) New Actounting Standards and UG Interpretations
Cerlain new accounting standards and UG interpretalions have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2006 reporting period. The Group's
assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set cut below.

(i} UG 4 Determining Whether on Asset Contains o Legse

UIG 4 is appticable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006, The Group has not elected to adapt UIG 4 early. It will apply UIG 4 in its 2007
financial stalements and the UIG 4 transition provisions. The Group will therefore apply UIG 4 on the basis of facts and circumstances that existed as of
1 July 2006. Implementation of NG 4 is not expected to change the accounting for any of the Group's current arrangements.

(il LG 5 Rights to Interests orising from Decommissioning, Restorotion and Environmental Rehoabilitation Funds
The Group does not have interests in decommissioning, restoration and envilonmental rehabilitation funds. This interpretation will not affect the
Group's finantial statements

(i} AASB 2005-9 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standurds JAASE 4, AASB 1023, AASB 1398 AASB 132]

AASB 2005-9 is applicable to annual reparting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006. The amentdments relate to the accounting for financial
guarantee contracts. The Group has not elected to adopt the amendments early, It will spply the revised standards in its 30 June 2007 financial
statemenis. Application of the revised rules may resull in the recognition of financial fiabilities in the financial statements of the parent entity.
Kingsgate Consolidated Limited, under guarantees given pursuant to the deed of cross guarantee [see Note 25) in respect of amounts payable by
wholly-owned subsidiaries. An assessment of the fair value of these guarantees has not vet been performed. The new rules will be implemented
retrospectively with a restatement of the comparatives as required by AASE 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates und Errols,

{iv) AASB 7 finoncial Instruments: Disclosures and AASB 2005- 10t Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards {AASS 132, AASB 101, AASE 114,
AASB 117, AASE 133, AASE 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASE 1023 & AASE 1038]

AASB 7 and AASB 2005- 10 are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007, The Group has not adopted the standards
early. Application of the standards will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements, but wilt impact the type of information
disciosed in refation to the Group's financiat instruments.

{v] LIG 8 Liobilities Arising from Pariiciputing in o Specific Market - Waste Fiectricol and Electronic Equipment
UIG & is applicable to annual reporting periods heginning on ar after 1 December 2006, The Group has not sold any electronic or electrical equipment
on the European market and has not incurred any associated liabilities. This interpretation will not affect the Group's financial statements
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{vil AASB 2005-8 Amendments to Austraiion Accounting Standerds JAASB 121)

AASB 2005-6 is applicable to annual reporting periods ending on or after 31 December 2008 The amendment refates to monetary items that form part
of & reporting entity's net investment in & foreign operation. It removes the requirement that such monetary items had to be denominated either in the
functional currency of the reporting entily or the foreign operation. Kingsgate Consolidated Limited does not have any monetary items forming part of
a net investment in a foreign operation. The amendments to AASB 121 will therefare have no impact on the Group's financial statements.

(ae) Rounding of Amounts

The Company is of a kind referred o in Class order 88/0100, issued by the Australian Secunties and Investments Commission, relating to the
*rounding off” of amounts in the financial report. Amounts in the financial report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order
1o the nearest Lhousand dallars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

2, CRITICAL ACCOUNTIRG ESTIMAIES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histarical experience and other factars, including expectations of future events that
are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulling accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the refated actusl
results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial vear are disclosed belove:

{t) Explorotion ond Evaluation Assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure for each area of interest Is carried forward as an asset provided certain conditions are met {Note 1(g)). Expioration
and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest thal the carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation asset
may exceed its recoverable amount. These caleulations and reviews require the use of assumptions and judgement. The related carrying amounis

are disclosed in Note 11.

{if] Derivative Finunciol Instriiments

The Group uses an external consultant to estimate the fair value of its commadity contracts based on well established option pricing models and market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date, These calculations require the use of estimates and sssumptions. Changes in assumplions concerning
interest rates, gotd prices and volatililies could have a significant impact on the fair valuation attributed 1o thest contracts When these assumptions
change or became known in the future, such differences will impact asset carrying values and the hedging reserve in the period in which they change
of become known, The related carrying amounts are disclosed in Notes 16 and 27,

{iii) Restoration und Rehabilitation Provision

Significant jutigement is required in determining the restoration and rehabilitation provision as there are many transactions and factars that will affect
the uftimate liability payable to rehabilitate the mine sile, Factors that will affect this fiability includes future development, changes in technology,
commodity price changes and changes in interest rates The related carrying amounts are disclased in Note 14,

{iv] Units of Production Methud of Depreciotion

The Group applies the units production method Tor depreciation of its mine propesties (Notes 1(p) and 1(r)). These calculations require the use of
estimates and assumptions. Significant judgement is required in assessing the available reserves and the production capacity of the plant o be
depreciated under this method. Factors that must be considered in delermining reserves and resources and production capacity are the Groups history
of converting resorces to reserves and the relevant time frames, the complexity of metallurgy, markets and future developments. When these factors
change or become known in the future, such difference will impact profit and carrying values of assets. The related carrying amounts are disciosed in
Note 11

{v} Share-based Payments
The Group measures share-based payments at fair value 4t the grant date using the Black-Scholes formula taking inio account the terms and conditions
upen which the instrument were granted, as discussed in Note 22,

vi] Corrying Vilue of Andeun Resources

On 22 February 2006 KCN commenced an off market takeaver offer to acquire 100% of the shares in Andean Resources Limited (Andean), The investment
in Andean was initially recognised at the fair vale of the Kingsgate shares issued in exchange for shares in Andean. This gave rise to an initial carrying
value of $17.363 million, whea combined with transaction costs.

At 30 June 2006 Kingsgate held 38,285 596 shares representing 13.67% of the shares on issue in Andean. The market value of this holding, based on the
closing share price of Andean on the ASX, was $13.554 million as at 30 June 2006.
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The investment in Andean has been classified as "available for sale® in accordance with Xingsgate's accounting policy. This policy requires the company
1o carry “available Yor sale” financial assets at fair value, based on the year end closing chare price.

The change in value of $3.810 million has been recorded in Lhe available far sales assets, reserves within equity as at 30 June 2008,

Thig balance has been offset by the change in valug of $2.855 million for the investment held in Goldstar Limited. At the June 2008 the balance of the
available for sale investment revaiuation reserve [Note 17) was ($955,000).

The group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that financial assets are impaired. In the case of "available for sate® financial
assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an invesiment below its cost is considered in determining whether the invesiment is impaired.

Where the company cansiders the investmenl to be impaired, Lhe cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
tutrent fair value - is recognised in the intome statement

The Direclors consider the investment in Andean is not impaired at the date of the financial report or at the end of the reporting period, due in part 1o
the follawing significant factors:

*  The underlying nature of the assets held by Andean has not changed since Kingsgate commenced the takeover offer;
¢ Andean can add strategic value to Kingspate due to the company’s existing exploration operations in South America;
¢ There is a contral premium attached To an investment of this size; and

« The offer closed on 11 July 2008 which does not enable the Directors to assess whether the current reduction in value of the investment is prolonged
of lemporary in nature,

Subsequent to year end Kingsgate purchased an sdditional 25,017 688 shares at a value of $8.251 million increasing the investment to 22.38% of the
shares an issue in Andean, At the date of this report, Kingsgate held a total of 64,303,104 shares at an initial cost of $25.64 million, including transaction
rosts and prior to any adjustment to reflect the year end market vatue of the shares, based on the Andean share price.

There is a risk the initial cost of the investment may be impaired in subsequent reporting periods should the market value of Andean remain significantly
lower than Kingsgate's initial carrying value of $25.64 million for a prolonged period of time.

3. REVENUE

Consolidated

. Revenue from Continuling Operations
Sales Revenue
Gold saies
Sitver sales

Services

Other Revenue
Intarest
Dividends
Other

Revenue from continuing operations
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4, EXPENSES

Consolidated

Cost of Sales
Fareign Exchange (gains) | Losses

Finance Costs
Interest and finance charges paidfpayable
Rehabilitalion provision discount adjustment

Amortisation of deferred borrowing costs

Finance Costs Expensed

Write down ot raw materials and stores

Rental expense relating to operating leases

Depreciation and Amortisation®
Ming properties
Mine buildings, plan! and equipment
Non-mining property, plant and equipment

Depreciation capitalised

Total depreciation and amortisation

" From November 2005 deprecation calculated based on the units of production method was revised for the 258 increase in ore reserves.

&, INCOME 1AX

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense for the financial year differs from the amount calcufated on profit.
The differences are reconciled as fallows:

Prafit from continuing operations before income tax expense

Income tax calculated @ 30% (2005 - 3(%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deduttible taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Non-raxable dividends

Fax exempt profits - Thailand

Current year Lox loss not brought to account

Income Tax Expense

Akara Mining Limited, a controlied enlity, has received approval fram the Royal Thai Board of Investment (BO() of the Office of the Prime Minister for
promation of the Chatree Gold Mine,
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Subject to meeting BOI conditions and basedt on 3 production of 178,416 ounces of gotd and 583,733 ounces of silver per year, Akara Mining Limited's
Chatree Gold Mine is entitled to:

(a) an B vear full corporate tax holiday commencing at first gold pour on metal sales;
(b) & further 5 year half tax holiday following (a) abave [at a 15t tax rate); and
(c] other benefits,

Tax Losses

Potential future income tax benefits of $5,788,000 (2005 - $4,167,000) attributable to Australian tax losses carried forward by the Company and
future benefits attributable to exploration expenditure and other timing differences allowable for deduction have not been brought 10 account in Lhe
ronsohdated accounts at 30 June 2006 because the Directors do not believe it is apprapriate 1o regard realisation of the future income tax benefits as
probable. These benefits will only be obtained if:

[a} tha Group derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient fo enable the benefit from the deductions for the losses to be
realised; and

(o] the Group continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation; and
[} nochanges in tax legistation adversely affect the Group in realising the benefit from the deductions for the losses.

Tax Consofidation Legislation
Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and its wholly-owned Australian subsitiary have implementad the tax consolidation legislation as of 1July 2003,
The entities are also contemplaling entering into a tax sharing agreement, hut details of this agreement are yet to be finalised.

6. CASH AND CASH LOLAVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand
Depasits at call

Cash at Bank and on Hand

These are non-intesest bearing.

Deposils at Call

The deposits at call are bearing floating interest rates between 19 - 5.6% (2005 - 190 - 5.450) and they may be accessed daify.
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7. RECEIVABLES

Consolldated Parent Entity

RECEIVABLES
Current

Other debtors

Non—current

Loans to contralled entities {Note 21)

2, INVENTORIES
Raw materials and stores - at cost

Provision for obsolescence

Work in progress - at cost

R

9, OTHER ASSETS
Consolidated Parent Entity

W M
LS |

Current
Deposits
Prepayments

Nen-current
Deferred borrowing cosis

Accumulated amartisation

Derivative financial instruments - commadity contracts

Information on derivative financial instrerments is available in Notes 15 and 27{a).
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0. AVAILABLE - FOR-SALE FiNANCIAL ASSETS

Equity Securities
At the beginning of the financial year
Additicns

Revaluation

o,

6037 |

At the end of the financial year

The available-for-sale financial asset cansists of investments in the ordinary shares of Goldstar Resources NL [ASX: GDR) and Andean Resotsrees Limited
{ASX: AND). The fair value has been based on the closing share price at the financial year end.

11, MINE PROPERTY, PLANT AND FQUEPMENT

Consoligated
Exploration Land Mine Mine, Non-mining Tota!
and Properties Buildings, Plant and
Evaluation Plant and Equipment

Equipment
At 1 July 2004
Cost

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 30 lune 2005

Opening net book amount
Additions
Reciassified
Disposals
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Foreign currency exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2005
Cost

Accurnulated depreciation and amortisation

Nel book amount
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11. MINE PROPERTY, PLANT AND £QUIPMENT [CONTINUED)
Conwoiidated

Exploration Land Mine Mine,
and Properties Buildings,
' Evaluation Plant and

Year ended 30 June 2006
Opening net book amount
Additions

Reclassified

Disposals

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Foreign currency exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2006

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation

Net book ampunt

Parent Entity

At 1 July 2004
Cost
Accumulated deprecialion

Nel book amount

Year ended 30 June 2005
Upening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2005
Cost
Arcumulated depreciation

Nel book amount

Nen-mining Total
Plant and
Equipment

Non-mining
Plant and
Equipment

Year ended 30 lune 2006
Opening net book amount
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

Closing net book amount

At 30 June 2006
Cost
Accumutated depreciation

Net book amount

Non-mining Total
Plant and
Equipment
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12, INTEREST BEARING LIABHATIES

On 10 December 2003, the parent entity entered into a LIS$32 million revolving credit facility agreement with four banks, The facility, which amortises
by 25% on ils first two anniversaries, has & three year term, with an option 10 extend tor a further ane year. This option was exescised during the year
and the facility now expires on 1 December 2007. Interest is charged at commercial rates on drawn balances and a focility fee is payable based an a
percentage of the facility imit. The facility is secured by a first ranking charge over the Group's Australian assets and a share mortgage over Akara Mining
Limited's shares. At 30 June 2006 the US$16 million avaitable under the revotving credit facility was un-drawn.

»

13 PAYABLES
Parent Entity

Current

Trade creditors

4, PROVISIONS

Consolldated

Current
Employee benefits (Note 1{x] and 22)
{axation

Custorns provision

. Non—current

Restoration and rehabilitation (Note 1{w))

Restoration and Rehabilitation
At the beginning of the financial year

Provisicn discount adjustment

Foreign currency exchange differences

At the end af the financial year

DERIVARVE FIRAMCIAL INSTREMENTS
Current

Commcdity contracts

Non-current

Commodity contracts

(a) Transition to AASB 132 and AASB 139
The Group has taken the exemption under AASB 1 ta apply AASB 132 Finoncial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentotion and AASB 139 Financia!
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement from 1 July 2005, As a result comparative figures have not been adjusted.
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At the date of transition to Lthese standards of 1 July 2005 commaodity contracts were recognised at fair value which resulted in an increase in liabilities
of $27,584,000. $24,475,000 was recorded in the hedging reserve, representing the effective portion of the commodity contracts that are designated and
guakity as cash flow hedges. $3,109,000 was recorded in retained earnings for the ineftective portion of these commadity contracts

(b} Instruments Used by the Group
The Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order 16 hedge exposure to fluctuations in commadity price
flucruations. This is in accordance with the Group's financial risk management policies. Details of the commodity conlracts and risk management policies

are available in Note 27.

16, CONTRIBUTED EQLINY

(a) Share Capital

Ordinary shares fully paid

{b) Movements In Ordinary Share Capital:

Date
1 July 2004

9 September 2004
15 October 2004
17 March 2005
April to June 2005

. 27 June 2005

30 June 2005

27 September 2005
11 January 2006

28 April 2006

28 April 2006
July 2005 to December 2005
201 Mareh to 30 lune 2008

30 June 2008

Details
(pening Balance

Exercise of oplions - Director

Dividend reinvestment plan

Dividend reinvestment plan

Shares bought back on-market and cancetled

Exercise of options - Employee
Closing balance

Dividend reinvestment plan
Exercise of oplions - Employee

Proceeds received

Transfer (rom share-based payment reserve
Exercise of options - Employee

Proceeds received

Transfer from share-based payment reserve

Dividend reinvesiment plan
Shares bought back on-market and cancelled
Andean Yakeover Ofter

Closing balance

Parent Entity Parent Entity

Notes

a)
{e)
(f)
()
{h)

{i)
(h)

{h)

(j}
[9)
I13]
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{c} Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares have no par value and entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion to the
number of shares held. On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is éntitled to one vote, and upon a
poll each share is entitled 1o one vote. Details of share options are disclosed in Nate 22.

(d) Directors Options
Information refating to the Directors apticns, including details of options issued, exercised and fapsad during the financial year and options outstanding
at the end of the financial year is set out in Note 28.

() Dividend Reinvestment Plan
The Company has established a dividend reinvesiment plan under which holders of ordinary shares may elect to have their dividend entitlement satished
by the issue of new ordinary shares rather than by being paid in cash.

703,157 fully paid ordinary shares were issued as part of the final dividend under the Company's Dividend Reinvestment Plan at $3.05 each.

(f) Dividend Reinvestment Plan
67,562 fully paid ordinary shares were issued as part of the interim dividend under the Company's Dividend Reinvestment Plan at $2.15 each.

(g) Share Buy Back

During the financial year ended 30 June 2006 the Company purchased and cencelled 378,167 ordinary shares representing 0.4 % of owdinary share
capital, The shares were acquired 8t an average price of $3.35 per share, wilh prices ranging from $2.79 to $4.07. Share buy-back transaction costs
amounted to $8,829. The on-market buyback remains in effect at the date of this report, '

{h) Employees and Contractors Option Plan
information relating to the Kingsgale Employees and Contractors Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and fapsed during the
financial vear and options oulstanding at the end of the financiat year is set out in Note 22.

(i} Dividend Reinvestment Plan
139,812 fully paid ordinary shares were issued as parl of the interim dividend under the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan at $3.12 each.

(j} Dividend Reinvestment Plan
129,998 fully paid ordinary shares were issued as part of the interim dividend under the Campany's Dividend Reinvestment Plan at $6.14 each.

(k} Andean Takeover Offer
Kingsgate offered Andean shareholders 1 Kingsgate ordinary share far every 15 Andean shares held. This resulted in Kingsgate issuing 2,619,027 shares at
an average of $5.96 per share.
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17. RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS

(a) Reserves

Fareign currency translation reserve

General reserve

Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
Hedging reserve

Share-hased payment reserve

Movements:
foreign currency translation reserve

Al the beginning of the financial year
Nel exchange differences an translation of foreign controlled entities

At the end of the financial vear

Generol reserve
Al the beginning of the financial year

At the end of the financial year

Availoble-for-sale investment revuluption reserve
Al the beginning of the financial year
Revaluation

Al the end of the financial year

Hedging reserve
Al the beginning of the financial year
Adjustment on adoption of AASB 132 and AASE 139 (Note 15)
Revaluation
Transferred to the income statement

At the end of the financial year

Share-bosad puyment reserve
Al the beginning of the financial year
Option expense
Transfer to share capital (Options exercised)

At the end of the financial year
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Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Exchange differences arsing on translation of the foreign controlled entities are taken to the foreign currency transtation reserve, as described in Note td},

General Reserve

Pursuant {0 the laws of Thailand, Akara Mining Limited appropriated 10 a reserve fund ar each distribution of dividends, an amount equal to one-
twentieth of the profit after tax payment until the reserve fund reached one-fenth of its registered capital. The reserve fund is now equal to one-tenth of
the registered share capital of Akara Mining Limited,

Available-for-sale Investment Revaluation Reserve

Changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets are taken to the available-for-sale investment revatuation reserve,
as described in Note 1(m).

Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserve is used 1o record unreafised gains and losses on effective hedging instruments, as described in Note 1(n),

Share-based Payments Reserve
The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options ssued but not exercised as described in Note 1(x).

(b) Retalned Profits
Consolidated Parent Entity

Movements in retained profits were as follows:

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year

Adjustment on adoption of AASB 132 and AASB 139 [Note 15)

Net profit attributablke to members of Kingsgate Consplidated Limited
Dividends provided for or paid [Note 20)

Retained profits at the end of the finantial year

1B. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
Capital Commitments
. Commitments for the acquisition of plant and equipment contracted for at the reparting date but not recognised &s liabilities, payable:

Within 1 year
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Operating Leases
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation 1o non-cancellable operating leases are payable a5 follows:

Consolidated Parent Entity

el

Within 1 year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Remuneration Commitments

Within 1 year
Later than 1 year hut not {ater than 5 years

19, INVESTRENTS IN CONTROLLED ZNTITIES
The consolidated finantial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the ultimate parent entily, Kingsgate Consolidated Limited, and the
following subsidiares in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 1[b),

Country of Class of Equity Parent Entity
Name of Entity Incorporation Shares

Issara Mining Limited Thailand Ordinary
Richaphum Limited Thailand ’ Ordinary
Naka Udsahakum Limited Thailand Ordinary
Akara Mining Limited Thailand Ordinary
Kingsgate Capital Pty Limited Australia Qrdinary
Kingsgate South America Pty Ltd Austratia Grdinary |
Minera Kingsgate Limited Chile Ordinary
Kingsgate Peru SRL Peru Ordinary

Paraso! Limited's name was changed o Richaphum Limited during the financial year. [
Kingsgate South America Pty Ltd was incorporated in Australia on 23 February 2008.

Minera Kingsgate Limited and Kingsgate Peru SRL depend on funding from the Group to sustain exploration activities.
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20. DIVIDENDS

final 2005 uniranked dividend of 5 cents per share (2004 - 12 cents) paid on 27 September 2005
interim 2006 unfranked dividend of 5 cents per share (2005 - 2 cents) paid on 28 April 2006

Total dividends provided for or paid

Paid in cash
Satisfied by issue of shares

Dividends Not Recognised at Year End

In adtition 1o the above dividends, since vear end the Directors have declared a final

2006 unfranked dividend of 5 cents per share [2005 - 5 cents). The aggregat: amount

of the proposed dividend expected to be paid on the 3 October 2006 but not et recognised
as a liability at year end is

The Groups franking credit balance at 30 June 2006 is Nil {2005: Nil).

21. RELATED PARTIES

Transactions with Related Parties

Information on remuneration of Directors is disclosed in Note 28. A Director of & controlled entity, S Udempornwirat, is a Director and sharehatder of
Suan Sek Patana Limited, Transactions with this company comprise:

Consolidated Parent Entity

Loans advanced - Non current

Interest received

Rentals paid 877853y

Loans have been advanced to Suan Sak Patana Limited to acquire prospective land for exploration purposes. In accordance with the regulations of
Thailand foreign corporations are prevented from acquiring land. These advances have been disclosed as exploration expenditure being the first phase of
the exploration and evaluation process.

tnterest is charged on the loans advanced at the rate of 4% per annum (2005 - 4%). Rentals relate to fand used by the Group for gold mining and explosation.

All transactions with Director-related entities were based on normal commercial terms and conditions
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Wholly-owned Group
The wholly-owned group consists of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and its wholly-owned controlled entities. A list of the controled entities and the
ownership interest is set oul in Note 19.

Transactions between Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and controlled entities during the years ended 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2006 consisted of
loans advanced by and assignment of Labilities to Kingsgate Consolidated Limited. The loons do not bear nterest. Management fees of $600,000 (2005
- 3600,000) were received from Akara Mining Limited during the year,

Aggregate amounts receivable from controlled entities at balance date were as follows.

Consolidated

Non-current receivables

Wholly owned subsidiaries [Note 7)

During the vear the Parent Entity advanced $31,477.977 (2005 - $21,598,000) to controtled entities,

Controlling Entities
The ultimate parent entity in the wholly-owned group is Kingsgate Consolidated Limited.

22, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
Consolidated Parent Entity

[ A

Employee Benefit and Related On-costs Liabilities

Provision for employee henefits - current

Provision has been made for annual leave and Thai severance pay.

Employee Numbers

Average number of employees during the financial year

Superannuation
The Group makes contributions on behalf of employees to externally managed defined contribution superannuation funds Contributions are based on
percentages of employees’ wages and salaries.
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Kingsgate Employees and Contractors Option Plan

On 28 November 2001, shareholders at the annuaf general meeting approved the special resolution to establish the Kingsgate Employees and Contractors
Option Plan 2001. Under this plan 2,500,000 options may be issued to employees and contractors of the Group {excluding Directors of the Company}.
This plzn has similar option terms as the option plan established in 1998 which authorised the Directors ta issue up to 500,000 options to mployees and
contractors of the Group [excluding Directors of the Companyl.

The terms of the options issued pursuant 10 the plan are as follows:

[} the exercise period for the options is three years from the date the options are granted.

(g} each option wiill entitle the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company and the exercise price for cach option will be 10% above the
average ciosing sale price of the Company's ordinary fully paid shares on the Australian Stock Exchange over the five trading days preceding the day
on which options ase issued (but in any event not less than 20 cents).

(b} options are granted undey the plan 1o eligible emplayees and contractors for no consideration.

li) options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights

I} sekout below are summaries of aptions granted under the plans.

Full details of the Employee Option Plan are disclosed in the Share Option Plan rules which were approved by shareholders in November 2001, a copy of
which tan be obtained from the Campany.

Consolidated and Parent Entity - 2006

11 July 2002 11 July 2005 5266

17,000 - - 17,000 - -
5 Feb 2003 5 Feb 2006 54,44 50,000 - 50,000 - ~ -
INov2003 2B Aug 2006 $4.16 40,000 - - 40,000 - -
29 Jan 2004 29 Jan 2007 $393 180,000 - 80,000 40,000 60,000 60,000
Tatal 287,000 - 130,000 87,000 60,000 60,000
Weighted average exercise price 398 - 413 3180 393 383

Consolidated and Parent Entity - 2005

B

28 Nav 2001

28 Nov 2004 $1r48" 100,000 - 100.000 - - -
11 July 2002 11 July 2005 $266 42,000 - 25,000 - 17,000 17,000
5 Feb 2003 5 Feb 2004 $4.44 50,000 - - - 50,000 50,000
3Nov2003 15 Apr 2008 $3.74 150,000 - - 150,000 - -
3 Nov2003 28 Aug 2006 $4.18 40,000 - - - 40,000 40,000
29 Jan 2004 29 jan 2007 $3.93 180,000 - - - 180,000 180,000
Total 562,000 - 125,000 150,000 287,000 287,000
Weighted average exercise price 34 - 172 174 398 398

" Director aptions
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Kingsgate Executive Option Plan

The terms of the options issued pursuant to the plan are as follows:

{a} each option will entitle the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company.
(b} options are granted under the plan for no consideration.

{c) options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights.

{d) sef out below are summaries of options granted under the plans.

Consolidated and Parent Entity - 2006

et

iSSP g T i,
. 11 Mar 2005 1 Apr 2010 $265% 60,000 - 60,000
7 July 2005 1 July 2010 $4.00 - 500,000 -
7 July 2005 1 July 2010 $5.00 - $00,000 -
7 July 2005 1 July 2010 $6.00 - 500,000 -
7 luly 2005 1 July 2010 $7.00 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,060 -
26 Oct 2005 26 Oct 2010 $3.00 - 50,000 - 50,000 50,000
26 Oct 2005 26 Oct 2010 $4.00 - 30,000 - 30,000 -
26 Oct 2005 26 Oct 2010 $5.00 - 80,000 - #0,000 -
26 Oct 2005 26 Oct 2010 $6.00 - 80,000 - 0,000 -
26 Oct 2005 1 Aug 2010 $325 - 25,000 - 25,000 -
26 Oct 2005 1 Aug 2010 $4.00 - 50,000 - 50,000 -
26 Oct 2005 1 Aug 2010 $5.00 - 100,000 - 100,000 -
26 Oct 2005 1 Aug 2010 $6.00 - 100,000 - 100,060 -
26 Oct 2005 1 Aug 2010 $7.00 - 125000 - 125,000 -
Total 60,000 3,140,000 - 1,200,000 110,000
; . Weighted average exercise price 269 5.70 - 565 283

The share prices at the grant dales were $2.82 8t 7 July 2005 and $4.03 at 26 October 2005,

Valuation of options at grant date are disciosed in Note 28.

On 7 July 2008, 400,000 options were issued with an exercise price of $5.50 to $8.00, expiring 1 July 2011 and the vesting periods from 1 July 2007 to
1 July 2008,

31 Mar 2005 1 Apr 2010 $2.69 - 60,000 - 60,000 60,600
Weighted average exercise price 269 - - 289 269

The share price at the grant date of 31 March 2005 vias $2.26 per share.

The fair value of shares issued on the exercise of options is the weighted average price at whith the Company's shares were traded on the Austrafian Stock
Exchange on the day prior to the exercise of the options.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at the end of the period was 4.0 years (2005 ~ 1.1 years)
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Fair Value of Options Granted

The fair value at grant daie is determined using a Black-Scholes aption pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option,
the share price at grant date, the expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term
of the option.

The model inputs for aptions granted during the year ended 30 June 2006 included:
(a) Options are granted for no consideration,

[b) Expected price volatility of the Company's shares: 40% {2005 - 40%).

lc] Expected dividend yield: 4.4% (2005 - Stw).

[d} Risk-free interest rate: 5.200 {2005 - 5.2%).

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due ta publicly available information.

Expense Arising From Share-based Payment Transactions
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised dusing the period as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

Options issued under executive option pian

23. RECONCILATION OF PRORT AFTER INCOME TAX TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES
Consolidated

Profit {tom ordinary activities after related income tax expense

Depreciation and amortisalion
Non-cash employee benefit expense - share-based payments
Arnortisation of Borrowing costs
Gains cn derivative financial instrements
Net exchange differences
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) decrease in debtors
(Increase) decrease in inventories
[Increase) decrease in other operating assets
Increase [decrease] in creditors
Inerease (decrease] in provisions

increase (decrease] in other liabilities

Net cash inflow from operating activities
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24, EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DAIE

Dividend

On 28 August 2006, Lhe Directors of the Parent Entity dectared a final uniranked dividend of 5 cents per share. The record date for the dividend is
21 September 2006 with payment due on 3 October 2006.

Take Over Bid for Andean Resources NE
On 11 July 2008, the all-serip of f market takeover bid for Andean closed. The Consolidated Entity now controls 64,303,104 fully paid ordinary Andean
shares giving it a stralegic 22.38% holdings in Andean,

Grant of Special Prospecting Licences

On 17 August 2006 the Company announced that ils Thai subsidiaries have been granted 57 of the 101 Special Prospecting Licences (SPL) currently under
application surrounding Chatree Gald Mine. A fee of approximately $450,000 is payable at the time the licences are issued and a deposit or security of
approximately $980,000 is also due at that time.

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The parent entity and Graup had contingent liabilities at 30 June 2006 in respect of:

Guarantees
Cross guarantees have been given by Kingsgate Consolidated timited's controlled entities to the four banks in 1he revolving credit facility as part of the
security package as described in Note 12

These guarantees may give rise to liabilities in the Parent Entity if the controlled entities 8o not meet their obligations under the terms of the loans
subject to the guaraniees. No materisl losses are anticipated in respect of the abave contingent liabilities.

26, SEGMENT INFORMATION
Primary Reporting — Business Segments
The Group operates exclusively in one business segment of gold mining and exploration.

Secondary reporting - Geographical Segments
The Group operates in primarily two geographical segments, being Asia Pacific and South America.

Sales to external customers;
Asia Pacific
Other revenue:

Asia Pacific

Segment Resuits:
Asia Pacific
South America

Segment Assets:
Asia Pauifie

South America

Capitat Expenditure:
Asia Patific
South America
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27, FINARCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND INSTRUMENTS
Financial Risk Management

The Group's attivilies expose it to a variely of financial risks; market risk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and commodity price risk),
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash fiow interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk managernent program foruses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks 1o minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
commadity contratts to hedge cerlain risk exposures. Risk management is carried out under policies appraved by the Board of Directors. The Board
provides wrilten principles for overall risk management, as well 8s written policies covering specific areas, such as miligating commodity price, foreign
exchange, interest rate and credit risks and investing excess liquidity.

(a) Market Risk

{il Price Risk
The Group’s major commodity price exposure is (o the price of gold. At 30 June 2006, Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and cerlain of its contralled entities
had committed to the following commadity contracts.

Maturity Quantity Hedged

N
o

Put options bought {AS):
Within 1 year

110 2 years

2 1o 3 years

Maturity

Put options bought (USS$):
Within 1 year
110 2 years

210 3 years

Call options sold ~ (US$):
Within 1 year

110 2 years

210 3 years

*US$ call options include 58,500 ounces (2005: A$130.000 ounces) of path dependent options, with a knock-out feature. Barriers range between
US$301foz and US$303/az and are active in discrete time peticds prior Lo the oplions expiry dale.
The mark ta market loss relating from these commodity contracts at 30 June 2006 was A$23,187,000 (2005: A$27,883,000).

The A% Puts and 58,500 ounces of the USS collars have been designated as effective cash flow hedges.
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The Group uses an external cansulant to estimate Lhe fair value of its commodity contracts based on well established option pricing models and market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

{ii} Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreiyn exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that & not the
Group's funttional cutrency,

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risks. This includes significant assets held in Thai Baht and sales made in US Dollars.

Movements in fareign currencies are monitored by the Group and the Board has set limits on foreign currency hedging. The Group has also entered
into commodity contracts denominated in Australian Doffars to mitigate part of this risk. At 30 June 2006 the Group had not entered into any foreign
currency hedging contracls

(b} Credit Risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial
institutions. The Group has poficies that fimit Lhe amount of credit exposure to any ohe financial institution.

(¢) Interest Rate Risk

The Group exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is set out in the following table. For interest
rates applicable to each class of assel or liability refer to individual Notes to the financial statements. Exposures arise predominantly from assets and
liabilities bearing variahie interest rates.

Fixed Interest Maturing in:

2006
Financlal Assets
Cash 6

Receivables 7

Weighted average interest rate

Financial Liabilities

Payables

Net finanriaf assets (liabilities)
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Notes

2005
Financial Assets
Cash 6

Receivables 7

Weighted average interest rate
Financial Liabilities

Payables 13

Net financial assets (liabilities)

(d) Liquidity Risk
The Group constanily manitors liguidity requirements and liquidity management s carried out under policies approved by the Board.

(e) Fait Values
The net fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetary financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate 1heir
carrying amounts.

The net fair value of other monetary financial assets and financial liabilities is based upon market prices where a markel exisis or by discounting the
expected fulure cash flaws by the euarrent interest rates for assets and Gabilities with similar sisk profiles. The carrying amounts and net fair values of
financial assets and liabilities at batance date are:

2006 2005

Financial Assets
Cash
Receivables

Avaifable-for-sale finantial assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Derivative financial instruments
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28 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(a) Directors
The following persons were Directors of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited duting the finantial year:

Chairman - Non-Executive
Ross Smyth-Kirk

Non-Executive Directors
John kalconer
Peter McAleer

(6) Other Key Management Personnel

The following persons also had suthorily and responsibitity for planning, directing and contralling the activities of the Group during the financial year:

Name Position

Gavin Thamas Chief Executive Officer

Stephen Promnitz Corporate Development Manager

Peter Warren Chief Financial Officer

Surapa!l Udompornwirat Executive Vice President

Phil Maclntyre General Manager, Chatree Gold Mine

Rton lames General Manager, Exploration and Resource Devefopment

Employer

Kingsgate Consolidated Limited
Kingsgate Consolidated Limited
Kingsgate Consolidated Limited
Akara Mining Limited

Akara Mining Limited

Akara Mining Limited

All of the above persons viere also key management personnel during the years ended 30 lune 2006 and 2005, with the excepticn of:

* Stephen Promnilz who commenced employment 1 August 2005,
« Peter Warren who commenced employment 13 March 2006
* Marcus Tomkinson who resigned 15 July 2005.

« Niall Lenahan who resigned 31 January 2006,

(c) Key Management Personnel Compensation

Consolldated Parent Entity

Short-term employee benefits
Past-employment benefits 4
Share-based payments . %BB4Y

10

The Campany has taken advantage of the relief provided by Corporations Regutations CR2M B.04 and has transferred the detailed remuneration
disclosures to the Directors’ report. The relevant information can be found in sections A-C of the remuneration report on pages 28 to 34.
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{d) Equity Instrument Disclosures Relating ta Key Management Personnel

il Shars Holdings
The numbers of shares in the Company held dusing the financial year by each Birector of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited and each of the key
management personnel of the Group, including their personally-related entities, are set oul belows
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Directors of Kinysgote Consolidoted

Limited Ordinury Shares

Ross Smyth-Kirk 4,252,380 - 333.89 4,586,271
lohn Falcaner 147 (A% - 42,196 189,29
Peter McAfeer 380,000 - - 380,000

Key Monagement Personnel of
the Group Ortinary Shures

Gavin Thomas 1474 - 689,180 703921
Niall Lenahan 6,706 50,000 [96,706) -
Surapol Udompornwirat - 40,000 {40,000) -
Phil Macintyre 85,000 - - 95,000
Ron James - - - -
Arthur Ellis 31,200 - (6,328) 24,872

B A G ; it
. D_ire_cwm of_Kingsgare Consolidored
Limited Ordinary Shares
Ross Smyth-Kirk 4,252,380 - - 4,252 380
fohn Falconer 145,740 - 1,355 147,085
Peter McAleer : 280,000 100,000° - 380,000
John Shaw 13,074 - {113,074} -
. Steve Reid 1,000 - - 1,000
‘ Key Monagement Personnel of the
Group Ordinary Shares
Gavin Thomas 14740 - - 14,741
Niall Lenahan 1,506 - 3,200 6,706
Surapol Udompornwirat - - - -
Phil Macintyre 95,000 - - 95,000
Ron James - - - -
Arthur Ellis 33,000 - (1,800) 31,200

* The amount paid per ordinary share by Peter McAleer on the exercise of options at the date of exercise was $1.48 per share.




Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
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{ii] Options Provided os Remuneration and Shores issued on Exercise of Such Gprions

Details of options provided a3 remuneration and shares issued on the exercise of such options, tegether with terms and conditions of the options, can be
found in section D ot the remuneration report on pages 35 ta 40,

{iii} Optian Holdings

The numbers of aptions over ordinary shares in the Company held duting the financial year by each Directar of Kingsgate Consofidated Limiled and each
of the sperified executives of the Group, including their persanally-related entities, are set out below.

Key Management Personne!

Gavin Thomas 60,000 2,500,000 - - 2,560,000
Stephen Promnitz - 400,000 - - 400,000
Peter Warren - - - - -
Niall Lenahan 90,000 - 20,000° - -
Mareus Tomkinsen 80,000 (80,000) - - -
Surapal Udompornwirat 40,000 - 40,000" - - -
Phil Maclntyre 40,000 150,000 - - 180,000 90,000
Ron James - 90,000 - - 80,000 -
Arthur Ellis 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000

* 90,000 ordinary shares were issued on the 11 January 2006 when Lhe share was $5.05 per share,
" 40,000 ordinary shares weere issued on the 28 April 2006 when the share was $5.84 per shara.

Options granted during the year are pravided as remuneration, No optians are vested and unexercisable at the end of the year,

Directors of Kingsgute
Consulidoted Limited
Steve-Reid 167,000 (167,000 - - - -
Peter McAleer 104,000 - 100,000 - - -
Other Key Manogement
Personnel

. Gavin Thomas - 60,000 - - 60,000 60,000
Niall Lenahen 90,000 - - - 90,000 90,000
Marcus Tomkinson 80,000 - - - 80,000 80,000
Surapol Udcmpornwirat 41,000 - - - 40,000 40,000
Phit Macintyre 40,000 - - - 40,000 40,000
Ran lames - - - - - -

Adthur Ellis 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,000
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Insurance
During the financial year, the Group paid premivms to insure Directors and Officers of the Group. The contracts include a prohibition on disclasure of the
premium paid and nature of the liailities covered under the policy.

29, REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
During the year the auditor of the parent entity and its related practives earned the following remuneration:

PricewaterhouseCoopers -~ Australian Firm
Audit and review of financial reports of the entity or any entity in the Group
Other assurance services

Taxation

Total remuneration

Bt et o

it ke

=  Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian Firm
(including overseas PricewaterhouseCoopers firms)

Audit or review of financial reparts of the entity or any entity in the Group

Taxation

fotal remuneration

30, EARMINGS PER SHARE
Consofidate

o Ot R X7

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Net profit used to caleulate basic. and diluted earnings per share

Weighted Average Number of Shares Used as the Denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings per share

Adjustment for calculation of diluted earnings per share: Options

Weighied average number of ardinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the denominator in calcutating
diluted earnings per share

Options
Options granted 10 employees and Directors are considered 1a be potential ordinary shares and have been included in the determination of dituted earnings
per share. The options have not been included in the determination of basic earnings per share. Details relating to the aptions are set out in Note 22.
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31 NON CASH INVESTING AND SINANCING ACTIVITIES

Consolidated Parent Entity

LN

Acquisitian of Available for Sale Financial Assets

The Parent Entity issued 1 fully paid ordinary share for every 15 Andean Resources NL shares. Refer ta Note 2 for further informatian.

32, IMPACT Of ADOPTING ALUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO IFRS
Reconciliation of Equity as Presented Under AGAAP to that Under AIFRS
Consolidated Parent Entity

Notes : % I

Tatal Equity Under AGAAP

Adjustments to Retained Earnings Net of Tax

Derecognition of foreign currzncy transiation reserve [i)
Recognition of share-hased payments fii)
Adjustment to restoration antf rehabilitation pravisian (i)

Revenue recognition iv)

Adjustments to Other Reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve (il

Share-based payment reserve {ii

Total Equity Under AIFRS
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Recontifiation of Net Assets Under AGAAP to that Under AIFRS

Notes

Net Assets Under AGAAP

Receivables fiv}
Inventories {iv)

Mine property, plant and equipment {ii}

Provisions {iii}

Net Assets Under AIFRS

Reconciliation on Adoption of AASB 132 and AASB 139
As at 1 July 2005

Consolidated  Parent Entity
: o

Totat Equity Under AIFRS — 30 June 2005

Retained profits

Reserves

Total Equity Under AIFRS - 1 July 2005

. Net Assets Under AIFRS - 30 June 2045

Derivative financial instruments — Other assets

Derivative financial liabilities

Net Assets Under AIFRS - 1 july 2005
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Reconciliation of Met Profit Under AGAAP to that Under AIFRS
For the Year Ended 30 June 2005

Notes
Net Profit as Reported Under AGAAP
Recognition of share-based payments (i}
Adiustment for restoration and rehahilitation provision {iii}
Revenue recognition (iv}
Net Profit Under AIFRS

{i} Foreign Curcency Tronstation Reserve: Cumidative Transtotion Differences
On the initial application of AIFRS, the Group elected to apply the exemption on AASB 1 First-time Adaption of Australian Equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards relating to the balance of the foreign currency translation reserve. The cumulative translation differences for all foreign
operations represented in the foreigh currency translation reserve were deemed Lo be zero at the date of transiation to AIFRS.

{ii) Shore-based Poyments
Under AASB 2 Share-based Payments, from 1 July 2004 the Group is required to recognise an expense for thase options that were issued lo employees
ang Directars under the Kingsyate Employees and Contractors Option Plan after 7 November 2002 but that had not vested by 1 lanuary 2005,

{iii} Restoration und Rehabilitation Provision

Under AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Ass#ts and AASB 116 Propenty, Plant and Equipment an asset and fisbility were recorded
for the estimated, discounted future rehabilitation costs The increase in the rehabilitation provision relating to the snwinding of the discount and
depreciation on the rehabilitation asset has been recognised in the income statement.

{ivi Revenue Recognition
Under AASB 118 Revenue, the point of sale is recognised when the refinery process has been finalised and the sale transaction to a third party has
been completed.

{vl Adoption of AASB 132 and AASE 139
The Group has taken the exemption under AASB 1 to apply AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disciosure and Presentation and AASB 139 Financial
listruments: Recognition and Measurement (rom 1 July 2005. As a result comparative figures have not been adjusted,

At the date of transition to these standards af 1 July 2005 commodity contracts were recognised at fair value which resulted in an increase in liabilities
of $27,584,000. $24,475,000 was recorded in the hedging reserve, representing the effective portian of the commodity contracts that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges. $3,109,000 was recorded in relained earnings for the ineffective portion of these commaodity contracts.

$3,340,000 was transferred from derivative financial instruments - other assets Lo liabilities so that a net derivative financial liability is disclosed.




Directors’ Declaration
30 lune 2006

The Directors declare that the financial statements ant Notes set out on pages 2 o 68:

(a) comply with Accounting Slandards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; and
(b} give a true and fair view of the Company’s and Group's financial position as at 30 June 2006 and of their performance, as represented by the results of
their operations and their cash flows, for Lhe financial year ended on that date,

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations
Act for the financial year ended 30 June 2006,

In the Directors' opinion:
[a) the financial statements and Notes are in accordance with the Carporations Act 2001 ; and

|b] there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debls as and when they become due and payabie.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directars

DATED at SYDNEY this 29 August 2006
On behatf of Lhe Board

JEIN

Ross Smyth-Kirk
{ Director

e

John Falconer
Director
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 7180 431 157

Darling Park Tower 2
201 Sussex Strest
GPO BOX 2850

Independent Audit Report to the Members SYDNEY NSW 1173
) . . .. 1 DX 77 Sydnay
of Kingsgate Consolidated Limited. Australia
www, pwe. com/au

Tetephona +&1 2 8266 0000
Facsimile +61 2 B2B6 9980

Audit Opinion
I out opinion, the financial report of Kingsigate Consnlidated Limited:

* gives a true 2ot feir view, 35 requined by the Corporations Act 2001 in Auslrelia, of e Enanciat position of Kingsgaie Consolisated Limitesd
anid the: Kingsgate Consotidzted Limited Group as at 30 June 2008, and of sheiz performance for the wea ended on khal date, amd

* is presented in aceoreance with the Corparations Aet 2001, Accounling Standards and olber mandatory finaneiat reporling requiremenls in Austratia, and the
Curporntivns Regulohions 2000,

This ppiriion must be e in confunciion with the rest of our audit reporl.

Scope

The Financial Report and Directors® Responsibility

The Knancial report comprises the statermen of finanal posilion, statemen) of financial performance, statement of cash tows, accompaivdrg notes o the tinencial
staternents, and e diteclons declaralion for hoth Kingsgate Consofidated Limited (the Company) and e Kingsgate Consolidated Limited Group (Hhe Consotidated
Ertity, for the year eaded 30 June 2008, The comalidated entity comprises both the Cormpary aad the envities it conlrolked during thal yuar,

The directors of Lthe Comparry are responsible for the preparalion and Lrue and {air presentation of the financial report in accordance with 1he Cotporations Acr 2001,
This includey responsibility Tor e maintenance of sdequate accounting reconds and infemal controls that sre designed to pievent and detect fraud and error, and for
the accounting poficies grd scvounling estimates inhetent in the financal report.

Audit Approsth

We conducted o0 independent audit in order 10 express an opimon 1 the members of the Compeny, Qur nudil was consucted in accordande with Auatralion
Buwdiling Standands, in onder 1o provide easonabke pssurence s (0 whelher vhe Hnancia! repor is free of material missiaterienl. The nature of #n awdit s influenced
Uy tactors such 2s Lthe use of piofessional judgement, seiective testing, Lhe inheren) lisitasions of intersal contros, and 1he avaiiabilily of persuasea ather 1han
corklusive evidence. Theretore, an audil canrot guamntee thai all materia! misstatemenis Rave been detected. For further explanalion of an audit, visil our website
hiipfiwwow e comfauftinancizisialementsaudic

We perfosmen procedures to assess whethes in ol matenal espects the financial repoit peesents firly, in accordanee with the Corporilions A¢1 2001, Accounting
Skaileris and other mandatory financial aeporfing requirernents in Australia, @ view which is consistent with our understaniding of the Corepary’s 9nd 1he Group's
fisncial posilion, a6 of Wheir performancs as epresen kAl by thee resoits of e operations and cash flows

We farmet our auwlil opinics on ihe basts of Lhese procegures, which included:

* ex2mining, on & sl basks, information 10 provitie evidence supporting (i amounts and disclaseres in the Kinancial report, and

* gssessing e approprizieness of Lhe geeounting polickes and disdosures used and rhwe easonabieness of significant accounting estimates made by the diectars
Our proceduzes inchudid 1eavding the other intormation in the Arnual Report ro deterine whelher it contains any matenial inconsstencies with the finangdal repors.

When this vudit reporl s included in an Asnunl Reparl, our procedueres include reading other information in the Annual Reporr to determine whuther il contains any
material inconsisterdies vith Lhe financisd report,

‘While we consitferst the cffeeiiveness of management’s interna controbs over inarcial seportirg when determining e nature and exten] of pur proceduns, gur
audi was nol designed B povide assurance on ittetrsl controls

Our audit did not imvolve a0 analyds of The prudence of tosiness decisions made by direcios or managemen).

Independence
1 condwting owr audit, we lnl;lmmifapplit:auu indeperdence: requitemenls of Ausiralian professional eihico! pronoancemen s and the Corporations Act 2001,

/.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Peter Buchholz SYDHEY
Parlner 79 August 2006




Five Year Summary
For the years ended 30 June

PRODUCTION
Ore mined ['000 tonnes)
Ore treated (000 tonnes)

Head grade - Gold gft
- Sitver gft

Gold recovery (%)

Gold poured lounces)

Sitver poured [ounces)

PROFIT AND LOSS {AS OO0}

Sales Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Revenue

Operating Expenses

Administration & Other Costs
EBITDA

Depreciation & Amartisation

EBIT

Borrowing Costs

Operating profit/{lass) before income tax
income tax expensef{credit)
Operating profiyf{loss) after income
BALARCE SHEET [AS000}

Cutrent assets - Cash
- Other

Non-Current assets

Total assets

Total debt

Other lisbilities

Total fiabilities

Shareholders' equity

(OTHER iNFORMATION

Average realised gold price on physical deliveries [USSfounce)
Average spot gold price (US$lounce)
Cash cost {US$founte)

Total cost (US$/aunce)

Operating cash flow (A$'000)

Dividends paid (Cash & DRP) {A$000)
Number of issued shares (0007) - Ordinary
Basic earnings per share (A$ Cents}

Dividends per share {A$ Cents)
* Excudes negative hegge adjustment of US$ 39 per oz




Shareholder Information

Substantlal shareholders and their asmlates who have natlf' ed the Company are lasted below.

GOIU 2()00 Lid 5.845,000
Raoss Smyth-Kirk 4 586,271

Dlstributmn of equity securities as at 5 SEFTEMBER 2006

1-]000 BE2 -

1,001 - 5,000 1186 -
5,601 - 10,000 306 -
10001 - 100,000 i 2
100401 - 53 4

2708 6

96 shareholders have less than a marketabte parcel of ordinary shares

20 Largest Shareholders of (luoted Ordinary Shares as at 5 September 2006

1 Westpac Custodian Nominees 17,672,726 19.58%

2 Nztional Nominees Limited 12,311,005 11.64%
3 AMNZ Nominees Limited Cash Income AfC 11,681,954 12 94%
4 J ¥ Morgan Nominees Australia 6,178,255 6.84%
5 Smyth-Kirk Ross Danald 4,586,271 5.08%
B Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 3,257,208 3.61%
7 Bird Bruce Clayton (PO} 3200110 3550
8 HSBC Custody Nominees Australia 2,188,072 2.428
9 Investment Queensland 1,917,872 212%
10 Willow Bend Station Pty Limited 1,401,408 1.5%%
1 ANZ Nominees Limited income Reinvest Plan 780,199 .B6%
12 Maminda Pty Limited 733,533 B1%
13 Bahulu Pty Limited 694,376 7%
14 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 644,572 %
15 Komor Christopher 551,407 6180
i6 AMP Life Limited 490,132 54%
17 Grimwade Frederick Shepp 410,000 45%
18 Doogary Investments Limited 380,000 420
19 Niwate Pty Ltd 300,006 it
0 Stuart Neill Francis 286,031 320

Total 69,672,141 77.15%

Unquoted equity securities as at 5 September 2006
There were B option holders holding 3,660,000 aptions under the Kingsgate Consclidated Limited Employees option plan.

Voting Rights
(a) Ordinary shares
{}n a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each share shall have one vote.
(b) QOptions
No voling rights.
Kingsgate Consolidated Limited
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CORPORATE
INFORMATION

Kingsgate Consalidated Limited
ABN 42 000 837 472

Directors:

Ross Smyth-Kirk (Chairman)
lohn falconer

Peter Mcaleer

Chief Executive Officer:
Gavin Thomas

Company Secretary:
John Falconer

Stock Exchange Listing:
Kingsgate Consolidated Limited is o company limited by shares, listed on the
Australian Stock Exchange under the code KCN.

Registered Office and Principal Business Address:
Level 8, 14 Martin Place,

Sydney, Newr South Wales, 2000

Tel + 61 2 B256 4800} Fax +61 2 8256 4810

Email: infog@kingsgate com au

Share Registry:

Security Transfer Registrars Pty Led.

770 Canning Highway

Applecross, Western Australia, 6153

Tel +61 8 9315 0933 Fax +61 8§ 93152233

Auditors:
Pricewaterhousecoopers

201 Sussex Street,

Sytiney, Neve South Wales, 2000

AN

il Ni",

Controtled Entities:
Kingsgate Capital Pty Limited (Incorporated in Austratia)

Kingsgate South America Pty Ltd (Incorporated in Australia 23 February 2006}
Akara Mining Limited [Incorporated in Thailand)

Issara Mining Limited (Incarporated in Thailand)

Naka Udsahakum Limited {Incorporated in Thailand)

Richaphum Limited (Incorporated in Thailand) (Farmatly Parasof Limited)
Minera Kingsgate Limited [Incarporated in Chile)

Kingsgate Peru SRL (Incorporated in Peru}

Mining Leases:
Mining leases covering the Chatree gold mine were granted by the Thai
Ministry of Industry.

EPM application 12409 is held 100% by the Company. It i located east of
Cloncurry in Queensland and includes gold mineralisation previcusty explored
by the Company.

Kingsgate Tenements Held
Akara Mining Limited: Chatree Gold Mine, Thailand: 10086 - flows through
interest fer gold.

Minesa Kingsgate Limited: Chile: 100% flow through interest for gotd
Kingsgate Peru SRL: Peru: 1% flaw through interest for gold
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Company St:m’lar\}r
Jahn Fatconer '

Kln_;sgatc Cunsulldated Limited
ABN 42 000 837 472

Registered Office and Principal Busingss Office

Level 8, 14 Mastin Place, = = ;
Sydrey, New South Wales, 2000

Teh +61 2 8256 4800 :

Fax +61 2 8256 4810

Emuail: infogikingsgale.com.au

Website: wwwkingsgale.com.ay

KCN:A)'( i

Stock Exchange Listing

Kingsuate Consolidated Limiied ordinary \Iwres are hsted
pn the Austratian Stogk Exchange under the wde KCM.
Share Registry ;

Security Transfer Reglstrans Pty, U, I

770 Canning Righviay, Applecross,

Western Australia, 6153

Tet +€1 8 9315 0933

Fax +61 8 9315 2223




. ' " AL 1 10 LI -
; + .
b i

b

). i . N ‘HI!\'MIUIH-H' AL g o TS . (i P

‘ t . N I s i . T IR H

U

fa

|
-
.
o
-
]
e ¥

..' | ‘-e.‘,'::."'."f



ngsgate

Consaitdattd Ltmlted

o.suznrmaa.r o

SUSiTAINABILITY REPORT 2006

o
E Fe



st
iﬂ{ffﬁ
i

Wi

Tk g g




ﬁ? k

HEGHUHTS

\?

Frieel 5 F vl v.u“

» Development of the new A pit at Chatree North commenced in 2006,
following the granting of one new mining lease. Good progress was made
in approving the remaining leases which are significantly larger than the
existing Chatree lease.

§ * Scoping studies to increase mine capacity were expanded to include higher
| silver recoveries. The expanded study is due for completion in the first half
of the 2007 financial year.

1 *Exploration continues to be highly successful, resulting in increased
i1 resources and the identification of several new prospects.

» Safety performance at Chatree was outstanding with no lost time injuries
for the entire year. On the hasis of publicly available mine safety records in
Australia and Canada, Chatree is believed to be safest metaliurgical mining
operation in the world.

2 * Chatree won several major Thai awards for outstanding health, safety and
labour relations.

1 «The mine’s operational performance was good in another challenging year
j of harder ore and rock waste, unusually heavy rainfall, longer haul distances
.’ and the new A pit development. Gold production was 140,071 ounces at a

{ i cash cost of US$206/0z.

* The annual external environmental audit confirmed that the mine
continues to operate to high standards and in compliance with its statutory
requirements. Environmental performance under the MCA's ‘Enduring Value’
was assessed with favourable resuits.

» Community development programs continued with assistance to local
villages, construction of two new schools and support of local cultural
activities. Community relations activities were restructured with plans to
devolve some aspects to a Thai NGO.

4
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* Kingsgate hecame a signatory to the International Cyanide Management
Code for the safe use, handling and storage of cyanide.




OVERVIEW AND SUMMARY

Who We Are

Kingsgate Consolidated Limited [Kingsgate) is a
highly successful gold mining and exploration
company, listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange [KCN:ASX).

The Company owns and operates the low cost
Chatree Gold Mine in tentral Thailand through
its wholly-owned subsidiary Akara Mining
timited, using world’s best practice

for safe, envirenmentally and socialty
responsible operations.

Our Vision

Kingsgate's vision is to be a preferred goid
company delivering shareholder value through
profit and growth, propelled by focused
exploration in a gold province which exhibits
world class potential.

We are continually assessing new business
opportunities and recagnise that the strength
of our relationships, aur experience with
epithermal gold deposits, our experience in Asia
and South Amerita, and our operating expertise
will provide the opportunities for growth.

Growth weill be achieved through gold
exploration and prudent acguisitions producing
high margin operations, Qur expertise is

based oh embracing cultural diversity and skifl
development, fostering teamwork snd a focus
on the best sesult for all stakeholders.

Our People

Only through our people can we schieve our
gaal of developing and operating high quality
mineral resource projects We will employ and
retain highly skilled pecple and are committed
1o their cantinued development, safety and
well-being.

Sustainability
Kingsgate conduels its operatians to the

highesl standards and with due regard for the
gconamic, social, governance and environmental
ronsigerations for the benefit of all stakehalders.

Chatree Mine

The Chatree Gold Mine is located on the
eastern edge of the Chao Phraya Basin in
gently undulating terrain about 280 kilometres
north of Bangkok. The area is well s2rved with
intrastructure including good road access and
national grig poweer, The mine produces gold
using open pil mining technigues and well
proven processing iechnology.

Chatree l!'(i:y [BETE]

&
Ore reserves (0z)

Kine tife {years)

RepuTex Social Responsibility
{nvestment (SR} Index

Kingsgate is the only gold mining company on
the ASX to be included in the RepuTex Social
Respansibility Investment (SRI) Index launched
in August 2005 and achieved an A rating.

The RepuTex SRI Index comprises 44 companies
from the SBPfASX300 Index spread across a
broad range of industry sectors. The RepuTex

SRI Rating is an assessment of the extent to
wehich an organisation is performing in a socially
respansible manner and managing its social risk
exposures in terms of corporate governance,
environmentat impact, social impact and
workplace practices

Kingsgate is rated similasly to large Australian
companies such as Wesfarmers, Woodside,

Qantas and BlueScope and rated on a par with
international companies such as Kodak, Michelin
and Reuters. it is the only Australian mining
company lo be granted an A rating or belter, apart
from the two major mining groups, BHP Billiton
and Rio Tinto,

Also, Kingsgate is one of four gold companies
included in the Australian Sustainability

Index. This index, established jointly by
Dowlones and the Zurich based SAM Group,
considers companies listed on the S&APJASX200)
that cutperfarm in relation to economic,
environmental and sotiaf considerations

Tonnes milled

Gold produced {oz)

Silver produced {oz)
Cash cost (US$foz)
e
SPepie eipoyea

iy, |‘] Ltk

2,000,264 1,828,876
......... ;.40'0?] 126'550
. woro e

Thai natipnals

T

Expatriates - Chatree mine B 9 .
Long term contractors 572 465
Exploratiun - Thai national 84 48
Exploration - Expatriate 2 2




SUSTAINABILITY
OBJECTIVES AND TARGETS

Target for 20086 2006 Perfurmance
Ag.nnsi "L)rgf:l

Target For 2007

- QHSAS 18001 continuous 1mprovcmtnt continuous arnprov:mcnt
No people hurt at wark e Zero lost time injuries > Achieved. No fost time injuries = Zero fost ime injuries =
Optimise final fand use and rehab of . Establish new WRD revegetation mg!__ _ “New WRD established and planted -+ - Carry out WRD rtchetatiun frials tn -
waste rock dumps (WRD) =00 v “away from existing and proposed - - with trees and wtiver grass (Page 15} "determine best cover -

minigareas e R B S

(ptimise final fand use and rehab of -+ Establish new TSF revegetation trial - - - Not achieved, fast monitoring done in

Tailing Storage Facility [TSF) away from existing facility

away from existing facility

Develop fingl land use rqodc! for - Commission conceptual ‘By mrcr’
stakeholders ™ ™ . ST

lntcgratc sustamab:hty into cmpiuyct: Integrat: sustamabnhty |mtutlycs wﬂh Somt progrﬁs madc, some commumty Ccmmuc 1o integrate bustamahlllty

. Maintain ‘fly over model up to date ‘ :

" and show to Iucal commumty ~

initiatives with local planning 127000 5

Social Accountabifity Standard ™ .-
SA 8000 and Thai Labour Standard .
TS 8001

--Seek certification of Chatree to - -

- Continue implementation of ™" - -

. Community Refations plan =+ -

" Assist in building new schaols in Ban -

) Dong I_ong and Ban Khao Dm o
3. s

meahs: and improve community .

,,,,,,, ‘ Az.hmw:d and dlstnbuttd to nlt
chort by Qctober 2005 stakeholders including ﬂharchaldcrs

- - Continue to |mprovt and :mplcmcm; Somc new lmtla!wcsmtfoduc:d
“.new initiatives - AERTEL -

el Produce at smilar levels a5 2005 at cosh
cost in the bowest quartile globally

COst targets <US$220!oz " Lower gmdc ore processed

"'Carn; aut commumty survtv tn 2005 _Complctcd and rcsuits br.-mg cva[uatcd Implcmcnt fi ndmgs from eump:umty

Optimise plant and throughput rates .. Revitw and approve study to expand . . Not achieved - Scape of study expanded .. Review and approve expanded study .

""""""""""""""""""""""""" plant throughpat =~ to improve Ag recovery (Page 27) 77T 1o increase plant throughput
Enhance mine ife ~---7oooooo-- - Inorease reserves and resogrees v Inceeased reserves by 350,0000z5 and | Inerease reserves and resources "
resources by 700,00002s




CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S

INTRODUCTION

Welcome to Kingsgate’s fourth public
Sustainabifity Report.

Operatianally 2006 was another challenging year
far the Chatree operation with lower grades,
harder ore, higher mining rates, unusudlly heavy
eainfall and development of Lhe new A pit at
Chatree North. Good progress was made on many
issues but greater focus is planned on final land
use and plant expansion optimisation programs.

These challenges and the identification of aew
resources have taid the groundvrork for an
expanded Chatree operalion with an extended
mine life. The scaping study which we commenced
fast year has been expanded to incorporate the
feasibility of increasing silver recovery to ahout
70% corpared with about 44% at present. This is
being done in light of the current high silver price
and the large silver reserves (15 million ounces) in
the Chatree North area.

The feasibility study is neasing comgpletion and,

if approved by the Board, is likely to resull in
substantially expanded mine capacity with an
approximate doubling in throughput rates and
resultant gold production from 2008 onwards.
This will confirm Chatree’s position as a leading
migd-tier gold producer with production of
appraximately 300,000 ounces per year. However,
much needs to be done before we reach this
stage and 2007 will be similar to 2006 with about
140,000 ounces af gold production and several
major construction and operational challenges to
surmount before we reach our goal.

In spite a1 these chatlenges the operation did
not lose focws in 2006 -~ we have maintained
our excellent safety record, strengthened our
environmental practices and completed a
number of community development projects
We also achieved several major awards for our
performance incliding:

¢ The Prime Minister's ‘Best Practice Award
for Employee Welfare 2006

+ The National Occupatienal Health & Safety
and Environment Award 2005,

« The Ministry of Labour ‘Best Practice Award
for Labour Relations 2006

* The Department of Primary Industries
and Mines 2005 Standard Award
- Mining Category and Metallurgy
Category. Akara is the only company to
have won both categories.

* The Ministry of Labour *Zero
Accident Award'

* AusCham Thailand’s 'Business of the
Year Award 20086°, and 'Environmental
Excellence Award 2006

Attaining these swards recognises the

cammitment of our workforce and confirms

that Chatree operates at the highest standards
cornparable with mining operations anywhere in
the world, In 2006, we signed the International

Cyanide Management Code for the safe use,

handling and storage of eyanide, placing us

among the largest of aur peer groug mining
caompanies. We continued to rate well in the

RepuTex Social Responsibility Invesiment (SRi)

Index and were included in the Swiss based SAM

Group Australian Sustainability Index, both of

whith attest o the socially and environmentally

responsible performance of aur operations

The Company understands the necessity to

be sensitive 10 all stakeholder interests when
developing a large complex and sophisticated
industrial enterprise in an underdeveloped

rural area. The Company has been proactive in
educgtion and localisation progsams, community
interaction on current mining activities and future
post-mining land use.

Chatree contributes to 3 wide range af community
initiatives vshich seek to strengthen relatiorships
with stakehoiders and lead {0 improvements in

the quality of fife of local communities Following
the irstallation of a reliable water supply to two
local villages last year, the company funded the
construction of two schoots and educational
facilities in the two villages close fo the mine,

We continue to support local business
development and promote a ‘Buy Thai” policy.
Since commencing operations we have
proactively sourced more of our goods and
services from Thailand in preference to importing
them from Australia and other countries More
than 8% of gur warehouse ifems a2 sourced
from within Thailand.

We have continued to assess ways of enhancing
the value of cur operations in Thailand for the
benefit of both countries and we are committed to
& long term partnership vith Thailand to develop
the country's gold resources We are confident in
finalising the initial stage of a divestment of the
Thai operating asset by November 2006, which will

bring in Thai equity and debt providers. Kingsgate
will maintain cantro! 1o ensure best practice is
mainiained, Two [o three years iater, an fnitial
Public Offering {IPO] is planned on the Thai stock
exchange when mining lzases ase granted and the
expansion of the plant is underway or complete,

To date we have o total investment in Thailand

of about $170 million. A major part of this
mvestment is our extensive exploration and
evaluation programs that total nearly $70 milfion,
fn 2006 the Company invested $15 milfion in
exploration and evaluation, with a similar amount
to be invested in the forthcoming year. We have
commenced development of the A pit at Chatree
North and regard the Chatree region as a potential
new world class gold province. We hold 3 larmge
and highly prospective land package, either a5
granted exploration licences of as applications

for exploration, with the potential ta hest further
mineral fields simifar in scale to Chatree.

We are continually assessing new business
opportunities and continue to advance our
exploration activities in South America, We have
commenced exploring recently granted teneméents
in Peru and Chile and established an office in
Argentina. Kingsgate has atso acquired a 22%
interest in Andean Resources Limited. Andean
ovins the advanced Cerro Negro exploration
project in southern Argentina. The project bears
many geological similarities to Chatree and
Kingsgate believes that il ¢an assist in its potentiat
development for the benaefit all stakehalders

So the autlook is for continuing ¢rowth aver the
next few years, with the poltential outpui from
Chatree set to rise expanentiaily in 2008,

We welcome your feedback on our activilies

and reporting, and encouragée you to réturn

the feedback form accompanying this report or
contact us at any of the ofiices listed in the report.

s oomnns

Gavin Thomas Chief Executive Ufficer
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The Chatree operation is having a direct
beneficial impact on local community employment,
infrastructure, education and similar services.

Enduting Value

Kingsgate is a signatory to the Australian
Mineral Industry's Enduring Value initiative,
wehich provides a Sustainable Development
Framevrork for the mining industry through the
implementation of a range of economic and
social intiatives in addition to environmental
practices. Enduring Value requires signatories
ta commit to tantinual improverment and to
annually audif and report their perfermance.

The key role of Enduring Value is to translate
the principles of sustainable development
into practires that ensure the mining industry
operales in a manner which is attuned to the
expectations of the community and which
maximises the long-1erm benefits to saciety.

Enduring Value is aligned with the International
Council on Mining and Metals {ICMM] principles
of sustainable develapment and the Global
Reporting Initiative [GRI) against which
signatories will be required to report.

The 10 ICMM principles of sustainable
development encompassed in Enduring Value are:

1. Implement and maintain ethical business
practices and sound systems of corporate
governance.

2. Integrate sustalnable development
considerations within the comorate
decision-making process.

3. Uphold fundamental human rights and
respect cuftures, customs and values in
dealings with employees and others who
are affected by our activities.

4. Implement risk management strategies
based on valid data and sound science.

§. Seek continual improvement of our
health and safety performance.

6. Seek continual improvement of our
environmental performance.

7. Contribute to conservation of biodiversity
and integrated approaches to land use
planning.

8. Facifitate and encourage responsible
product design, use, re-use, recyeling and
disposal of our products.

9. Contribute to the soclal, economic
and institutional development of the
communities in which we operate,

10. Implement effective and transparent
engagement, communication and
independently verified reporting
arrangements with our stakeholders.

Specifically, signatories to Enduring Value
commil to:

* Progressive implementation of the
International Council on Mining and Metals
[ICMM] principles and elements (listed above).

* Public reporting at a site level annuaily with
reporting metrics self sefected from the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) or self-developed.

* Assessment of systems used to manage
operational risks.

Kingsgale is implementing the principles of
ICMM &3 outlined in this reporl, assessing
risks at the Chatree site and publicly reparting
its progress [using appropriate metrics)
through this Sustainability Report. in addition,
Kingsgate is praducing a Thal language version
of 1he Sustainability Report specificatly for
lacal Thai stakeholders for the first time in
2006. Previpusty Kingsgate had provided its
stakeholders in Thailand with a Thai versian

of the activities of the cperation with some
aspects of the metries provided.

An assessment of Chatree's performance in
relation to the 10 printiples outlined above
was carried out by an external auditor as
part of & larger annual environmental audit
of the operation. The supporting elements of
each principle were assessed to be adequately
addressed through a 1ange of programs

and initiatives. Under the former Code for
Environmental Management, the operation
would have again demonstrated continued
improvement over the previous yest.

Sustainability at Chatree

Kingsgate seeks to ensure that its mining and
exploralion activities are consistent with and
integrate key aspects of sustainable development,

Since aperations began in 2001 we have
attempled ta measure our ongoing suceess on the
basis of four pillars of sustainability - economic
achievement, environmental performance, social
contribution and governance.

We have dewveloped a site sustainability policy,
introduced sustainability objectives into employee
and operafional performance targets, developed
specific policies for energy conservation,
introduced new energy saving initiatives to
minimise greenhouse gas emissions and reviewed
ur COIPosate governance practives.

The Chatree operation is having a direcl
beneficial impart on local community
employment, infrastruclure, education and
similar services, and we have upgraded employee
capacity through training, skilts and knowledge
transfer but we still need to do this in a more
struttured vay. We need 1o align our objectives
and programs even more with local cammunity,
provincial and national government objectives

Conceptual Sustainability Matdels and
Benefits far Thailand

Kingsgate has been operating the Chatree
Gold Mine in Thailand for approximately five
years. As such it has gained specific knowledge
and experience of working within the loeal
culture. Aligned with its commitment to
sustainable growth, Kingsgate continues to
explore new modefs for improved co-operation
with the Board of Investment, the Ministry of
Commerce, the Ministry of Industry and other
relevant Thai authorities.

To this end, we have commissioned a nuraber of
studies into determining how best to structure
our sacial and economic programs, how Lo
measure our contribution and how to align them
wilh other regional and national initiatives.




Table 1: Global Reporting Initiative (GRY} and Metals Sector Supglement
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We have identified potential partners whose
objectives are aligned with our awn, who
understand Thailand and the challenges
assorialed with rural poverty and inadeguate
local employment, ant who are committed to
improving the qualiry ot life in rusal areas.

We aim to work with these organisations

to enable villagers to acguire the skilis and
eSOUICES 1O Sustain income generating
activities in their own communities Already
we are helping o achieve the aims of some of
these groups by providing employment in rural
areas and thus reducing migration to already
overcrowded cities, transferring business

skills to villagers and encouraging flow-on
business opportunities.

Looking forward, Kingsyate anticipates furthes
opportunities 1o support 1he iniliatives of

its Thai hosts in the provinces of Phichit and
Phetchabun. Kingsgate's objective is 10 become
a fully integrated member of the regional
community by aligning i1s cammunity relations
programs with locat development priorities.

Gavernanee

Kingsgate is committed to achieving and
demansirating the highest standards of
corperate gavernance. The company continually
reviews its corporate governance praclices in
line with latest governante developments and
strives to increase fransparency throughowl
the organisation, The tompany has established
procedures and practices in place for
occupational hezalth and safely, sustainability
management, social and envirpnmental
responsibility, risk management, and auditing
ang review, Xingsgate has established specific
policies For managing these initiatives and is
progressively indging them on its web site.

Code of Canduct and Ethics

Kingsgate has established a Code of Conduct
which outlines the principles of conduct and
ethics to be follovred by Kingsgate’s employees,
Officess and Directors. [is purpase is to promate
henest and ethica! conduct, including the ethical
handling of confiicts of interest. The underlying

principles of the Code are the values of integrily,
respect, trust and apenness. The Code provides
clear directions on conducting buginess
internationally, interacting with gavernments,
cornmunities and business partners and general
workplace behaviour,

During the course of the year, a takeover bid
w3s Jaunched for ASX-listed Andean Resources
Limited. Potential conflicts of interest were
managed in accordance wilh corporate
govermance policies given that Kingsgate's CEQ
was on the board of Andean ot that lime. Legal
advice vas taken from two different leading
Sydney law firms o ascertain if a transaction
was posstbte. With this approval to go ahead,
financial and legal advisers {Macquarie Bank
and Afiens Arthur Robinson) assisted the
tornpany with guidelines to ensure that the
CEQ was excluded from any involvement

in the transaction process. Although some
misperceplions were held by external parties
regarding the process, the transaction was a
good corporate example of how 1o manage
potential contlict sues.

Global Reporting Initiative ((FR1)

Enduring Value is aligned with the principles of
the Global Reparting Initiative and signatories
are requiied ta reporl against a number of GRI
indices. In 2008, Kingsgate committed to repon
against the full list of GRI indices and on page
7 the table shows our progress to date, We

will progressively repart against all the indices
over time through a variety of media inctuding
this and other public Sustainability Reports,
Kingsgate's Annual and Fingnciat Reports and
the company web site.

Global Issues

Kingsgate is considering a broad range of
philosophicat and moral issues such as social
justice, human rights and disteibution of

wealth. The Company befieves that it has been
addressing these issues through its many palicies
and, in part, through the Code of Conduct and
through local site policies, The Company is
supportive of global initiatives which address
these issues including the Global Compact,

Worlct Economic Forum's Anti Corruption
Ini{iative, Business Principles for Countering
Bribery, Labowr Conventions and financial sector
initiatives including World Bank standards and
the Equator Principles,

Akara has applied for cerlification of the Chatree
operation to the Thai Labour Standard (FLS
8001} and is aw:aiting & certification audil. The
Standard provides for labour protection, welfare,
empioyee refations and health and safety, as
viell as the Conventions of the internatianal
Labour Organisation and United Nations The
company is also considering certification to
Social Accountability international - Workplace
Human Rights Standard SAB00D.

The Campany Is also supporlive of industry
initiatives such as the International Cyanide
Management Code, Mineral Council of
Australia's Sustainabifity Framework 'Enduring
Value', International Council en Mining and
Metals (ICMM) Sustainable Development Charter
and the Globa! Reporting Ininative supports two
of Lhese initiatives and is giming to become a
signatory to all of them. The Company measures
that lead to improved envirgnmental and social
performance within the mining industry.

The Campany has established a Thai Strategic
Advisory Committee' comprising prominent
Thai and Australian individuals with extensive
expedience in Thailand. The Group assists and
provides strategic advice separately 1o senior
management and the Boarg,

Further details of the Company's corporate
governance and related policies are contained in
the 2006 Annual Report and on the Kingsgate
web site lwww.kingsgate.com.au).
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Kllngsgate Is committed to best practice
enwronmental management in all aspects of

the operanon and has implemented standards

and policies that provide the highest degree of g
pqotecnon'for employees and the environment.




Chatree undertakes a rigorous program of
improvement to identify, report and eliminate
workplace risks in order to improve safety and

prevent accidents.

Management

Environmental Management

Kingsgate is commilted to best practice
environmental management in all aspects of
the operation and has implemented standards
and policies that provide the highes! degree of
protection for employees and the envirgnment,

Chatree Mine’s Environmental Management
System (EMS] is aceredited as achieving the

IS0 14001 Standard. The EMS describes the
organisational structure, respansibifities, practices,
processes and resources for implementing and
maintaining environmental management,

The Environmental Management Plan {EMP}
facilitates compliance with selevant licences,
legistation and targets for the site. It outlines
specific procedures to aid the implementation of
the EMP, such as revegetation trizls and waste rock
emplacement trials and containg specific plans for
water management and waste management.

Risk Management

Chatree undertakes a rigorous program of
improvement ta identify, report and eliminate
warkplace risks in order to improve safely and
prevent acvidents. Chatree believes that all
accidents are preventable and that no injury
is acceptable,

In addition to risk management practices that
have been introduced for specific work areas
and tasks, Chatree has adopted & fonger-term,
strategic appreach to managing tish: at the
site. Under this approach, various risks and
opportunities are identified in areas such as
operations, regulations and ficensing, human
resources, commercial, community relations,
heslth and related activities {All Business Risks).

An assessment of risks and oppartunities
associated with various deparimental activities
is regularly carried out and ratings are assigned
to these risks, The ratings are determined by
considering contributing factors, potential
consequences, control strengths and weaknesses,
and various reduction strategies are proposed.

Table 2: Environmental Audit Program for the Chatree Gold Mine

Auditor

Auditing and Review

Chatree carries out 2 camprehensive
enviranmental auditing and review program

to assess compliance with licence conditions,
relevant legislation, EMS objectives and best
practice environmental management. The
program is based on regular internal and external
environmental audits. These audits are regarded
as key feedback and quality control mechanisms
that facifitate continugl improvement of
environmental management programs and
systems. A summary of Chatree's environmentat
audit program is shown in Table 2.

Monthly reporis are provided to the Kingsgate
Board of Directors to enstire reqular review

of management strategies and potentiat
environmental impacts. The Board ensures
further checks and balances by commissioning
an annual independent environmental audil of
the Chatree operations.

Fiequency
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The annual independent environmental audit
of the pperation was conducted early in 20086,
following the submission to the Thai authorities
of the annual environmentat monitoring
report. The independent audit consisted of

an assessment of compliance with ticence
requirernents and the practicality, relevance
and performance of specific environmenial
managemsant strategies.

Status of the 2005 Audit
Recommiendations

Major recommendations from the 2005 audit
were reviewed in the 2006 audit end the
following actions were noted:

& Asingle set of names has been applied 10 water
storage farilities and monitoring locations. All
site plans and environmental documents have
been revised to reflect these changes

* |t was recommended that new vegetation trials
he established for taitings matenial following
the proposed lift to the Tailing Storage Facility
which would inundate the existing trial plot.
The trial plol has been sbandoned with Lhe
1ast monitoring taking place in October 2005.
Planning is underway for the neve piot but it
has not yet been established. The new plot will
be established in 2007,

The Exploiation Environmental Management
Plan has been revised to provide for

sealing flowing water bores in the event
that artesian water is intersected during
exploration activities.

[t was recommended that staffing tevels in
the Community Department be reviewed

in fine with current and propased community
programs. Staffing levels were not incieased
but the functions of Land Access and
Acquisition were separated from Community
Development. In addition, Lthe company is
planning o outsource some Community
Development activities t a Thai NGO,
operating at arm's length from Chatree. The
auditor concluded this was a belter approach
than 1o increase staff.

Recommendations frorn the 2006 Audit
Audit recommendations are used to sel targets
for the tollowing year and where necessary

to make adjustments o the enviranmental
rmanagement program. The 2006 auditing
confirmed the mine is aperaling in compliance
with ifs statutory lease and licence requirements.
Major recommendations were!

* |mproved measures should be implemented
to ensure that the Environmental Department
ts informed in advance of any activities
affecting ground cover or drainage within the
mining leases.

* Recommendations from consultant EGi
regarding potentially acid forming material
should ke impiemented including re-funning
the NAFIPAF model using revised criteria
and adopting revised NAG test procedures 1o
ensure matenals are placed in correct waste
dump lacations.

* The feasibility and environmentai
ramifications of in-pit tailings storage should
be investigated,

* A range of locally grown agricultural crops,
including rice, should be included in the new
T5F vegetation trials

* The system of accrual for the Environmental
Lewvy Fund should be changed so that the
funds accrued meet only the estimated
closure angd post-closure costs. Progressive
rehabiiitation costs shoutd also be tracked,
but not debited from the Fund.

Chatree is reviewing all the audit
recommendations and will progressively
implernent the major recommendations.

Mining Lease Applications and
Statutory Requirements

Kingsgate has been carrying oul extensive
exploration and evaluation around the Chatree
ming site for more than three years and has
expended more than $70 miltion. The work
has confirmed the prospectivity of the region
and substantially increased gold resources. Ad

Chatree North Lhe resousces are merging into
one large syslem covering an drea of more than
three kilometres by over one kilometre.

The Company has applied for 10 additional
Mining Leases at Chatree North covering

these resources. The new Miniag Leases cover

a much largers area than the exisling lease

and incorporate the expanded system of
mineralisation and resources (See figure 1).

The first Mining Lease at Chatree North was
granted in October 2005. This was a significant
milestone and is encouraging for final approval
of the full Chatree North area which is the
largest Mining Lease area applied for in Thailand,
Dealing with issues associated with the large
area applied for and the Thai elections in

April 2006 have affected the progress of the
larger lease application but steacdy progress
continues to be made. The mine has also soughi
environmental approval for extension of project
activities into these areas A final environmental
report has been completed and is being reviewed
by the relevant authorities but formal approval
has not yel been received,

As a result of these expanded exploration
activities and Mining Lease applications, there
has been a significant increase in land access
agreements around the existing operation,
Consequently, the vork loads of Akara staff
involved in government refations, personnel,
cominuhily relations, land access, land
acquisition and community development
increased substantially.

A review of staffing levels in these areas was
ungertaken in 2006 and several changes were
implemented. These included separating the
functions of Land Access and Acquisition

from those of Community Development and

a decision to outsource some Community
Developmenl activities to a Thai NGO, When fully
impiemented, these changes should improve the
effectiveness of both functions and more closely
align Community Development activities with
community needs.




To protect the quality of surface and underground
water in the vicinity of the mine, Chatree employs
world best practice in the treatment, handling and
storage of tailings residue.

" Chatree . L
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international Cyanide Management
Code (ICMC)

The 1ICMC is a voluntary code developed by a
multi-stakeholder Steering Committee under the
guidance of the United Nations Environmental
Pragram {UNEP) and Lhe International Cauncil
on Metals and the Environment (ICME). It
conlains nine standards for the gold mining
industry to improve the management of cyanide,
assist in the protection of human health and
ultimately reduce potential environmental
impacts. The nine standards are:

* Cyanide production.
* Transportation of cyanide to the mine site,
* Handling and storage of reagent cyanide.

* (n-site use and management of cyanide at
mining cperations.

* Decommission of facililies.

* Worker safety.

¢ Emergency response.

* Training.

* Communications with the public.

Kingsgate {including Akara Mining) is one of

the original nine gotd mining signatories to the

Code. 8y becoming a signatory, the Company

commits to following the Code's principtes and

implementing its standards of practice. It also

commits to verification audits of its operations

conducted by independent third-party auditors

within three years of their initial application and

every Lhree years thereafter. Operations will be

certified if found in compliance with the Code

and will be de-certified if ICMI determines that

they no langer comply with the Code.

The Cade will help assure local communities
that operations certified as being in comphiance
have taken steps necessary to reduce the
potential for cyanide-related incidents.
Kingsgate is working towards complying

with all aspects of the Cod= and is targeting
certification in 2007.




Water

Water Use and Ecoefficiency

The Chatree Gold Mine obtains its water from
surface runciff storage ponds, from open pit
devatering and from waler bores that intersect
underground veater sources. To promote water
efficienty and conservation, Chatree re-uses and
recyeles water wherever possible.

The primary consumer of water is the ore
processing plant, Appraximately three-guarters
of the water used lor pracessing is recycled from
Lhe Tailings Storage Facility [7SF) and on-site
storage dams. Make-up water is pumped from
local groundwater bores which dewater the pit
areas ahead of mining.

Protecting Water Quality

To protect the quality of surface and
underground veaater in the vicinity of the mine,
Chatree employs world best practice in the
treatment, handling and storage of tailings
resigue. The eonstruction and operalion of the
Taitings Storage Facility was described in detail

.] in the 2003 Sustainability Report which is

available on the company's web site, The quality
of surface and underground water is monitored
to ensure the quality of water exiting the sile is
not significantly degraded.

The objectives of Chatree's water quality
rmonitoring program are to:

» Agsess the potential impact that mining
activity may have on the local and regional
surface water system,

Provide interpretable data on the quality of
waters both on and leaving the site.

Ensure that the quality of surface water
and groundwaters exiting the site are not
significantly degraded.

Ensure that the quality of surface water and
groundwater remaining on the site after
mining is of an acceptable standard.

Surface ¥ater

Surface water quality is monitored at 10
potential impact sites located around the open
pits and plant site.

Monitoring results in 2006 showed that the

pH at most of the potential impact sites was

in compliance with Thai Standards for Surface
Water and Drinking Water. Some sites showed
reduced pH readings during the wet season due
(o runoff from areas cantaining sulphides such
a5 waste rock dumps and pit walls. Fhese waters
are contained on the project site at all times
and Lthe water quality at these locations has not
affected surface water or groundwater quality
off the project site.

Graundwater

To measure the impact that mining activity

may have on the local and regional groundwater
system, monitoring of a series of groundwater
piezometers is carried out both within the
mining fease and regionally to measure

water level and chemical changes in the
hydrogealogical regime.

Each monitoring location consists of a shallow
and a deep hole, the former lerminating in the
perched laterite horizon and/for clayey sand
unit and the deeper hole drilled below the
anticipated water level. The locslions are based
on the naturat direction of groundwiater How
and activityffacility immediale up-gradient

of that point, Groundwater from these paints
is collected and analysed by appropriately
regisiered iaborataries for periodic revievs.

A total of 17 bores are monitored weekly for pH
and canductivity fevels, and quarterly for anions,
cations, metals and cyanide,

Monitoring in late 2005 showed an increase

in concentrations of several ions (especially
sulphate and manganese) and other parameters
in two deep bores to the south of the mine. The
ionic composition of the ground water is simitar
1o that of mine water which has been stored
accasianally in Reserve Pond No 1 at the south
of the minesite.

Chatree has decommissioned the pond and is
constructing a new storage pond with a clay
base and cul-off trench bo minimise seepage.
A new water monitoring bore 1s also planned
downstream of the new resérve pond.

Tailings Storage Facility {TSF)

The TSF and treatment process at Chatree is
desigred and constructed according o the
highest international standards. A detailed
description of this proress was pravided in
the 2003 Sustainability Report.

Management of the TSF has proceeded in
accordance with the original design and
associated operating instructians, s confirmed
by the most recent independent audit carried
out by the design consultant Knight Fiésold in
Ocraber 2005. The audit confirmed thal, based
on the results of the monitoring programs; alk
components of the TSF are operating as intended
and in tompliante with Thai legistation.

In 2005 the Thai authorities approved an
expansion of the TSF to accommodate lailings
that will be generated in future. The expansion
involves raising the level of the existing TSF
embankment, mainly using the ‘downstream
conslruction® approach, The perimeter of

the facility was buttressed with a layer of
campacted rock above the clay base and the
ney: embankment raise was constructed in
accordance with the approved desigh.

Despile this increased capacily, additional
tailings storage will be required in the future
to accommodate tailings following the plant
expansion and development of the Chatree
Horth deposits. The new Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA) for Chatree North provides
for the constsuction of a second TSF focated 10
the south of the existing TSF. However, other
options may be explored including depositing
the tailings in one of the mined-oul pits.




Chatree holds all necessary licences, permits
and agreements to operate under the Thailand
jurisdiction. The mine has operated in compliance
with all its licence conditions and there were no
major risks to the environment during the year.

Tailings Storage Facility Cover Trial

The expansion of the T5F to accommodate
increased tailings matenal has resulted in the
inundation of the existing vegetaticn trial plot
and the last monitoring was carried out in
Octaber 2005. The trigl plot is investigating the
feasibility of establishing vegetation directly on
1aings material without the need for additional
capping of top soil cover, Results of the trial to
date have been positive. However, additional
investigations are required over a loager term to
cordirm survival of the vegetation.

Planning is undervway for the new plot which
will be established lates in 2006. The new
site will be located within the existing water
management system, will be lined vath an
impermeable barrier and will be monitored to
check water quality emanating from the site.

Land

Biodiversity

Competing land use, including mining
operations, poses significant risks to biodiversity
around the world.

The Chatsee ming is located on the eastern

edge of Thailand's great central plain in gently
undulating country. The region has been cleared
of original vegetation for many years and is now
predorminantly used for farming and rice growing.

Tuble 3; Comparison of Cyanide Levels
in Common Materials & Chatree Tailings

Mining operations at Chatree are controlled

by the appraved Environmental Impact
Assessment [EIA] which was carried out before
the cammencernent of mine construction and
which serves as a baseline for mining operations
and environmenta! monitoring.

The EIA found that there were no protected

or biodiversity-rich areas within the proposed
area of aperation, no wetlands of international
significance, endangered flora or fauna or other
areas of ecotogical significance.

The major irpacts on biodiversity asseciated
with mine activities come from land clearing.
The mine has a policy to minimise land clearing
to the minimum necessary and carries aut
progressive rehabifitation of disturbed areas
wherever possible, with the most suitable
vegetation for the region. At 30 June 2006,

the total land disturbance was 354 hectares of
which 51 hectares had been rehabilitated.

The company has completed and continues 1o

research revegetation and tree plantings, useful
local flora species, acid drainage prevention, and
groundwater modelling and recharge. Details of

some of these programs are outlined in this report.

Property Management

As a result of successful expioration activity
to the north, west and south of the existing
mining lease, additional property has been
acquired in these areas. Managernent of these

Table 4: Environmental Incidents

areas is progressively passing to Chatree and the
operalion has prepared a Property Management
Plan for the overall site, The Plan outlings the
practices that will be implemented {o maintain
the agricultural vatue of the kand. Initially these
will include controlled buining to reduce the
risk of wildfire and implementation of sediment
control measures

incidents and Compliance

Chatree holds all necessary licences, permits
and agreements to operate under the Thailand
jurisdiction. The mine has aperated in
compliance with all its licence conditions [see
minor exceedances below) and there were no
major risks ta the environment during the year.

Environmental incident reporting is used by
Chatree as a lool for learning and ensuring

that action is taken lo prevent impacts and
recurrence, The protocol for incident reporting
is inCluded in the environmental induction
program undertaken by ali staff and contractors
prior to working at the mine.

Operating personned continue to incorporate
improvements to equipment and procedures to
reduce the risk of spills. Particularly stringent
measures apply to 1hose parts of the ptant
where cyanide is stored or used.

Environmenta! incidents are classified into five levels at the mine:

Category Drfinii:iun
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There were 15 Level 1 (low severity] incidents
during the year (see table 4). Twelve related to
rinar teakages of hydraulic oil and the olher
involved spillage of diese) fuel. In all cases, the
spills were promptly cleaned up and procedures
initiated to prevent g recurrence. However, in
¢ight cases the hydraulic oil spitls were caused
by ruptuted hoses which are gifficulr ta detect
before failure.

Two incidents involved discharge from the
plant when cyanide levels exceeded the
compliance limit of 20ppm CN Jotal. The
exceedences (23 and 25ppm]) were only just
outside the preseribed limits and posed no
threal to employees or the environment,
The concentrations were quickly diluted on
discharge to the TSF. Normal cyanide discharges
after ditution were equivalent to the cyanide
concentration levels ta be found in a cup

of coffee (see table 3.

Waste Rock

Waste rack from the Chatree open pits is stored
i conventional waste rock dumps within

the mine lease. Waste rotk emplacement is
designed to ensuse that it is gectechnically and
erosionally stable in the long-term.

The potential for Acid Rock Drainage (ARD)
is being managed by the encapsulation of
Potentially Actd Forming [PAF] materials in clay,

and burial benealh material with no net acid
forming potential, Non Acid Forming [NAF),
within mine waste emplacements. The amount
of NAF material is more than atlequate to
entapsulate any PAF encountered.

In 2006 the pit areas ang waste rock dumps
continued 1o expand as mining progressed.
Strategies were implemented to accommodate
the increased quantities of waste rock by
enfarging the empiacement area and also by
back-filling smaller, mined-out pits {Mars pit).
The main dump is atvancing 10 Lhe west and
narth-west with a completed extension of the
NAF wrap.

Wherever possible, the emplacements are
progressively revegetated as areas become
available. The performance of waste rock
management strategies are regularly reviewed
and the potential impacts of waste rock are
monitored os part of the extensive water quality
monitoring program at the site.

In 2006 a total of 12.1 million tonnes of
waste rock was placed on the surface waste
dumps. In addition, 4.1 million tonnes of
waste rock was ulilised in the construction
of the TSF embankment,

Rehabilitation
Chatree sirives Lo minimise its environmental
impacts and fimits ground disturbance

Table 5: Summary of Rehabilitation Activitie
tiocation (WRD = Waste Ruck Dump)

Nuote; The dota inciuded n His table welates fo the 2000 caiendar yuar,

to the minimum necessary to conduct its
operations. It is Chatree’s policy to progressively
rehahilitate disturbed ground as it becomes
available. Rehabilitation progress for the year s
summarised in Table 5,

1n 2005 vigorous growth occurred over most of
the Chatree waste rock dump (WRD) resulting

in 1008 ground cover. Unfartunately, design
changes to the lawan WRD resulted in the
destruction of much of the previously rehabilitated
areas to make way for additional material.

In adtlition to rehabilitating the mine's active
waste rock dumps, Chatree is undertaking
vegetation trials on 3 purpose-buili waste

rock empiacement. The original emplacement
was averrun by expansion of the waste rock
dump and a new revegetation trial WRD was
established to the north of the Tawan pit, The
new plot, comprising some 0.5 hectares in an
area unlikely to be required for other purposes,
was planted with irees and vetiver grass in the
2006 wet season. Instrumentation was atso
installed to monitor moisture profiles within the
dump. The trial is assessing the suitability of blue
clay as a capping layer and revegelation of the
WRD using varigus plant and tree species.




Kingsgate strives to minimise environmental
impacts and uses the best available technologies
to promote energy efficiency and minimise
greenhouse gas emissions.

Closure Planning

The Preliminary Mine Clasure Plan was
rompleted in 2005, The Plan details potential
land use options for the various disturbance
areas an the mine site and includes the
feasibility of the land use options, rehabilitation
of waste rock dump (WRD) focusing on tree and
no-tree zones, and rehabilitation of the TSE.

Post mining land use options are being tested
to determine possible finaf land use types.

The oplions alang with 3D models of post
mining tand forms are being presented to local
stakeholders for their input.

Chatree has made cast provisions far
environmental management at the site including
mine closure and environmental monitoring
after mining has finished, The amount accrued
is based on ounces of gald produced and this
was increased in 2005 following completion

of the Preliminary Mine Closure Plan. Finat
closure costs will be determined by extensions to
existing pits, development of new pits as mineral
resources are discovered and rehabilitation of
assotiated mining and treatment wastes.

The mire will continue tQ revie its mine closure
planning in association with the continuing
development of mining and processing operations

Table 6: Recycled Solid Wastes
Materizal

Waste Management and Recycling
Chatree Gotd Mine is located in a part of
Thailand where extensive récyeling facilities
are not readily accessible, This has created the
chaflenge of developing 3 waste management
program that is sustainable for the life of the
mine, while not impacting on lotal aesthetics
and infrastructure.

Chatree's waste management and recycling
program is based on a tiered strategy of:

* Waste segregation - all wastes generated are
segreqated into groups to facilitate re-use
andfor rerycling.

+ Recyclable materials are re-used on-site
where possible,

* Recyclable materials not used on-site are sold
to recycling condractors for collection.

* Remaining putrescible wastes are placed into
a small scale, on-site land-fil.

In 2006 approximately 85% of wastes were
re-used of recycled. Table 6 shows the quantities
of solid wastes recycled during the year. In 2006
cupets and G-pots were recycled though the

gold processing plant. In addition, approxdmately
214800 litres of oily wastes were removed from
site by an authorised waste recycling, treatment
and dispasal contractor. Checks are carried oul
periodically ta ensure that contractors are properly
tecyclingfdispasing of materials and waste,

Air

Energy Use and Greenhouse

Gas Emissions

Thailand ratified the United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) in
December 1994 and the Kyoto Protoco! in
August 2002,

Kingsgate acknowledges that climate change

is a real international and community concerm.

We support and endorse various initiatives for
voluntary actions consistent with international
initiatives on climate change. Kingsgate strives

to minimise environmental impacts and uses the
best available technologies to promote energy
efficiency and minimise greenhouse gas emissions

At Chatree, the mine has introduced a range of
initiatives to save energy and reduce emissions.
‘these include introducing a site Energy
Conservation Palicy, forming a Power Smart
Committee to evaluate new energy saving
initiatives and promoting energy management
to ail ereployees and contractors,

Emissions to air are produced {rom electricity use
and the consumption of diesel fuel from mining
operations The major consumer af electricity

is the pracessing plant, with minor amounts
associated with various administrative activities.

Greenhouse gas emissions are shown in
Table 7.
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!
ot
g
In 2006 greenhouse gas emissions increased by
13% to 60,785 tonnes of C0, due to:

» An expansion of the processing plant with
consequent higher ore throughput and
electricity use,

» Higher diesel fuel usage resulting trom tanger
haut distances as the pits deepened and the
strip ratios increased.

Despite the introduction of energy saving
measures, overall energy usage and emissions
will continue to intrease in the future in line
with plannet and potentially new expansions 1o
mining and processing facilities

Sulphur dioxide and nitric oxide emissions

are not reported separately as Chatree's ore

is mefallurgically simple and does not require
rpasting, and hence emissions of these
substances are quite low. The mine also derives
its power from the nationat grid.

Table 7: CO, Emissions

(i;Gl2 Emissi(fms ftonnes)

Air Quality and Dust Monitoring

An extensive monitoring program is undertaken
at Chatree to ensure that all aspects of the
operation are carried oul 1o the highest
environmental standards Monitaring within and
adjacent to the mine covers noise, vibration, air
quality and climate. The sampling stations for
air quality monitaring are located at five villages
surroungding the mine site.

Figure 2: Contributors to CO,
Emissions for Chatree
10

The monitoring results show Lhat, a3 expected,
air quality varies with the seasons with
particulate matker increasing in the dry teason
and reducing in the wet season. The ovetall
monitering resulis indicate that air quality
management strategies implemented at Chatree
are appropriate.

2006

Qreenhouse gas emissions ore caleulsted using the Workd Business Coungil for Sustainabie Development WBCSE and

World Resources Instiiute (WRI) emission factors

"Restnted using WBCSDIWRI emission Tacion For vleciricily generation.

*Adjusted fzorm 2003 repori.

Etectricity i Fued busoing TLPG
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Sjafety in the workplace is integral to Chatree’s
. operational and sustainability policies and the
“mine strives for an incident free environment for
aill emplo\ﬂees and contractors.

b




The Chatree mine has taken a proactive
approach to managing emergencies both
at the mine and in the local communities
hy forming an Emergency Response Team.

The contractor workforce increased by 23%in
2006 due to longer waste havlage distances ang
construction activities associated with the raising
of the Tailings Storage Facility,

People

As 3t 30 June 2008, the Chatree operstion
employed 2€5 pegple, 99% of whom are Thai
natichals. An additional 572 lcng-term contractors
are employed as mining contractors and in ather
service functions. The contrattors are focal and
natipnal Thai companies, and the vast majority of
their employzes are Thal. In addition, Kingsgate
employs 28 geologists and associated permanent
and temporary staff engaged in mine site and
regional explaration thraughout Thailand.

Where possible, local community members are
employed preferentially and local contractors are.
commissioned to undertake work at the mine

or on exploration tlenements. The contractors
carry out open pit mining, as well as providing
employee transport, cooking and eating facilities,
security and other services.

Akara, like all resource companies operating

in the global market, experienced higher raw
material costs and 3 lighlening labour market

in 2006. Despite this, Chatree’s labour furnaver
rate increased only slightly from 4.6% to 5.4% in
2006. The company has a policy 1o improve the
quality of life for women workers who comprise
appraximately 1306 of the vzorkforce and 210% of
the senior management team are (emale.

Akara has applied far certification of the
Chatvee operation to the international SA 8000
acereditation for Sociat Accountability and the
Thai Labour Standard (TLS BOD1) and is awaiting
certification audits for both, These Standards
provide for [abour protection, welfare, employee
refations and health and safely, as well as

the Conventions of the International Labour
Organisation and United Nations.

Public Saf?bly Theough
Stakehuidier Engagement -

The Chatree mine has taken 2 proactive
approach {o managing emergencies both
‘at the wmirle and in the fotal communities”
by forming an Emcrgcnwiﬂespcmse Team.
The team trains regutarly in emergency
procedures, including fire fighting,
CPRfirst did and casuwalty transfers.

These skifls are made. :wai“l_ahle 1o local-
comrunities via a coordinated approsch
With pmvipcial aulhirities.

(

Tabie 8: Safety Performance

A six member ‘crack’ tean, registered as
Public Rescuers with Phitehit provinee,

iwark with civilion volunteers to help in
erﬁeféenql situations such as flood, fire

Chatree Mine Employees and Contractors)

In 2006 the company was awarded the Prime
Minister's ‘Best Practice Award for Employee
Welfare' for the fourth year running. Akara
was also awarded the Ministry of Labour 'Best
Practice Award for Labour Relations' for the
second year running.

In Atsgust 2006, Kingsgate/Akara won the
‘Eavironmental Excelfence Award 2006 in the
AustCham Thailand Business Awards The Awards
recognise the achievements of Thai, Austratian
and other businesses in their contributions to
building strong economic ties between Thaitand
and Australia. In addition to the environmental
award, the independent judges then awarded
Kingsgate/Akara the averall ‘Business of the Year
2006 Award.

Mine management encourages employees to
participate in social functions. The mine sponsors a
1ange of local sponting activities intluding a soceer
competition, aerebics and social tennis in addition
10 3 number of employee social functions.

Safety Performance

Safety in the viorkplace is integral 1o Chalree's
operational and sustainability pelicies and the
mine strives for an incident free environment

for all employees and contractors, Chatree has
developed appropriate policies, codes, procedures
and ongoing training to help maintain an aceident
free work place.

2005 2004 2003

i, \
r roud aceidents, and hag.j'e their own .
fiislinctivel uniform, :

Tote recomabie injuries (TRI) intludus alf injuries but excludieng fis] pid eases.
Totd injuries (TI] includes alt injuries including st eid cases,
* per million hours worked,
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All stafi and contractors are required to complete
the Site Safety and Environment indurlion before
working on the mine site. All employees are re-
inducted on an annual basis and undergo further
training in relation to their specific occupations.

The excellent safety perfarmance of previous years
continved in 2008 and Chatree has worked more
than seven million hours vith only one lost time
injury up 1o 30 June 20086, Far the year ended

30 June 2006, the Lost Time Injury Frequency
Rate [LTFR) was G compared with an industry
average of 4.0 for Australian open cul mines
{Minerals Counci! of Austrafia statistics). The mine
has achieved an injury rate in the Jowest quartile
of international safety statistics since start-up
and, on the basis of publicly available safety
records (including the Narth American Mining
Industry), is believed to be the safest metalturgical
mining operation in the world. The Chatree Total
Recordabte Injury Frequency Rate at 2.0 per
million hours worked is over 7 times better than
the Australian Mining Industry average.

In recognition of Chatree's achievements in the
area of health and safety in 2005, the opesation
was awarded a 'National Occupational Health &
Safety and Environment Award' in 2006. in order
to receive the award Chatree had to achieve an
overall score of more than 0% on all of the
standards assessed. The award was presented to
Akara Mining by the Deputy Prime Minister Suwat
Liptapaniop during the 22nd Annual Conference
of the Asia Pacific Occupational Safety and
Health Organisation in Bangkok. Chatree was
also swarded the Zero Accident Award' by the
Ministry of Labour.

Occupational Health

Chatree strives to minimise occupational heaith
risks af the mine site and has instituted a regular
monitoring program to test noise, vibration and air
guality effects on employees and the surrounding
communities. All employees also undergo an
annual medival check-up.

Specific testing is carried out on employees
working in ceriain sections of the operation.
Chatree is tontinuing a range of 'fitness' for work

programs for employees in¢luding random drug
and alcohal testing which is carried out on all
permanent and contractor employees.

Emergency Response and the

Local Community

Kingsgate, through the Chatree mine takes a pro-
active approach {0 managing emergencies, The
mine has formed an Emergency Response Team
with representation from all areas of the mine sile,
The Team trains regulany in a range of emergency
procedures including fire fighting, first aid/CPR,
casualty transiers, and emergency response to
themical spills.

The skills developed within the Emergency
Response Team are made available to the local
communities through co-ordination with the
appropriate provineial authonities Six. members of
the Team have been registered as Public Rescuers
with the Phichit Province Public Rescue Service,
Public Rescuers are civilian volunteers Lhat help
the public in emergency situations such as flood,
fire and road accidents,

Training and Development

Since carmnmencing operations, the mine hag
implemented an extensive range of training
programs far its employees. The programs
have been enormously successtut as evidenced
by the safety, environmental and operational
performance of the mine. Performance in all
asperis of the operation has been comparable
with Australian mines and is a credit to the
inherent skifls and diligence of the Thai people

The mine has provided basic training v all aspects
of the operation but also in other sreas such as
visk assessment, first aid, fire fighting, chemical
safety antf emergency response. Specific courses
are provided in Cross Cultural Management,
Assertiveness and Accountability, Perlormance
Management and Team Building.

In 2006 Chatree employess aitended a range
of short courses, workshops and conferences
in Thailand, Laos, Indonesia, India amd Austratia
as well as assisting in exploration activities in
Peru and Chile. The courses cavered areas such
as environmental management, sustainable

development, logistics, gratle control, risk
assessment, health and safetly, mineral rescurce
estimation and exploration,

Chatre¢ has an Educational Assistance Program
which encourages employees to 1ake job-related
courses thus developing their skills and potential
for promotion, and improving their productivity.
Chatree is currently sponsoring eight employees
for 8 Master of Business Administralion, one

for a Master of Computer Science and one for a
Doctorate in Geology.

Community

Chatree management encourages participation
in focal community events and supports a wide
range of community and cultural activities
inctuding focal festivals, national family days and
monk {eave Tor young male employees.

Monk Leave

It is 3 That tradition that a young man

af the age of 20 spends a period of time
in the Buddhisl monkhood, usually after
completing studies but hefore marriage.

Oudinution traditionally takes place before
the start of the rainy season. The new
mank remains for a perivd of a week

to several moaths, during which he
undergoes spiritual troining, A man who
has been a mank is tridilionaily considered
mature and able to lead a good like with
thoughtiulness and wisdom.

The company is cognisant of the need
for religious sensitivity, Employees at
the Chatree mine are allowed up to twi
werks of paid monk teave and 120 days
leave in total for this purpose.




Through its community development programs,
Chatree seeks to strengthen its relationships with
stakeholders and introduce sustainable benefits

and activities.

Communily Development

Chatree's activities contribute 10 a wide range

of stakeholder aims including business, local

and national government, and community
organisations. Through its community
development programs, Chatree seeks to
strengthen its relationships with stakeholders and
introduce sustainable benefits and activities.

Chatree's community development program
provides a range of opportunities for direct and
indirect employment, intreased aceess to health
and educaticn, construction of roads and water
delivery infrastructure, sporting infrastructure
and financial contributions to local communities
Lhrough religious centres and sporting events.

Akara Mining Limited promotes education
Lhrough the sponsorship of educational programs
in Yoeal schools, providing schofarships to focal
students going on to further education, providing
educational assistance ta employees and hiring
students as part of their schoal training program,
In 2005-06 Akara also funded the building of new
schools at Ban Khaa Din and Ban Dong Long, the
two villages close to the mine. These two schools
and ather educational facilities cost 10000600
Baht. The schaols were opened on National
Children’s Day in a special ceremony attending

by provincial and tocal government officials,
communily leaders, teachers and children.

Table 9: Community Development Expendilure in 2006 ($A1= 29 Baht)

i e
i ; 2 212 %

In May 2006, Chatree received an award for

its drug education, prevention and cornective
piograms in Phichit Province, The mine has

also been recognised for its support of the
Rajaprajanugroh Royal Foundation which provides
emergency relief and support to victims of natural
dwasters. e Foundation also provides primary
and secondary education to children of victims

In 2006 Akara spent approsimately $440,000
(13,277,000 Baht] on a range of community
activities (see Table 9),

Akara's direct contribution to community, social
and infrastructure development since start-up
exceeds $A1,500.000. The sustainability initiatives
supperted by these funds are shown in Figure 3.

Capacitly Building

The Chatree praject contributes ko capacity
building at a number of levels including skilled
labour, technician and professional tevels at
the mine, in focal communities through the
Company's social programs and also at the
gavernment level through interaction with
various levels of government, Local villagers

in particular have learned new knowledge and
skills from the Chatree operation and this helps
imprave not just their income and quality of life
but also local economies,

Expendifure $

lsdione

Aligning with Local

Development Priorities

It is important thal new community developmeni
activities are well researched and culturatly
appropriate for Thailand. [n 2004-5, two
consultants were engaged 10 analyse and advise
on how best practice community devefopment
aclivities may be implemented at Akara in a way
which i suited to the local community. Research
included interviews with key Thai personnel,
community and provincial keaders.

Current regional develapment goats at the
provincial level were examined and Thai best
practice examples of community developrent
explored. Key Thai personnel undertook a site visit
to a leading Thai resources company renavened for
its community development initiatives and initial
meetings have been held with Thai community
development specialist organisations regarding
collaberation in this area.

Figure 3: Community Development
Exprenditare Sinee Starl-up
{$A1,500,000)
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B Edueation
Public¢ health
W Sport ang youth
Custarm and culture
“Community sad road infrostructure
2 Loval governineat & capacity building

M Retigion I g




Following Lhese initiatives, a review of Chatree's
tommunity development function was undertaken
in 2006 and several changes were implemented,
These included separating the funclions of Land
Access and Acquisition from those of Community
Development and a decision to culsource some
of the Community Development activities to

a Thai NGO, When fully implemented, these
changes should improve the effectiveness of both
functions and more closely align Community
Development activities with community needs.

Community Survey

In 2006 Chatree commissioned 8 community
survey 10 determine opinions, attitudes and
roncerns about 1he Chatree mining operation

as part of cur ongoing stakeholder engagement
prograras that are being reviewed and upgraded.
The surwey was carried out by 8 communication
ronsultant in conjunction with staff at
Chulslongkarn University. A cross section of
provincial and ocal government officials were
surveyed along with community leaders and local
villagers. The survey was conducted by face-to-
face interviewss with 28 interviewsees betvieen
9-11 March 2006.

The results of the survey are summarised
in Tabie 10.

The fincings from the survey viill be tsed by
the recently restructured Community Relations
Department to better co~ordinate activities and
programs, and to address real and perceived
community concerns,

1
Women in Management & Social Cohesion

Chatree™s Environmental Coordinator,
Yavwanud Chandung, worked for the
Ministry ot Naturat Resources in Bangkok,
She retursied (o her focal villag, Tapin

Hin, 20km Fram Chateee, to work at the
mine, much o the delight of her extended
fannily and friends. Not onldy dig she receive
a higher rate of pay but her skills were
recognised and she was promoted lo the
tnanager of e covirgmmerdal be;mrlmﬁm,
ardl §s one of the sedior executives at the
mine. The company has a focus on ereating
an environment where women are treoted
equally and provided apportunitics to Bl
marTagement nnsitiu{n_s t

Already the company is acting on several of

the findings including increased stakehokier
communication and transparency with the
intreduction of a monthly regional newsletter
which reports ail issues of local significance (not
just Chatree mine issues), further initiatives on
developing reliable water supplies and progress
in co-ordinating mine programs with district and
regianal programs.

Chatree intends to repeat the survey from time 1o
time o determine progress in addressing issues
and to keep abreast of emerging ksues

Complaints

Chatree maintains & complaints register in

which the nature of sny public complainl, the
response and the pbutcome are recorded, In 2008,
six complaints were received from neighbouring
residents refating 1o dusl, notse and blast vibration.
The issues were discussed with landowners and,

in two cases, changes to blasting patierns were
instigated. In the ather four cases, the company
instigated additional dust suppression measures to
reduce dust ievels,

In addition to Community Consultation,

Chatree meets with an expert committee from
the Department of Natural Resources that
specialises on gverviewing mining environmenlal
matters, the ONEP Monitoring Committee,

every 2 months to keep them informed of what
s happening at the minesite wilh respect to
environmental lssues.

In 2006 the Company upgraded its stakeholder
engagement programs and plans 1o further
upgrade these efforts in 2007.

“

Many young people are diawn to Bangkok
coch year from the country due to the lack
of suitabde ernployment. The Chatree mine
furs provided an opportunily for satisfying
und rewarding careers in a poorer country
area. Over 200 young peaple have returned
from Bangkuk to find work associated with
mine since the mine opered, improving local
sockal cohusion and parlly reversing the
social distocation created as talented youth
leave vountry locations.

Table 10: Results of Community Survey

itive Resuits

1 High standard of operational technatogy

local people
3 Created more local jobs

increase fand values

5 .Supports community activities

6 - 'Policles have resulted in sharp drop in ... o
-+ drug use in the community T

Negative Results ,'
7. The operation has caused shortages of ™

over water guality

8 Concerns over the mine's use of cyanide

increased noise and dust levels

10 -The operation has caused some soclat *." -
confiict related to fand sates ~ "~

Expectations [ Desires

1 - Akara should develop a methanism for .
. ~better co-ordination between the mine, - --.
district and provinclal communlty programs

12 Particlpate.in the Royal project to build 3
new canal to alleviate water shortages

13 Co-operate with communities to develop

14 "Become more transparent gves " "
environmental issues

15, 'Limit operating hours to preserve quality -
of life in communities

communities

17 Promote sport among locat viltages
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Kingsgate is committed to long term investment
in Thailand with Thai partpers.

Economic Contribution

Chatree is located in a relatively infertile region
of Thailand, east of the Nan River on the border
of the provinces of Phichit and Phetchabun.
Most people in the Chatree vicinity are farmers
in an area that provides few ather employment
opportunities. The farmers are relatively poor
and their chitdren are often foreed to seek
employment away from home in Bangkak

and other larger towns. The Chalree operation
offers alternative employment opportunities
and regional economic advancement, and it
heips reduce migration to urban areas. The
Chatree mine had 265 employees, exploration
86 employees, plus 572 long term contractors.
99% of the workforce were Thai nationals,

In addition, Kingsgate emplays 22 geologists
and 64 associated permanent and temporary
staff in mine site and regicnal exploration
throughout Thaifand.

Thai employees benedit through:

* Knowledge transfer,

* Technology transfer.

» Training and localisation programs.

Kingsgate believes that mining developments
should result in the sharing of benefits for all
stakeholders While contributing to the Thai
economy through goods, services taxes, ete,
Kingsgate also seeks to promaote economic
independence in local communities and to
assist sall business.

Most opportunities are contracts with

the company on mine related services but
Chatree's lang term aim is 1o diversify local
enterprises beyond mining activilies. Where
the potenlial exists, we encourage and support
improvements in the sebsistence economy.

To this end we are seeking potential partners
wihose abjectives are aligned with our own,
who understand Thailand and the problems
associated with rural poverty and inadequate
lotal emgloyment, and who are committed to
improving the quality of tite in rural areas.

To promote these aims Chatree has, since
commencing operalions, proactively sourced
more of its gaods and services from Thailand

in preference to importing them from Auslralia
and ather countries. The company promotes a
‘Buy Thai' policy which has seen ths value of
goods and services supplied by Thailand increase
steadily since the mine began operations. Today
more than 80% of the ming's warehouse items
are sourced from within the country,

Some reeent examples of this policy include
purchasing fire assay crucibles from the tocal
ceramics industry and vetiver sprouts fram
local villagers, Vetiver grass is used veidely
around the mine for rehabilitation activities.
Chatree now buys vetiver sprouts from local
villagers creating income of more than
500,000 Baht a year for the local community,

Substantial payments are made in the form of
wages, 1axes, rovallies, goods and services all of
which have a major benefit on the loral econamy,.

Workforee in 2008

Chateek fmnployees .
Local Thai employees 192

Other Thai nationats ~ "
Expatriates - Chatree mine T 3
Total Chatree employees 7 265
Comtr e e
Exploration - Thal national ™" g4
Explotation - Expatriate TR
Total workforce P

99% of workforee are Thai nationals

In 2006, Chatree spent US$40.9 miltion on
goods and services of which 19% was spent in
local provinces and a further 67% in the rest
of Thailand. In addition, US$1.50 million was
paid in royalties and US$0.8 million in taxes
and duties,

Business Performance

Operations

The Chatree mine overcame some operational
challenges during the year Lo finish strongly at
year end. Qperational highlights included:

* Gold production of 140,071 ounces, achieved
at a cash cost of US$206 per ounce.

* Increased mining rates and development of
new A pit a1 Chatree North.

¢ Higher plant throughput following the plant
expansion and new pebble crusher.

* Heightened exploration activity leading to
substantial increases in resources.

* Vigorous permitiing activity for new mining
and exploration leases.

® Excellent safety and environmental
perfarmance.

ailand ~ Local provinces
Thailand '~ Dther provinee

I Other dyérsens’ o
ToldlUSS40.88 milllon




Corporate
The Royal Board of Investment in Thaitand
has sponsored the Chatree project as parl of
its strategy to encourage foreign investment
in underdeveloped areas in Thailand. As such,
all local and foreign investors, including
Kingsgate, are awarded an 8 year lax holiday
and 3 five year exemption from import duties
on consumables not manufactured in Thailand.
Consequentiy, taxes, duties and royaities are
lower than would normaily be expected but
will increase in future years. The couniry has
benefited from direct employment, purchase
of goods and services, communily investment,
and reinvestment in the operation through
e<pansion and exploration activities, This
espenditure is estimated to be in excess of
$130 mitlion &t 30 June 2006.

Retrvestrnent in Thailand

Kingsgate is commilted to long lerm investment
in Thailand with Thai partners. Since start-up,
alt of Chatree's operating cash flow {more than
$100 million} has been reinvested back in the
country, principally in mine and mill expansion
programs, exploration o extend the mine life,
land access and community programs.
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Tahae 11: Value Added and Distribution for ngsgate (USEM)

Gold and silver saies 5§39

- ‘Wages and salaries” 60

Interest fncome T 05 '_'f-"Rovalties and duties™ T 2.3
Other revenpe T 04 ':,-_"'Payments to suppliers® 376
e "7 Reinvestment In Thaitand

. Community investment 0.4

T~."- Plant and equipment T g g

- Exploration and evaluation 10,4

" Debt service [ Interest T 06

" ‘Dividends paid to shareholders 5.5

_ “'Cash utifised T 0.

" Exploration outside Thaitand 10

Value Added 549  Vatue Distribution T 64y

"Sigmificant components of these disiributions (alk for rovalties and du Bes) were incurred in Thadund,

-a higlteate of brezkages The fucalming

team wrged the company (0 be persistent,
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Kingsgate has commenced exploration of recently
granted tenements in Peru and Chile and has
established an office in Argentina.

Mine Life and Exploration

Chateee continues to add value to the business
through exploration and evaluation and the
expanded exploration effart has produced
excellent results. Kingsgate now regards the
Chatree region as a potential new world

class gold province and to date has spent
US$35 million on exptoration. Yhe company

i planning to spend a further US$10 million
in 2006107,

Kingsgate believes the geology of Central
Thailand is highly praspective for major
occutrénces of gold and copper. We now
hold more than 1,700 square kilametres of
prospective ground and have introguced the
most advanced exploration lechniques to our
programs. We are continuing both near-
mirte exploration drilling and afso regional
exploration programs in Central Thailand,

Project generation is underway in other
provinces of Thailand. In 2008, thirteen new
SPLs {Speciat Prospecting Licences) were
applied for in the provinces of Rayong and
Chantaburi, eastern Thailand, covering an area
of 205 square kilometres, The new licence
applications are located approximately

170 kilometses sautheast of Bangkak or

350 kilometres south of the Chatree Gold Mine.
These applications increased the tatal number
of exploration leases in Thaitand to 114 which
cover an area of 1,712 square Kilometres.

The tompany has identified o number of
significant surface anomalies, many associated
with strong geophysical responses, Ten high
pricrity 1argels have been identified. Among
these are the Singto and Chang Puek prospects
located 17 kilometres and 24 kilometres from
the Chatree Gold Mine respectively, where
encouraging gotd and copper assay resulls have
been received.

Resources at Chatree North are now merging
into one large system over an area of three
kilometres by one kilometre, Current geological
work is focused on increasing resources further
north from the identified mineralisation at A
East and the new discovery area.

The company has applied for additiona! mining
leases at Chatree North, One lease was granted
in October 2005 and permitting is well advanced
for the remaining leases, Surface works began
on the newly granted lease and ore production
from the new A pit commenced during the
March quarter of 2006. The new pit is supplying
softer oxide ore to the regular mill feed and will
replace existing ore sources over time.

Kingsgate is re-evatuating the project scale

as gold resources continue to increase. Scope
to significantly increase Lhe plant capacity

has heen evaluated in light of the exploration
potential of the area. The scaping study was
completed in 2005 which reviewed plant
throughput rates o1 3, 4 and & million tonnes
per annum, The 5 million tonne per annum
plant throughput rate was selected. In 2006
the study was extended to incorporate the
feasibility of increasing silver recovery (o aboul
70% compared with about 44% at present.
This was done in light of the current high silver
price and the large silver reserves {15 mitlion
ounces) in the Chatree North area.

Kingsgate is fostering a long term partnership
with Thailand to deveiop the country’s goid
resourees for the benefit of both parties.

We have invested all operating cash flows
since startup from the Chatree operation back
in the country through mine expansion and
exploration to extend the mine life.

The outlook for aext year is positive and
current expectations are for gold production

to be similar to 2006 at cash cost in the loveest
quartite giobally. Gold production is likely

to increase significantly to about 300,000
ounces per year from 2008 anwards, following
implementation of the project review,

Corporate Initiatives

Exploration in South America

Kingsgate continued to advance its exploration
activities in South America. It has commenced
explosing recently granted tenements in

Peru and Chile and established an office in
Argenlina. In Chile the focus was on a 3,300m
RC drill program on the San Luis epithermal
gold vein prospect near Copiapo.

In Argentina the Company has appointed tvio
geologists and established an explosation office
in San Juan. Initial work includes database
preparation to assist in identifying large
epithermal gold-silver deposits in the provinces
of Mendoza, Neugquén, Chubut and Santa Cruz.

Acnuires 220 of Andean Resources
Kingsgate has acquired a 228 interest in
Andean Resources Limited. Andean owns the
advanced Cerro Negro exploration project in
southern Argentina. The project bears many
geolegical similarities Lo Chatree and Kingsgate
believes that it can contribute to its potential
development for the henefit all stakeholders.

Although Kingsgate does not have sutficient '
ownership to gain management or Board

control, the Company's current management

was responsible for initiating and setling

up Andean's protocols and procedures I
in establishing responsiblé practices for '
exploration and mine development with due !
regard for the environment and the principles |
of sustainable development.



TABLES
AND DATA

Table 1: Land Management

Area of land disturbed eza a4y
Area of land rehabifitated T gg T sy T
Arta of land avaifable for rehabilitation 7 % I w23y

Electricity {(MWh) 67990 63433 £3,253 40,220
Diesel fuel - mobile sourees llires) 880807 7078571 4891487 227707
T e e .
o fomeg T e T am pon
Fom decyigty P p——— papon
Fom mobile equipment 2697 1904 13088 6126
T T e T e po
rom oog T o R P -
T —— —— e —

* Restated yxing WBCSOMWRI emission factor for eleciricity generation.
“*Adiusted from 2003 repoit.

Table 3: Assurance Programs

ASS““:]MC Program Business Aspeet Internal ot Exlct%nui Verified

AM! Enduring Vafue Code I Audit O Eionment g T
favLcence Compliance Review | Swwtory e
Taitings Management System  Audit | Waste management c
o T i Oty aures T e
S0 ta001 T audt  Envirenment t&F _____________

OHSAS 18007 Audit  Occupational Heath & Safety  F&E




Table 4: Environmental Incidents

Befinition

2005

2004

| 2002

levelt " Low severity includes minor oil spills <10 fitres) 15 Ty 9 3
.} leveiz Minor severity [one-off occurrence) 0o PR s 5
Level 3 Minor severity {repeated occurrence] 0 0 0 o
| leveld Medium ocqurrence {effects can be reversed) T o o o .0
levii5  High severity (non-reversiate, serious impac) 0 P ;T ;

Tabte 5: Material inputs and Outputs

Dutputs

5 %}/_

A

Dischgrgc o rface wa:

From mebile sources

From LPG

.%%

%
i)
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1. Please rate this report for:

Meeting your informadon necds
T=chnical content

Carity and ¢ase of understanding

’ .}'ﬁmll, haw would you rate this report

2. Which sections did you find most useful?
3 Highlights for the year [ overview and sum mary
[] Our environiment D Oue social contribution

[ J tables and data

3. Levet of detail - too much or too little?
I.-.] Tao much D Sufficient

4_ Would you prefer an electronic version of the report?

[:l Yes D No

5. Are you happy to read the report in electronic format?

[:l Yes D Mo

_.)

6. Please tick the box that hest deseribes you:
[] Sharehotder D Employee

[:l Financial analyst D Mining indusiry

E] R [¢]4] D Media

Poor

ooog-
DoOoOQ»
OOoO00-

D Sustainability objectives and tasgets

D Our economic contribution

(oo liste

D Lescal resideny
D Requlater

D Other

7. Does the report address your main concerns about Kingsgate's operations?

agogo-
googd:*

We value your comments as they will help us improve this report in the future.
1f you would like to help us with feedback, please return your completed form
by mail to the address shown over, or by emait to info@kingsgate.com.au

Excellent

D Kingsgate and sustainability

D The future

O Contracior/supplies

|:| Acatdemicfstudent

8. How could we improve this report in the future

Plzase crease along feld lines and seal with tape before pasting.
Kingsyate Consolidated Limited
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